STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH
129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 0330}

603-271-9544  1-800-852-3345 Ext, 9544
Fax; 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2064 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Lori A. Weaver
Commissioner

Katia S. Fox
Director

May 14, 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 -

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Heatih,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with NFI North, Inc. (VC #177575-
B001), Contoocaok, NH, to continue prowdlng transitional housing services for quahfylng adults
who have severe mental illness, by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price
limitation by $3,375,800 from $14,281,400 to $17,657,200 and extending the completion date
from June 30, 2025 to June 30, 2026, effective July 1, 2025 upon Governor and Council approval.
100% General Funds.

The onglnal contract was approved by Governor and Council on July 15, 2020, item #16
and amended on September 23, 2020, item #15; June 15, 2022, item #23; and most recently
amended on May 29, 2024, item #34.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2026, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items’ within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fi scal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-092-922010-41170000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

State - Increased .
Fiscal Class / Class Title Job Current (Decreased) Revised
Account Number Budget Budget
Year Amount
2021 | 102-500731 | Contacts for | 50004117 | $2,582,800 $0| $2,582.800
: Prog Svc
2022 | 102-500731 | COntactsfor | oo 004117 | $1.807.000 $0 | $1,897,000
Prog Svc
Contracts for
2023 102-500731: Prog Sve | 92204117 | $2,997,000 $0 | $2.997,000
2024 | 102-500731 | A TON { 0504117 | 3,375,800 $0| $3,375,800
Prog Svc
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2025 | 102500731 | COMaCE for | ooona117 | $3375.800 $0| $3,375,800
Prog Svc AR [ 7=
2026 | 102-500731 | Contracts for | oo 04117 $0 | $3,375,800 | $3,375.800
Prog Svc B ! !
Subtotal | $14,228,400 | $3,375,800 | $17,604,200

05-95-092-922010-41200000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES, MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT

State Class / . Job Current Increased Revised
Fiscal Account Class Title Number Budaet (Decreased) Budaet
Year un g Amount ge
2025 | 102-500731 | Convactsfor | ooo0a190 | $53.000 50|  $53,000
Prog Svc
Subtotal $53,000 30 $53,000
Total | $14,281,400 $3,375,800 | $17,657,200
EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agresments
originally approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. This request is to ensure
continuity of services while a competitive Request for Applications (RFA) for the 76 beds under
this contract and the sixteen (16) transitional-housing beds in the Philbrook building, currently
operated by the Contractor under a separate contract. Additional time is necessary for the
Department to plan to vacate the Philbrook building, which is subject to finalizing the Department's
2026-2027 Biennium Budget.

The purpose of this request is to exercise an available contract renewal option to ensure
sustained operation of a 76-bed transitional housing program for adults who have severe mental
liness (SMI) or severe and persistent mental iliness {SMPI) who are eligible for community mental
Realth services at a Community Mental Health Center, as described in New Hampshire
Administrative Rule He-M 401; and who no longer meet the level of care provided by New
Hampshire Hospital or Designated Receiving Facilities.

Approximately 100 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Year 20286.

Individuals 18 years of age and over participating in the transitional housing program will
continue 1o receive necessary services that support and promote rehabilitation and facilitates a
transition to independent living in the community. Transitional housing services include
psychiatric, clinical, and medical services; medication management; targeted case management:
specialized and co-occurring treatment services; vocational and day treatment services; and
support for family involvement.

The Department will continue to monitor services through review and assessment of
Contractor monthly and quarterly reports, annual Adult Needs and Strengths Assessments, and
individual service encounter data provided by the Contractor,
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As referenced in Exhibit A of the original agreement, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to four (4) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department
is exercising its option to renew services for the remaining one (1) year available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, a transitional housing
program may no longer be available to individuals in need of transitional residential treatment
services, who are transitioning from a facility to the community to live independently, which may
limit the availability of beds for individuals awaiting inpatient hospital services across the State.

Area served: Statewide.
Respectfully submitted,
i) '

Lori A. Weaver
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independance.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #4

. This Amendment to the Transitional Housing Programs contract is by and between the Stateé of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department”) and NFI North, Inc. ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract”) approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 15, 2020 (ltem #16), as amended on September 23, 2020 (ltem #15), and amended on June 15,

- 2022 (Item #23), and most recently amended May 29, 2024 (ltem #34), the Contractor agreed to perform
cerfain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended. upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7., Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2026 ’

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8., Price Limitation, to read:
$17,657,200

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3.4., lead-in paragraph only, to read:

34. For individuals without health insurance or other coverage for the services they receive,
. and for operational costs contained in Exhibit C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-6 Budget —
Amendment #4, for which the Contractor cannot otherwise seek reimbursement from an
insurance carrier or third-party payer, the Contractor will directly bill the Department to
access contract funds provided through this Agreement.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 4., fo read: .

4. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved line items as
specified in Exhibit C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-6 Budget — Amendment #4.

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 6., to read:

6. In lieu of hard copies, all invoiced may be assigned an electronic signature and e-mailed
to housingsupportsinvoices@dhhs.nh.gov, or mailed to:

Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

6. Delete and replace Exhibit C-4 Budget — Amendment #3, with Exhibit C-5 Budget — Amendment
#3, to corréct the budget number due to Scrivener’s error, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit C-6 Budget — Amendment #4, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference

herein.
Inital
| LR
NFl North, Inc. A-5-1.3 Contractor Initials
§5-2021-DBH-03-TRANS-01-A04 Page 10f 3 Date?/7/2025

v7,12.23
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Ali terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in fult force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2025, upon Governor and Council.
approval. . :

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, thé parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

DocuSignhed by:

4/8/2025 W;_ For
: ' EDSDG5SB04CE3442..,
Date Name: Katja S. Fox
Title: Director
NFI North, Inc.
B Signed by:
4/7/2025 E.U_KE REYNARD
CEE2DDZB40£0430...
Date Name: LUKE REYNARD
Title: gp
NFI North, Inc. A-S-1.3
53-2021-DBH-03-TRANS-01-A04 Page 20f 3

v.7.12.23
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSigned by:
4/11/2025 Eﬁa% Gunvine
Date Name: Roﬁyn Guarino

- Title: Attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFIGE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date ' ‘ Name:
Title:

NFI North, Ine. ‘ A-5-1.3

$8-2021-DBH-03-TRANS-01-A04 Page 3of 3

v.7.12.23
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Exhibt C-5 Budget - Amendment #3 (SFY 2025)

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD
Contractor Name: NFINorth, Inc,
Project Titk: Transitional Housing Programs
Budget Period: 711/2024 - 6/30/2025 (SFY 2025 )
bk ConER SR TR
Ldiva Mo - ST sindiactova s oo Totsl ct B
1. Total SalaryMages 1,718,514.44 36588 | 5 5,778 869, S 577,808.97 8,354 666.6! 1.941,544.78
2. Employee Benefits $2,088,992.37 2.295.691.61 155689831 8 155, 680.62 1,712,585.93 | £ 30.096.08
3. Carsuhards $980,703.00 1,089.773.30 72080431 | S 72,060.43 £02,564.74 81,008 69
4. -Equipment: 3 - - - - - - - -
Renlal $4,808.00 450.80 258.8 4,608.00 480.80 5,288.80 -
Repair and Maintsnanca $1,000.00 100.00 .100.0 1.000.00 140.00 1,100.00 - -
Purchase/Deprociation §537 860,85 5378608 501,645.5 527,880.85 52,783.08 580,848.93 10,009.00 1,000.00 11,000.00
5. Sunplies: S - - - - - 5 - - " -
Educatcnal s - - - - - - - - -
Lab 5 - - - - - - E - - -
Pharma $47.100.00 4.710.00 51,510.00 3513660 3.513.66 3865028 11,853.40 1,196.34 13189.74
Medical $ - - - - - - $ - - -
Office $28.704.00 287040 31,574.40 2141318 . 2141.32 23 654.50 280,82 72008 B.019.90
5. Fravel $72,155.00 721500 78.374.60 48,830.51 4,883.05 53,713.57 23.326 48 233285] & 25,681,323
7. Oce $370.284.04 - 3702846 407,313.43 268,765.94 26.876.59 26564253 101,518.00 10,151.8¢ 111,670.80
[B_Current Expenses 5 - - Bl K - - - - . -
Tal $65325.00] 5 6,632.50 71,857.50 48,132.4% 4,873.25 £3.56052.70 16,592.55 1,659.26 18.251.01
Postage 1,150.00 115.00 1265001 % 1,150.60 11500 1,285.00 - -
Subscriptions 5,834.00 56340 5 5197401 S §834.00 56340 6,187 40 ' - -
Audit and Legal - - s - - - - -
Insurance $136 287.00 1362870 3 149915701 % 101,670.1¢ 10167.01] § 111,837,171 34.616.90 3461.69 38.078.59
Board EIEnses 3 - - - S - B - 3 - . " -
13__Software 36.355.00 35.5( 699050 ] 5 6,355.00 835501 % 6,990.50 - - -
10. Marketing/Cornmunications 212.000.00 1.200.0¢ 1320000 $ 120000004 5 1,200.00 13,200.00 - - -
11._Staff Education and Trafning $39.600.00 3,860.0 43560.00 20541600 § 295418 32.435.78 10.058.40 1.005.84 11.084 24
12. Subcontracts/Aqreemants 3 - - - L] - - - = S -
13, Other (apecific detal's mandatory}: S - - - - . ] . - " $ N
Consunables {foed, household s es elc.) 5469 01800 A48.901.60 51592080 348.219.00 3482180 8 383,040.80 128.500.00 12.08¢,00 132.880.00
EIM& Traini £ 53,000.00 - 53,000.00 0 - - 53.000.00 - 53.000.00
5 - B - - - . - - |s -
TOTAL [ 12,646,496.60 1,259,349_.& 13,805,848.26 9.524 587.52 952,45%.74 10,477,046.26 3,121,500.08 306.890.92] $ 3,4§8W.UU
indirect As A Porcent of Diroet 10.0%
NFI Norih, Inc.

§5-2021-0BH-D3-TRANS-01-A04
Exhibit C-5 Buciget - Amendment #3 {SFY 2025}
Page1of 1

el
LR
Contracior Iniliats

DB‘Q'V?RDZS
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. Exhibit C-6 Budget - Amendment #4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name:||

Budget Request for: |

Budget Period|7/1/.

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)|0:

. Lineltem . ° ~ | Program Cost- Funded by DHHS"
1. Salary & Wages N -~ $1,941.510.
2. Fringe Benefits o - $529,006
3. Consultants

$141,008

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and

Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. %0
5.(a) Supplies - Educational _$0
5.(b) Supplies - Lab %0
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $15 063
5.(d) Supplies - Medical g
5.(e) Supplies Office

6. Travel

7. Software

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communlcatmns

$10 200

8. (b) Other - Education and Training

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) ) 80
Other (please specify) $101,519
Other (please specify) $15,596 -
Other (please specify) $34.617:
Other (please specify) $1 16,160

9. Subrecipient Contracts S 80

Total DirectCosts b o oom o $2:935 478

Total Indirect Costs . $440.322

TOTAL -$3,375,800:

$5-2021-DBH-03-TRANS-01-A04

Initial
l LR
Contractor Initials: )

4/7/2025
Date:
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NFINORTH, INC, is a New
Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on July 06, 1992, I further ceriify that all fees
and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business 1D: 175745 Ex
Certificate Number: 0007039671

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause tc be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 3rd day of February A.D. 2025.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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State of New Hampshire Filed

Date Fited: 2/3/2025
Effective Date: 2/3/2025

D ep artment Of State Business [D: 175745
2025 NONPROFIT REPORT David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State

BUSINESS NAME: NFINORTH, INC.

BUSINESS TYPE: Domestic Nonprofit Corporation

BUSINESS ID: 175745

STATE OF INCORPORATION: New Hampshire

40 Park Lane PO Box 417
Contoocook, NH, 03229, USA : Contoocook, NH, 03229, USA
N ~ PRINCIPAL PURPOSE(S)
.NAICS CODE NAICS SUB CODE
OTHER / OPERATING GROUP HOMES FOR TROUBLED
YOUTH OR PERSONS WITH MENTAL ILLNESS.

OFFICER / DIRECTOR INFORMATION

NAME ‘ BUSINESS ADDRESS TITLE
Patricia Fillio 1 Quaker Street, Newton, NH, 03858, USA President
Dellic Champagne 169 Portsmonth St; #177, Concord, NH, 03301, USA Secretary
Ashley Wainwright 240 Oak Street, Lewiston, ME, 04240, USA " | Treasurer
Don Nason 7 117 Brockway Rd, Hopkinton, NH, 03229, USA Director
Sophia Grebe ) 38 Highland Avenue, Newton, MA, 02460, USA Director
Suanne Nader 27 Sherwood Road, Londonderry, NH, 03053, USA Director
Terry Lochhead 147 Main Street, Brownfield, ME, 64010, USA Director

1, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the statements on this report are true to the best of my information, knowledge and belief.

Title: President

Signature: Patricia Fillio

Nane of Signer: Patricia Fillio

Mailing Address - Corporation Division, NII Department of State, 107 North Main Street, Room 204, Concord, NIT 03301-498%
Physical Location - State House Anncx, 3rd Floor, Room 317, 25 Capitol Street, Concord, NH
Phone: {603)271-3246 | Fax: (603)271-3247 | Email: corporate@sos.nh.gov | Website: sos.nh.gov
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Deilie Champagne , hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of thé Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of NFI North, Inc
' (Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The folfowmgzls atrue copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on _March ,2024 | at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date) _
voten: Thet -UKE Reynard
{Nare and Title of Contract Signataty)
NFI North, Inc
{Name of Corporation/ LLC}

_{may iist more than ane person)

is duly authorized on behalf of toenter into contracts or agreements with the State

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and dther instrumerits, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in hislher judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. | hereby certify that said vole has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidenice that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual ta bind the corporation in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

e .

Signature of Eletted Officer

Name: Dellie Champagne

Title: Clerk/Secretary

Rev, 03/24/20
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SASTIMT . IV AW T O

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

ACORD.

NORTHAMET6

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
12/30/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLIGIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

12 Gill Street Suite 5500
Woburn, MA 01801

USl Insurance Services LLC

ﬁﬁﬁ“m ‘Susan Kania

FONE Exy; 855 874-0123

T2X Noy. 781-376-5035

EDDRESS Susan.Kania@usi.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
855 874-0123 INSURER A : Philadelphia indemnity Insurance Co. 18058
INSURED NSURER B : North River Insurance Company 21105
NFI North Inc.
INSURER G :
40 Park Lane INSURER D :
Contoocook, NH 03229 :
INSURERE :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS COF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

i TYPE OF INSURANCE NS (v POLICY NUMBER MBS YY) (BRI D LimiTs
A | X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PHPK2638415021 01/01/2025| 01/01/2026 £ACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
| cLams mape OCCUR REMRES (o amnencey | 51,000,000
|| MED EXP {Any one person) __ | $5,000
| PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 51,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LEMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000
|| Pouicy |:| JECT D Loc PRODUCTS - COMPiOP AGG | $3,000,000
OTHER: $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK2638417021 01/01/2025]01/01/2028 o ontens o= ™M™ [41,000,000
X| any auto BODILY INJURY (Per pesson) | §
: Py || SeHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
| X AitSsony [ X | AGTod oniy (Per acoont) 0 $
)
A | X|UMBRELLAUAB | X | occur PHUB#894574 01/01/2025|01/01/2026 EACH OCCURRENCE 510,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE ) AGGREGATE $10,000,000
DED | XI ReTENTION 510000 $
B | WORKERS COMPENSATION . 4067404992 07/01/2024|07/01/20258 X |8y | [T
3’&'};EE%%'EE&%%EQ%{HEE’&%‘ECUTNEE NIA L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000
{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| 51,000,000
If yes, describe under
DESCERIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow EL. DISEASE - POUICY LM | 1,000,000
A |Professional PHPK2638415021 01/01/2025|01/01/2026{ 1MIL/3MIL
Abuse PHPK2638415021 01/01/2025|01/02/2026 1MIL/3Mil

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS ! VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may ba attached if more space is required)
121 South Fruit Street Concord, NH 03301.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of NH

Dept Health & Human Services;
129 Pleasant Street

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Concord, NH 03301 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
| D
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03} 1 of1 The ACORD hame and logo are registered marks of ACORD
#S47610579/M47585574 VMMZP
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NFI North Mission Statement

Inspiring and empowering people to reach their full
potential so that they can live successfully within their
own home and community
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NFI NORTH, INC. .
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L et Report on the Audit of the Flnanclal Statements _ et - T
: i Opimon~ ) c T N - LA e T
R U We have audlted the accompanymg fi nancial statements of NFI North lnc whlch comprise, the . .~
. statemént of financial position as of June 30, 2024, and the related statements of activilies, functional” '
Ce expenses, and cash ﬂows for the year then ended, and the relaled notes to the fi nanctal slatements.
"% |nYour opinion, the fi nanctal statements referred to above present fairly, in all matenal respects the '
*« ", . financial position of NFI North,.Inc. as of June 30, 2024, and the chianges’in its net assets.and its cash Yo
- . flows for the year then ended in accordance with accountlng pnnc»ples generally accepted in the Umted ;":. s
A States of Amenca . ’ : : .- : . )
. e Basrs forOpinion ' . T T e t SER
S We conducted our audit in accordance w:th audmng standards generally accepted in the Un:ted States T 3
“. " of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
o . ‘Standards, issued by -the Comptroller General of the United- States. Our.responsibilities under those .. @,
,'r - standards ‘are-. further dederibed in” the Auditors’ Responsmzlltles for the Audit of the Financial-’ '-,;-4
. ."Statements section of our report We are’ requnred to be mdependent of NFI North! Inc. and to- meetour - &
. other ethiical responsubltlttes in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to, our audit; .,
s Yo We belleve that the audit ewdence we have obtalned is sufficient and appropnate to prowde a ba5|s for " -
Y ouraudlt opinion.” © L., ‘. : ; . . . S
-?-Li + : £ .‘) - _— * . . .: . - . i gLt . W'_: . .-1;-.
, T Respons:bmtles of Management for the Fmanc:al Statements T ) ! ‘
' e Managemenl is responsible for the preparatlon and fair presentation of the fi nancnal statements in o
LY accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of America, and for the - -
design, implementation, and_maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair . o
* - presentation of fi nanclal statemenls that are free from material mlsstatement whether due to fraud or
error. - P
in prep’aring the financial statements, management is required 1o evaluate whether there are conditions -
or events, considered in-the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about NFI North, Inc.’s ability to -
- continue as a going concern for one year after the date the fi nanmal statements are available to be,
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" Our objectwes are to obtain reasonable assurance abm:uwhether the fi nancral statements’ as a whole ;
‘s . are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud -or‘error,.and to issue an auditors’ report that :

A lncludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance’is a high¥evel of assurance but is not absolute assurance .

[

and ‘therefore is not a'guarantee that an -audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and. Governiment e

_ Audrtrng Standards will always detect.a material misstatement when it exists. The risk. of not detecting a i

Wt material mrsstatement resulting from fraud is hlgher‘than for one-resulting from error, as fraud may

involvé coilusron forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of tnternal control. * .~
2 Misstatéments are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence. the judgment made: .bya reasonabte user based on the financial .:

T.t statements. . - o R v s . = * .

-5 1. g = - -
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" tn performmg an audit in accordance wrth GAAS ahd Government Aud:tmg Standards we., ) )

v ’ . ) -
= - -

e Exercrse professional judgment and' maintain professronel skeptrclsm throughout the audit. T
LT ; o Edentrfy and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the ﬂnanmal statements, whether due .
g # ~to fraud or error, .and design and-perform audit pracedures responsive to those risks. Such 4
- procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and dlsclosures -
4. Jeooun NN the fi nanmat statements . . N _ o .
aﬂ,‘ : a’: ' ,,; E .‘. ". Lt e e ,. ., . .. .‘
P ; Obtaln an understandmg of mternal control releuant to the aud:t in.order’ to design audlt .
Ve procedures that are appropriate ir the c:rcumstances but not for the purpose of expressingan %,
Lo J7- e+ opinion on the effectiveness of NFI North, Inc s lntemal control. Accordmgty, no such opinionis °, + -
St ety ..,..‘expressed T S : o . R
: 'I‘.'.';"‘: : i "Evaluate the approprlateness of accounting po!lmes used, and the reasonableness of srgnlﬁcant * ’
P ': "- ’1 -atcounting estimates made- by management “as, weII as ‘evaluate the overell presentation of the o
o i _".{7 f nancna[ statements. LR ’ C SRR . A
N r‘;‘l -. i ?', - - - £ N e o * s N e - 3 . .
2T d e Conctude whether in our judgment, there are conditions or events consrdered in the aggregate -
. A that raise substantial doubt about NFI North, Inc 'S abztrty to-continue as a gomg concern fora ~: .
- reasonabte perrod of time. . . , T

- . o+ ‘] | - o, ' * - Lok v ]
We are required lo communlcate wrth those charged with governance regardrng, among other matters
. the ptanned scope and timing of the audil, significant audit ﬁndmgs and certain internal control retated

. mattersthatwe identified during the audit. . S - ,

»
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.. ) accordance with Gavernment Auditing Standards, we lhavésalsp dssued our report dated September
s 30, 2024, on our, consideration of NFI North, .Inc.is internal contrsl overdfinancial reporting and on our :
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Other Reportmg Required by Govemment Audrtmg Standards R —

. testswof ils comphance with certain provisidns of laws, regulationsscontracts; and grant agreements’and
z. ’olher matters. The purpose of that report-is solely 10 describethe scope of our testing of internal control
' *over financial reporting and compliance and'the iresults ofthatstesting;and not to provide an opinion on’
%5 .. Ihe'effectiveness of NFI North, Inc.'s mtemal -control over*ﬁnancalvepomng or on comipliance. That
i report is'an integral part of an audit performed with Government Audiling Sa‘andards in consudering NFI

North, Inc.'s lnterna! control over f nancnal repor!mg and comp]ranne_ N R -
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_NFINORTH, INC.. #- . -
_ STATEMENT OF NET POSITION _ .

; JUNE 30,2024 ., =~ ° -
. P . el
i - Go.
* * - . [
“+ Assets -/, n;f AT A
- H . i . ’ 1
b - . "‘ - i " s -
% 2. Current assets: & . ] - L
© 7 ¢, Cashand equivalents . ‘ g -y -

. * Accounts receivable, net T 5 7438921 . )
Prepaid expenses and other current agsets ¢ . Lo T A C 193479
Due from affiliate {note 10) S . * WA e T e 112,742

- K - » i

Inveslments (note 4) & , oy ) 5,193,750 -

. HL Total currentassets ' OUNER I (N 20,115,715
* B . » KD [l ¥ » . 3 o . ‘ = e e
Property and equlpment T e ﬁ C e e S
Land © - T A IR -7 /.3 B
Buildings and improvements .- . A T © 12922227 ¢

Equipment and furmshlngs . L N ) ' s 8823200 v
"> Vehicles - CoE g s o o S T . 1,626,500 "

*
e
i N

Lo Ls T R , w =  16405837
¢ L Less accumu!ated depreciation CTee v e ' (7,743454) . P
woa Property and equipment, net S, s : Y, 8,662,383 L
. LA : : T ' A
%, Lease right-of-use assets - - . ":‘, Lo B . er3ty;
. 7, Otherassets . : LT s PR 282074
A . . . , T £ . : e T L e
; "., *  Totalassets - » ¥ DT ) i $ 29127488 - "
: . »t . .. e ' e ™ n o ..-;g:;. ”m::..':."—_:= . ' N i
5 : N e R O e gt ‘:" ) -i . X ’ , B " _' "o
- ) . PRy ' Liabilities and Net Assets - ° *; T EXS Mo
e it L o ) ' S o - L a" T
f‘ Current liabilities: e . T SRR S A SO o W
"t “: Current portion of long-term debt (note 5 S A S w8 ' 182,899, Lo
W ,a Current pomon of operattng lease ltablhtles Tnote 6) CL - R L P B T X 1 & B EN P
A Accounts payablé L R G 207,897, 00T
Accrued payroll sind related liabilities . . . © T 2,056,241 Lon
. " Other accrued expenses - T . .t Tt 1,860,834 <, -
, ' Deferred revenue - N oL . e ' \ . 149,868 © " .
iy b ] ~ Total current liabilities . s e AP S 4,680,810 o
‘" Long-term liabilities: e T e L oo
Long-term debt, net of current portion (note 5) < s 2,352,754
Operating lease lisbilities, net of current portion (note e .. ) 33,245
i .Totallong-term fiabilities . o ' . o 2,385,999 °
Total iabilties | .. - . 17066809 .

o Net assets: : S

©@ " Without donor restfictions far U7 s s e et 21897715 T
R TT T Withdonor restrictions T W . c.o ot T 362965 -
R ~ Total netasse!s'. e . % P L.t 22,080,880° &+
o . -.‘, a e R L e “!._.,' Kk R , S, — o
; -:‘.:‘:, ; )
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St s .*  NFINORTH, INC. " ] S A
fy .« . STATEMENY OF ACTIVITIES S R N
‘ N . YEAR END.JUNE 30,2024 * ~ ' .
' . " " » .-‘.:g P \ . ' wt : ',. ‘
' :'Changes in net assets without donor restrictions: . tA ! :_.' . ' ‘L ) PR
.. *-Revenues and other support:- - - -t e e 7 o o
. Contracts, net . 3 R L C kel ., " % 45,318,236 ,
Contributions: ., = «= ‘ ‘ - . e SR .
- " """ Contributed nonfinancial assets . ", P R EY xS
L W% .t Other ' ot e ST - ' ) Y T, 74746 v e
C . v Interestand dividends . . ‘ o L : e .74 s02708° L, T,
ol Mnscellaneaus .. T T 3 )
SR T . B0, C - T 47,050,767 .
"+ Netassets released from restrictions - , N N (- X7 o
RS " ', Total revenues and other support 4 T 47,213,378 .
i & Expenses; - ) ) - S i "" =T 3 L ', "
. 7 U+l Program services . . ) " - . 40245200 - - -
- Supporting services . . ) . - AA487311 *
U oet il Total expenses < . 4473251 o
" 1t e E ) s v . ) .
‘.;;"" " Increase in net assets without donor restrictions before nonoperating aclivities ™, 12,480,867

.
> . . |

. :_- . Nonoperatmg actwulles , Y e eeoE co
Nét realized and unrealized gam oninvestments , - Y o 319,447 :

: Gain on sale of property and equipment & ' o o el L. 54,610 .
. R Increase in net assets without donor restrlct:ons ) C. - . oo 2,854,924 e
Y Changes in net’ assets with-donor restricions: . _ e . e . LI
A Contrjbutions® and grants _— oo ' . 162921 L
K [ . r e .- ’ B
) eyt Net assets released from restrictions . . R R SR 47 611) R
‘: J st .'I o y “_. . . v . T ,, - ! + Lot ': fu‘ A ’:,.'; a: e s :‘! [ :"‘ o n“ '._ b . ,:. i
"1 " “Increase in net assels with donor reslnctlons - 1 DA
L Increase in net assets . CLt o e o, s, 2855234 -
. * il 3 . . i : . , » « ot ks b . . - o “ . .
Ll Net assets atbegmmng ofyear e S = 18,205.446 - . .
Net assels at end of year . T < .7 § 22,080,680 :
"4 . ’ v 4 ' oy
. ' - : . L
. o . ; ;
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Fo%e ¥ STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONALEXPENSES
R YEAR END JUNE39,2D24 e
S| . ‘i T o~ *
AT B Pérsnnel expenses: LoD .
> t,n..e,“- ."' Salanes payroll laxes and emp!oyee beneits -
PN S P e
s, "'Otherexpenses P . T o ” e
© T RS Contracted services: ) : LT L AE3EE21 1,868,632 6,404,153. "F. ..

. Otherdlreclcosts . '1,8,79;829 ] " 268,483 ) ,2.148.303' L
" Contributed nonfinancial. assets - . . 71354633 . - 1454833 %

i )T

-‘Consumables LT ' ' T if049959 ~ . - S« ™ 1,049,959 PIE N
‘O¢cupancy i - . ‘., -+ 953240° . 49814 .. 1003054 i -
- _Transportation ~ P T T 799,088 . i 49,380 - -, 848488 ., -
'Eqmpmﬁnt,_ A "'-;,‘ e '246;607 "o, -51431 ° . 208038 " L0
i Interest . EEETE TRl NEIBIG v -10,745 T, - 98,261 e '
e o to i 10 706,395 " U+ - 2,298,495, -13,004890 . -
Depregiation and amortization * . . L, .e17 433° 72,130 . - 989,563 .

- % L. . Tollexpenses 0§ w0520 § 4dsTAN S a47mstt -

BTy
L a0 1
""# *

E % . f
B ‘- % },.Sae.accompan;nng No!es lo Fmanc:al Sra!ements .
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-~ NFINORTH, mc T T S
#3 % - STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS <o e s
g+ T YEARENDJAUNESD2024 © 7 vtV T .y
% . " - * ; 2 (R 5, ’ ; _:’-: s
s ‘ * A 'vn K N 3 ;';‘Mc‘; Yy . i "‘;, 3 P . !
it bt ol - g . ’“" Y T RVL - o e
*e ‘-:la-_ - Cash flows from operating achvntnes . I R , mr vt
‘ Increase in net assets Cou T Cote v g o - 4 8 .2 855 234 ce T
oy Adjuslments to reconcile i Increase in net assets*:o'nstcash Eoa e hE :- Ee gtd
R - prowded by operating dctivities: SR P f-‘i . e A RS - i
- B , . Depreciation and amortizatton v e M e N 089,563 .

Gain on sale of propeﬁyand equlpment : e . M Co(se810) 0

; ' Net realized and vinrealized gain on investmenit - * ¢ "< . ' a L <1 -1 447) e
Amortization of right-of-useasset . = . ' o« T T ovnm e 60,832 .
.a Qhanges in assets and liabilities: . e ‘H";"'".,u S o ol ‘ ;o ’ . o e ‘1'-.
" Accounts recewable net e :*ff"’". ' -7 - -(2,480,748) o
Prepaid expenses and other current assets N ! . o (2,967)
Due from affiliate ° .. L e T ooy (172,742) .
Otherassets - ;. 7 w Lo s .vo(47.080) ot
++ Accounts payable - LTy TR e T (35,1808 .
;- Agerued payroll and related i:abliltles HRCELEE T U 345,234 vt
Other accrued expenses . . 4 F 830,830
- _Dueto affiliate . R R {60,422)
Deferred revenue . s I 134736 .
. - Operating lease liabilities Lt T PRI (56.249) P
_ Net cash provided by operaling dtivities' ‘f‘”‘ T 1986681 | - o«
b s RPN E R
B Cash ﬂows from snvestmg aclivities’ z e 3 ' ® ) .

- Purchases of property and equlpment a (3 313 494) - .
Purchases of investments ;* ; . ‘ '¢ " (1,487,488) “. .
Proceeds from sale of property and eqmpment DA R w0 BES00- < v .

. 4. 1,351,024 .

- (3.394.436) %

Proceeds from sa!e of mvestments " oy __f

sh ﬂows from fmancrng actnntles ) _ , PR
‘ Repayments of long’term debt’ - R - s » . {181,977) ,
’1 . Net cash used in fi nancmg activities ., ~° . N . (181.977) . .

'
£ ‘ - -.4.I . o o ” R

et * + PRt K : K; g."i ¢ R . .. . -
b " Net decrease m cash and equwalents L ‘ Tyt " {1.589,732) 5 . s
! \ﬁ‘ A ’ )“' .“i ,’i?_ ‘.:h > - * " .' ey az YLy "‘:’.( " . o . -y -“ + : ‘
5 Cash and equivalents at beglnnmg of year - R - T s . '8706,655 - W
e ,' a . e w ¥ | —————————t— _.l .
. Cash and efuivalents at end of year ) ) Cour 7116823 . -
. % _ Supplémental data: ’ L. h - . ’ ) .

- . Cash paid for inlerest - . 98,261
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R ‘ = [ H

LR+ ”"; -!,,' wml i ” i - . a . . -~ : s :,L? ., ] .
O ... Organization. * > - - ST - e L e : S
o e T NFE North, Inc. (NFIN) is a nonprof t orgamzatlora whose purpose is o provide commumty

based social services to individuals and their. Hanilies. “‘NFIN is a subsxdtary of Norifi .
“American Family Institute, Inc. (NAFI) ‘which ‘s “the sote .member of NFIN's board of . #%n.
_ directors. Substantially all of NFIN's révenues’are derived from services contracted with the. :
. States of Maine and New' Hampsliire Departments of Human Services, Children, Youth and -
e Famrhes Medlcaid Medicare;” pnvate pay, and loml ipuiblic school dlstncts " B

i f s 9 _‘“ - - N .
s Basrs ofPresentatlon T P .o

c . R
Y

The accompanying fi nancial statements whlch are mresented on’ the accrual basis of .
accounting, have’ been prepared to focus on*NFIN'as'a whale and to present balances and - “m ¢
fransactions according to ‘the. existence or absence of donor—:mposed restrictions. * , "7
Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are’ claself ed as fallows:

With donor restrictions — Net assets SUb]ECt to denor-lmposed strpufatnons that may or wrll be &
met by actlons of NFIN andlor the passage of time. TR yo BT T

.
: ) et e
. L I

=

o Without donorrestnctfons Net assets nat subject to donor-imposed stnpulatlons A
e Revenues afe reported as mcreases m nef. assets w:thout donor restrlctlons unless use of -
“-+the related assets is limited by donor-imposed restrictions andlor time, restrlchons ‘Expenses
i+ o@re reporled as decredses in net assets without -donor restrictions. Gains and losses an
investments and other assets or Ilabnmes are reported as increases or decreases in net
assets without donor restrictions uniess their use-is restricted by explicit donor stipulations or - B
" law. Expirations - of restrtctlons on net assets with donor réstrictions are reported as ' i
,rec!aesn" cations between the applicable classes-of net dssets.. Expirations of’ reslrlctlons with-.+. m 0
- donor restrictions acclr when donor-imposed stipulated purposes have been accompllshed LT
and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed. If an expense is incurred for a purpose for b
which both net assets with and without-donor.restrictions are available, a donor-nmposed T
: restriction is fulfilled o the extent of the expense incurred unless the expense -is for a
A purpose thati |s directly aﬂnbutabfe lo another specnf ed external source of revenue. L

.

* H
v - 4l L N Y RS

- w o L ,, -

‘Adoption of New Accountmg Standard .o ; : - " s

" 7.7 In 2024, NFIN adopted FASB ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topzc -
326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial instruments, as amended, which modifies
the measurement of expected credit losses, NFIN adopted this new guidance using the

e + modified retrospective transition method. The adoption of this Standard did not have a
S material impact on NFIN's financial statements but did change how the altewance for credit ,
B losses is determmed . . ,
1,” k> b - Cash and Egulvalents ! Soe L ‘ S I

All short-term invesiments with an onglna| matunty at purchase of three months or-less are B
- considered cash equwafente for . purposes of the- statement- of cash flows. Cash and . O
oo equivaleiits. within mvesiment accounts are conssdered to be mvestments for purposes of

‘the statement of cash flows, T LU A e,
YA - i Sy L i’ T h e %-}:1. 5
' e ,':;w .,_
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

o

w 5' - . 3 ) -
'.J'_- o - . ‘-;. 5_ ¥ . - ey & . e ,| ‘1’

Accounts Recervable . * * . . AR R e -

NFIN carries its accounts receivable net ‘of ah .allowance for credlt Iosses The altowance is

* *determined to-present the net amount of accounits réceivable expected 1o be collected. The .
allowance represents the expected. credit Iosses based on- historical experience, current ©  * *
. economic conditions, and certain forward- Iookmg information. The allowance is evaluated :

. on a periodic basis based on.an assessment-of outstanding balances for all accounts over

" 90 days past due. Those baldhces deemed, by management to have’ pctentrat collectability .
issues are charged to the allowance for credrt tosses accounis. As of June 30, 2024, the © -+

.
allowance was $47,658; e T . P . ‘
=y ’ T . 1‘ . - . . .- 1 o . 1i““ .;m . - ) ' i _‘s
Income Taxes : o Paort o Lo v L C

- NFIN is an orgamzat:on descnbed “Under Section 501(::)(3) ‘of the' Internal’ Revenue Code * o

W hy w (IRC) and is generally exempt from income taxes under IRC Section 501(a). NFIN. has taken

A N P stgmt’ icant uncertarn tax positions: . . S e A
. Use of Estimates e ¥ Q”j‘,‘ I B .

- The preparation - of financial statements in " conformity wrth US generalty accepted !
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect n -
the reported amounts of- assets and _liabilities and disclosure of contingent-assets and

. liabilities at 1the date of the financial stalements and the reported amounts of revenues and
e expenses dursng the reportrng perrod Actual results could differ from those estrmates ‘ T

L

. +
B 3

Concentration of Credit Risk .. R SRR e . L
;. NFIN maintains cash balances at fi hancial mstttutrons whrch at times may excéed federal[y
“insured limis. NFIN has not experrenced any. tosses in such accounts and betreves it :s naot

exposed to any srgnlf cant’ credtt rrsk on cash and cash equivalents.” - - . s .

I e
w A
s' ¢ - ®

Concentratlon of Rrsk . R . . C ;

NFIN.receives the majonty of its. fundrng from state contracts that are renewable annualty
Legislative budgets could signifi cantty impact NFIN s ability to start new programs and o,

contmue ‘existing- programs e e ) SR S N :
DT e T | s e
"L . 4 Property and Egmpment : ) ., . “
v Property and equrpment are recorded at cost or, in the case of donated property, at fair .

Ry value_at the date of gift. Deprecratlon is provided using the straight-line-method over the ot
o, following estrmated useful lives: , . L.
oL Buildings and |mprovements I n 5-33.3 years

o _.:.f‘q . Equipment and Furnishings 5 - 2-10 years F L "
WS . .# ' Vehicles roc Dl 35years ST T
b ok i ;" ’ e LR T o - o
Lot Leasehald- improvements’ ere deprecrated or amortized accordlng to NFIN's normat
- A . depréciation policy except that the time period. shall be the shorter of 1) the useful life of the - -
e BT ':.s"f: - lgasehold improvements; or2) the remaining;years’ of the lease. The: remaining years | of the ;"4 5 &
S vlease include, - the years in? ) the Iease .renewals that - -are, ‘reasonably assured :
o o f.a-,l~'-' nd et L n e
- ?’* R R a.«-a. : :';“' ) 3 1:.;’ N < X"'l i*';:"{ ‘ .y ¢
* . ) ' gt g FN e N it ple oo
T ¥ » LR
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. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bave o JUNESB 2024.
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* mq"

- P 4

»E
N Viee ay K

Self-lnsurance R

_NFIN'is self-insured for employee :medma1 health care costs. As of June’ 30, 2024 the ¢
.. estimated I1abu|:ty for health careclaims inctirred *but not-yet reported ‘or paid was $172,584 K
. included In accrued payroll and related11abllltles m'tthe *accompanymg statement of fi nanCIaI
position, . - . . . v
. Eair Valué'of Financial Instruments ** ;.= ... ', LT e q pS
- Fair value represents the price that NFIN would réceive upon the sale of an asset or paid- )
upon the transfer of a liability in an orderly transaction.between market participants as of the e
méasurement date. NFIN uses a’ three-tier . hlerarchy {o categonze those assets and
ligbilities -.based on those valuation- melhodologles employed. The. three-ﬂer hierarchy of o

’ mputs is summar:zed in the three broad Ieveis listed below. , o

Leve! 7'~ quoted prices in active markets for |denncal fi nanclal mstrurnents - ’

Y = El B
v LR " :

. Level2- other.s:gmf‘ cant observable snputs (lnclud:ng quoted prices for samtlar financial * - .
mstruments, interest rates credit risk, etc) . . '
» e - e . TSI - R B
_ Level 3- sugnlf’cant unabservable inputs {including NFINs own assumptuons in :
' determlnlng the fa:r value of ﬁnanc;allnslruments) . . : _ N

" a T
‘f% < ’ * - *

The falr value hlerarchy gives the hlghest pﬂonty--to Level 1 lnputs and the lowest prsonty 1o . E T
. Level 3 inputs. NFIN utilizes valuation techmques that maximizes the use of observable
' lnputs and mnmmlzes the use ofunobsewabie mputs to the extent possible. T L

. "‘

o4

. I
‘v:l ”1“ . t L . s,

- Lk m el ¥ - '. o g P
. [ [ ¥. ! A

“

S
[ e, e

NFIN determines n‘ an arran—gement is & lease ai mceptlon NFIN has leases under whlch it 2R
is obligated as a léssee. Operating leases as a lessee are mcluded in nght-of-use assels
and |ease Irabllmesmthe statement of financial posmon St W ra s

P
Los ; o.,n . dry . N . 5

L] ‘i

" Right-of-use assets represent NFIN's’ nght,to use an‘ underlying’ asset-for the lease term.- - by
1 Lease liabilities represent NFIN's liability to. make lease payments ansmg from the lease: =~ .
s e« Operating nght—of-use assets and related obllgatzons are recognized at commencement date CN
based on the present value of lease. paymenls over the lease term discounted using-an
. » apprapriate incremental borrowing rate. NFIN has elected to use a practical expedient of the
v risk-free borrowing rate (applicable U.S. Depaitment of Treasury risk-free treasury rate) as
. the incremental borrowing rate, which is based on the information available a . .

. commencement date in determining, the present value of lease payments. The value of an

. option to extend or terminate a lease is reﬂecled to the extent it is reasonably certain’
. managementwnl exercise that ophon [P
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, weo o ovr, -4 NFI NORTH, mc : o EEE S ML
. I f NOTES TO FINANCIAL' STATEMENTS . e ’ v “ .
e - - JUNE 30,2024 v e -
s ' ' o L ‘ 4 b ' 'ri T 'y
_PRINCIPAL Ac_'rr\r'rrv AND;SIGNIFICANTATCBUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) s,
. Revenue Recognition -‘ e .~ ' : -’; . T

NEIN recognizes reveriue at an amount that reflects the consrderatron to which NFIN .

.expects to be entitled in exchange for Irarrs‘femng goods or services to its customers usmg T,

the following fi ve-step process: ' _ . .

(] = . . W

il
=

. 1.. |dentify the contract(s) with the customer v '
2. Identify the performance obligation(s) mihe-contract et a

3. Determine the transaction price - Qe

4. Allacate the transaction price to performance- oblrgatrons in the contract
5. Recognize revenue when (or as) NFIN satisfi esa,performance oblrgatron.

3

- See noie 7 for details on how the above. ﬁve step process is applred Io NFIN's contracts wrth R |

customers : .

Contrlbuted Nonfinancial Assets

*  NFIN receives the contributions of the use of facrlrtres which are valued at the fair value of . o
"t- similar properties availablé’ use in commercral markets. NFIN also receives contributed @ -

P

»

e goods which are value at estimated faif value, See note 8 for addrtronal mformatron on o
contrrbuted nonfinancial assets in 2024 ' S CT
Adver‘trsmg_Costs B T R .o iR

= Advertising costs are expensed as rncurred Advertrsrng costs mcurred totaled $31 423 o
durmg the yearended June 30,2024, ot - . ' : :
SubseguentEvents RS et oo et

I - B B » FEA - * . ‘ ¥ .‘ ]
R NOTE 2 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS Tt - e ret e d .
. .' o 7,“ ]'_ -‘.. oo ' a * _,_'a:e,

) ' As of June 30, 2024 assets avarlab!e for general expendrture that is, without donor or other
R . restrictions limiting their use, *within one. year of the statement of ﬁnancral posrtron date,
! comprise the fo[lowrng . - :
v " Cash and egurvalents , o '3 7,I16.823
Accounts receivable, net o L 7,438,921
. Investments ) Y - 5,193,750 .
. - * «Due from affiliate . . e " 172,742 o
R Total financial assets . O P 19,822,236 - - . ..z*
R n " Less amounts designated for program purposes = ' (362,965) - &
S A - Total fi nancial assets a\rarlable for general expendrtures $ 19,559,271 . . .
L. S R L o ; A R S
¥t \".. E.l' sty " ;‘*‘ f};‘-:‘:'- b T ‘;-r s - R 'T“..-. R =
5‘ [ : “‘! * ‘7’;;% :,:"- A 1':“ Coeef - I.":";":;"‘ ‘.,! EI * * o .‘ ;- : b w ‘L‘ 1')’!"‘-:‘ .'!r;“l Ia’;’I
e T Rl e e S R e
¢ . f‘. X, P U ! ?_ -‘ -5 ,‘;!t s ‘;;‘: P N T ' :"-‘ N 5"5:'1 ?:, w7
» 4-. .'r-,. L ¥ o ‘:-“ ; t‘- L .:l HER . - -y _“-): ..',‘::“r'i -‘..'l‘

- NFIN has evaluated. subsequenl events through September 30 2024 ‘the date which Ihe J .
financial-statements were available for issue, notmg no events requmng adjustment to, 6r- " ¢

. disclosure in, the frnancral statements, . ¢

v
P - +
+ - .

- d . . . . + L

17 . = . . [
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e A NFI NORTH INC. .
NOTES TO. menmsmrﬁmas
JUNE3D, 2024

As pari of the NFIN s I:qu:drty managenzeml.i!ﬂFlenamieznsmmksng capital hnes of credit, - ™~
-which provides liquidity avaulabie to meei 5genera| expe'nﬁrtmes s, liabilities - and other
Ubllgatron'come due. . B - ey . N .‘ s B

[ 3l - * * H " 4
B K: ¥

NAFI makes avarlab}e to its subsrdranes |nc§udmg NFiN -NA‘FI Connectlcut inc. (NAFICT)

. NFI Vermont, Inc.”(NFIV) and’ NFI Massachusetts Inc. (NFI)>a. two-year term compmitted .
faclllty $8,000,000 line of credit from' TD:Bank. The Hine of credit bears interest a a’

\ i: . fluctuating rate €qual to the Federal Reserve Bank of New*Yotk 1-Month"Secured Overmght y

= """ - Firancing Rate (SOFR), plus 2.00% per. arnum, not to-éxceed 6.00%, (6.00% as of >

* .+ June 30, 2024) Borrowings under the line are jointly guaranteed by NAFI, NAFICT, NFIV,

NFI @nd NFIN and are collateralized by substantially all of thelr assets.

-
< . ] P .

" Botrowings under the line of credit, due and payable on May 31, 2028 without notice or
.demand. As of June 30,- 2024, there were no borrowmgs outstandmg under this line of :

credit. . . ) L Ve . .

. 1.
v e - “h hd ® EERE 4 ..

-

[ -\

W

In- addmon NAFI has entered into Letter.of Credit agreements wﬂh TD for a total amount of i
$959 620, The Letter of Credit’ agreements can be ‘utilized: by all subsidiaties in ‘the - <, -

aggregate of $8 000,000 and are not collateralized by additional cash. The Letler of Credit - )
agreemenis are a requrrement ofNAFI S workers compensatlon carrier, . A o
.'Nore4 INVESTMENTS ' " R " . S ain e - : . . ';«, N e

Bl * LR .
" . 4 3 "’ iy i v

"' v RS, ey -
“woe o oap R 4“

E S Investments are- carrred at Afair value Investments as of: June 30 2024 consasted of the e

I

following: . IS ‘ K . -
ek “ | N > . . . -k
‘-“-.," . I N ,. (A Lo e e
Corporate.bbnds- . _ s “"$ 2629975 ., P
Equmes Loy T TRt e T Y 2,440,923 oo T e
e - Cashandeguivalents . "< .. T e et 22850 0 L L.
oL Lo, e el $ 5193750 . . . T -
Ty ¥ O ——
7 ’.-;-a o “All investments are valtied usmg Level 1 inputs in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, *
K Lo except corporate bonds which are consrdered Level 2, There were no transfers between fair

“. % value levels during the year. . K .
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TIPS NFI NORTH; INC.. 1. b
o ‘NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o, 7.7, JUNE30,2024
?f,,ea g 0 T e e TR ’
NOTE s . LONG-TERM DEBT -

Fnscai‘ C T

:"*': o ~‘w¢ ogw L rj. Wi :_, . Year Due ‘.::_ 'Amount . S
. n ® < . . -5 : N : ‘ Har . ‘_: .
Mortgages payable secured by real estate. 0. 00%-8. 00% . © 2028-2041 ‘s 2535653 - a e
Total long-term debt L Ly weooot b, F % 2536853 0 Tt .
3 -;' BS . ] -}(» R . : - I l L . ‘ o ’.' b
) Less currentportron o T . ; L 3.(182:899) s o
, - " Jotal Iong-term debt, net of current pomon ' ‘ : !""" . $ 2,352, 754 s ;
R e ¥, e . ’ .' I o o * s _' Y ., .r .
. . - - Certain mortgages payable to holsing authontaes provide that a pomon of the principal will o
R be forglven at the end of the loan period if the underlying properties are used to provide T

50 7. +o%. i "housing in accordance with stipulated conditions. In addttlon certain mortgages payable
. e contam various prepayment penaltres ’ . PR

. : o e : st JR- T
: aylom T LT e, R
‘:NFIN'is required to mainlain.certain debt service coverage ratios.. - Tt e e H

T Scheduied repayments of Iong-term debt are as fotlows . L

& ' e "!‘ . . o ‘_. .i‘”m._-\' . e ok
; Year ended June <10 R -

T o 202577 L exo w09 182899 1R
e PRGOS B028 0 T S 87,9200 .
to.o2027 v c,o+ 7 7328180 "t 7

Wl T BT 2028 e foe fh et 462,633 T nr

\ . [ .. . . o eyt Y . ¥ .
Ao L AT 101,673 4 P a3
o ] Thereafter U ‘845,468 . BERE
. . 2 . ' & A EAE GEA * Lres
L UL e oo $ 2535683 . ke
¢ ! . e, Py L T,
I 5.,;_ - "% Interest expense was $98,261 for the.year ended June 30,2024 |« wor © By
“wE . & .‘ pt ,tj ¥ - ) R S - . t s z { v k) . . R E::' W
PR o o i v ! . ) ) ' . . » S :’.{ “
NOTE 6 . LEASES I T 3 B e
NFIN is commmed to annual -payments under several long-term non-cancelable {except ' - ..

-

W

‘under certain circumstances) operatmg leases for property and equipment through fiscal .
. year 2030. | ELE oo t
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B T TNEr NORTH ING. - L

-NOTES TO FINANCIAL sm'rsmsms‘ T T
- ' JUNE30,2024 . . E

P : : \- ¥ ’ ! #--
R P - : . S --.'E LYo ot
o Bk A
a - NOTE 6 LEASES (CONTINUED) .
B . " 4 -Lease expense reporled in occupancy, transpo:zatlon and equipment in the' statement- of ﬁ'f g
) > 1™ functional .expenses- amounted_ to $105 516 Tor ihe year ended June 30, 2024, ,»the -
» components of which-are as follows & ol : T . <5 ‘
‘e ee 42 % " o :s . .k’ o e ! . : 1 L. . '*"- %, g Paopo _:.' & ,«.,l
i ""Lease cost: " T . e - .o
$F + .® o«  Operating lease expense -~ . o, ) 3 8936 T L g Y
P ; e ..‘Short-téf_rh'leas'é expense.’ i | -7 L., 716,200 7 PR
. R = i . . . $ 105516 ) ‘
.': v v ) -{? '-;} - . . ‘ }; W N - o - -;"_ . .
2 Operatmg r:ght~of-use assets exchanged for [ease |iabI|ltIeS dunng 2024 tolaled 528 649
£ "‘_ Wi . ':'l o ,‘ o LA ¥ & ‘;v . . -,,‘
s . Paymenls due’ ‘include” optlons to extend !eases that are reasonably certain through fi scal :
T year 2030 and are summarized below: . oLt . .
- Y < N %3 m T R 4
oo Yearended June 30: S < s *
Bt T 2025, ) "% - 35072 LT e
- i S . o » s
. L5 2026 ¢ ‘ v L 11,489, 0 wre
’ » 2027 SRR & & - I
L2028 . Lo . 6333 - T
MR SRLY(+7.: BT R <. 5865 T, ;.f': e
Thereafter’ . - e .. . 255 R A2
' Less amounts representmg mterest sy o (B.711)°
T Operatmg lease. Iiabilities . \,,'-' L . 3« E 66.4'16 ek
’: ’ a 9"' A * V"' “‘ w . - ! ot : '
B : - DR IRY . - ' ¢ i ; ps
S The we:ghted-average remammg lease term for operatmg leases is 36 months The ' L
T welghted average discount rate for operatmg Ieases |s34?% . I X
N a M ._x 5 . N - ¥ o . . : ¥t ‘}' . " . “-',_ .. ot f T 1 . ”" :s"-‘ v,
i NOTE7 'REVENUE FROM conmncrs WITH CUSTOMERS ¥ W R T
~ " " - Under Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606,” Revenue - from Contracls. with ¢
s Customers, {ASC Topic'806), revenue from conifracts with customers is recognized when " ' .
. ' control of the promised goods or services is transferred in an amount.that reflects the, .
; consideration to which we_expect to be entitied in exchange for those goods or serv:ces (i.e.,
the transaction price). ' ' < - .,
Revenues from contracts are primarily ‘derived from. cost re:mbursemenl per diern and "
% ety feedfor service contracls, Cost reimbursement coptracts are recognized with expenses bexng e
i : Tt - reimbursed for servicés delivered over the course of cllant enroilment peﬂod which’ is :‘_-:".:-.'
AL T generally as expenses are mcurred T R e e e e s T S T
1 (S P T i - - [ . P )
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<" FINORTH, ING - . o
NOTES  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Lo ot st
“JUNE 30, 2024 : )
.“ ‘;;; ay n ﬁ!.\;_ . L te E - “E . Y - 1 1"w . .".‘, "
NOTE? REVENUE FROM commcrs WITH cusrm&szmnmmusm a R RY
Ea ,ETQ Rale based ccmtracts are recognized wnh‘expemses.bemgarmmbursed for services dellvered h i
Pom L _ over the course of client: stay based on-arestablished rate with the related funding source , .

which is generafly when services' are provided. Revenues-from contracts consisted of 23%
for cost reimbursement contracts and 77% for srate-\basedicontracts for the year ended et

June 30, 2024 _ : '_"_.: ; o T
: . Ba!ances of accounts receavable and deferred revenieTelated to contracts with customers s
i are summarlzed below . ) Lo - )
o oo - R © . .. Accounts  Deferred R
Aow Ry A toesttt L LT _Receivable . . Revenue - i
Opening (July ;2023 -* | , “: . = ! .8 4858173 . § 14,932 -
: oyl Closing {June 30, 2024} - : - 7,438,921 149,668 '
e norease T o L . § 2480748 § 134,736 ~
R NOTEB CONTRIBUTED NONFINANCIALASSETS e ) e LB
« For the year ended June 30, 2024, contrlbutlons of nonfnanmal assets recogmzed by NFIN 3‘ e
'::a*;_’.'- wethm {he. statement of actlwtles mcluded R EERE . Lo T
J - . T N T
Roit . o O ey s 1002588 L. e
Consumables and supplies. ~* - ‘. * .+ 62,068

rent consumables and supphes Contributed nonfinancial assets did not have donor- _

. ‘imposed res!r:cttons. e e s e ; S tag
i . Lt s . ) : . v
""» '._'if : .. The contributed space is for programma’uc activities. In valuing the contnbuted space, which-, AP
“PTE e sw . vis located in Concord, New Hampsmre NFIN estimated the fair value on the basis of recent”
. L N ’ comparable rental prices in the area's real estate market. i g -
- NOTE® RETIREMENT PLAN S L
' NFIN has a qualified défined contribution retirerﬁent plan for eligible employees to which -
o annual contributions are made at the discretion of NFIN's Board of Directors. NFIN elected )
- . to make ‘a contribution of $420,346 for. the year.ended June 30, 2024. These expenses are .

i+ included in emp!oyee benefits expense wathm the accompanymg statement of functconal por
expenses . ’ p S . o
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N . NFINORTH; ING, 1 25 R
. NOTES TO FINANCIALSWWEMENTS ! :
S oo JUNE 3072024 .
". ay I : ,.-=3t:r" E ’ .
.:A; S - a . M i ) i ( ’f‘ | ar ¥ ,"51_;1‘“.( -‘n‘:? S% )
Sl NOTE 10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS R :;.,;,* D ' )

e L c; North American Famtty Institute, -[nc."-(NA‘Fat), an affi tlate charges an admlnlstratlve 3 g
s T my management fee for supporting service costs that NAF] incurs on behalf of the subsidiaries. | A
~ . s 7 These allocated costs amounted to $1,841,078for the yéar ended June-30, 2024, and have -~ ©".0 2

N e - been included in supportlng sérvices expensesiinthe accompanylng statements of actlwttes
A S P, and contracted serwces expenses wnthtn the statement of functional expenses. e
o In addltlon NFIN pays NAF| a property charge for usage of certain t‘ xed assets of NAFI, '« &%
. " This charge was $20,502 for the year ended-June 30, 2024, and has been included in the . - :
e accompany:ng statements of actwttles and functtonal expenses. . L E g '
Cost retmbursement overpayments have résulted | ina balance due from NAF! as of-June 30 . ;f_ N
ks © 77 %7+ ,2024 in the amount of $172,742. This amount has been reported as due from affiliate in the = . .
o ) accompanying statement of financial pos:tlon and is expected to be pald in one year
oY " #our, ‘F (’. Wty iF . - ’T?" . ) TR
s NOTE 11 CONTINGENCIES - 1 ¢ 7y . —
T :,-’_A;_,- " - In the normal course of operanons NFIN is SubjECt to the laws and regulatlons of federal * ;
e o state, and’local governments. From time to time, NFIN .may be notified of potential claims or .~

»‘ .. litigation. Management evaluates such clainis if they arisé. NFIN was- riotified that it was - t,;
! P Y 145
PR named a party to an ongoing. Iawsunt The outcome.of the Iawswt is. not yet finalized. t_,t.}; L

:jf > K _.‘, . LTI - :) ‘, % ]
R SR
LYy NFIN has established a reserve of $1, 083 712 for. managements estlmatlon of probable eyt
expenses related to ongoing fitigation. Smce lnformatlon regafdmg the case continues fo "' , %
" evolve, management cont:nues to evaluate and monrtor any potentlal |mpact to the s
\,organlzatton A T S o s e
A TR e L E T e gk O At LI A .
\:, e . LT ey ‘.? LT vE e . ‘e ;‘*: 2 ;'n e Ve as P # ]
5. ' r * ! I Lo i - g o,
w3 SR oL v O IR i E .
.a - . - e!‘;-a “‘_v* : . " . v § 2 R =4
ln'_ﬁ;li . " . -: BEr . et B , . . ¥
i ) : T iad 4 ¥
A 3 L . .
* ~ . * « 3 - ; .
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- .-Reporton Internal Control Over Financial Reporting . e - N

"+ "Board of Directors e co - .

a s v B . &
= B - * 3 Lew ERE AT

¥, v N IR 5 -

" INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT-ONINTERNAL CONTRDL OVER FINANCIAL - ° °.
. REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE ANDIOTHER MATTERSBASED ONANAUDIT .~
3 OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED tN ACCORDANCE WITH - e
- s+ GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS ~, & - - S

q ~ W I ‘— 4
Wi P Tt am . Fal N - Cow R

- ¥ k4 b v
, L . . . N . 7 k3
1‘3‘ i o ‘s.‘ M . +

- o . <
) » 4 e

Al . £ " - * - f R « s K

< NFINorth, Ine. .« . A e
Contoocook, New Hampshire I % 4 '

. . N
~ . T ¥ L .4 i :
. » S O N L
*ox e K - # . a 4 o LR A
" > - LI ' i

We have audited, in accordance with the’ auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
Anmerica and the standards appiicable. to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards ‘
issued by the Comptroller Generai of the United States, the firancial statements of NFI Noith, Inc. (a :
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2024, and the

«, felated statements of activities, functional expenses, and, cash flows for the year then ended, and the 0

- related notes to the financial statements, and have -issued’ our report thereon dated September 30,
2024, . . x E ) - . o

- B +
. " . <L
RS *a P i, - F—
F Wy A . ¥ ® .
PO & . f

-, iln- planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered NFI North,-Inc's - .

A
L3

i

. n-w riternal cantrol,, . - R

"“e‘ hl:t‘;-"%:‘ 3 3'“ i-,‘ i £l P . n 4 ¥

. combination, of deficiencies, in internal control such thal there is a reasonable possibility that a material .o

+ internal control over financial reporting” {intérnal control) as ‘a basis for designing audit pracedures that

.
" ie

- are..appropriate -in the circumistances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financiat | )
‘statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion-on the effectiveness of NFI North, Inc's i
winternal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of NFI North, Inc.’s :

- y vl . D ow

s . : » ) e >

. . a ? e IS o .

- ; T T ¥ L . . » 5 ¥ -
B v 4 PR CI “

“A dficiency in internal conlrol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow .
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned fungtions, to prevent, or g
© detect and correct, misstalements on a timely basis. A material weakness is,.a deficiency, or a

misstatement of the entity's firiancial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, ona® _© %

* timely basis. A significant deficiency is.a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal contro}

that js less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough-to merit attention by those charged

with governance. . , : ;_ C
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this .

section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal contro! that might bé& material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal conlrol that we .consider to be material weaknesses. However, material

-+ .. rweaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. I R .. T v
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K3 e

Board of Dtrectors
NFI North Inc

As pan of oblaining reasonable assurance about whether'NFd Notth Inc. sfi nanc;al statements are free T A
. . from-material misstatement; we performed tesls of its :compliance with certdin provisibns of laws, . -
. “ regulattons contracts, -and grant agreements, noncompliance with ‘which could have a direct and Y

. matenal effect on the financial statements: However, .providing-an opinion -on compltance with those’ 5
’ ) provisiogs was notan objectwe of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express - such an opinion. The- .
:.‘a,n_' reslts. of our tests disclosed no.instances of noncomplianceror, other matters that are requtred to be. N

o repotted under GovernmantAud:tmg Standards T S SR e

‘“ Purpose of this Report . e 'l A A T
. < -The purpose of this report, is. solely to descnbe the scope of our testmg of mterna[ control and . *
© . compliance. and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the .

o . *_ entity's,intemal cdntrol or on compliance. This report is an integral partof an aldit performed in ?»; ’ _
S accordance with Government Aud:tmg Standards tn con5|der|ng the entity's mternal contro[ and-,

. CllftonLarsonAllen LLe - 7 S e ) -
‘ ;qutgn, Massachusett_s L e L e S, e
_+ % September 30, 2024 s
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NFINORTH, INC.
OFFICERS
Title Name Address
Patricia Fillio R I
President Licensed Clinical Mental
: . Health Counselor
Ashley Wainwright
Treasurer Marketing Professional

{| Dellie Champagne

Clerk/Secretary Events
Coordinator/Teacher/Consumer
Representative
~ " BOARD OF DIRECTOR!
Name Qccupgtion

Suanne Nader Educator

Dellie Events :
Champagne Coordinator/Teacher/Consumer
o Representative
Ashley
Wainwright Marketing Professional
| Terry Lochhead

Retired Communications
Consultant

Patricia Fillio
Licensed Clinical Mental

. Health Counselor
Don Nason
Attorney
-Sophia Greabe |
Education

Terms: Until successors are duly elected and qualified. NOTE: No compensation for Members or
Directors As of: 10/21/24
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Noel Chipman
LICENSE
New Hampshire Licensed ]ndependent Clinical Social Worker April 2004
T
EDUCATION _
Masters in Social Work, Simmons Graduate School, Boston MA May 2001
Bachelor of Arts in Sociology, Hartwick College, Oneonta NY May 1997

- PROFESSIONAL WORK EXPERIENCE
Transitional Housing Services, Concord NH January 1, 2012-Present
- Clinical Director responsible for the overall planning, implementation and oversight of the clinical services
provided by NFI North Transitional Housing Services in Concord, Bradford, Bethlehem, Ashland and Manchester.
- Manager and supervisor of the THS Concord day treatment program and its clinical, case management, supported
employment, educational and direct care staff

" - Oversee and provide individual and group therapy to consumers with severe persistent mental illness, found not
guilty by reason of insanity, incompetent to stand trial, sexual offenders and / or folks with other criminal
backgrounds
- Management and assessment of all new referrals for THS locations from New Hampshire Hospital, Community
Mental Health Centers and various designated receiving facilities and arrange evaluations when needed
- Oversee, review and approve the development of individual client centered, strengths based treatment plans
- Facilitate and coordinate clinical trainings for THS staff and agency staff
- Review of clinical records to ensure quality and compliance with state regulations and Joint Commission
standards and provide feedback and training on record keeping
- Provide the schedule and curriculum of 50-60 groups weekly and rotating quarterly as a part of a Restorative
Partial Hospitalization {(RPH) servicing 40 consumers with mental health challenges
- Collaborate with program management and staff regarding the therapeutic milieu and the clinical orientation of
THS
- Facilitate new consumer interviews, quarterly reviews, client centered conferences, family meetings, discharge
meetings and other various meetings with outside providers
- Collaborate with many outside agencies state wide to ensure our THS programs are meeting the needs of our
consumers, other outside agencies and the community at large
- Supervisor for clinicians seeking licensure and graduate student interns
Transitional Housing Services, Concord NH May 2003- January 1, 2012
-Experienced Senior Psychiatric Social Worker; Clinical team leader heading multi-disciplinary treatment team
- Provides therapeutic clinical services for individuals with severe and persistent mental illness
and/ or substance abuse issues, sexual offenders and forensic clients in a rehabilitative partial hospitalization
program
-Provides individual, family, group and milieu therapy
-Completes comprehensive psychosocial assessments, risk assessments, individual treatment plans and eligibility
determinations and assists with writing policy
-Facilitates and manages client centered conferences and quarterly review meetings
-Leader of interdisciplinary treatment team that meets daily to insure proper treatment and aftercare planning for
difficult to reach clients
-Awareness of legal issues including guardianships, court orders, probate commitments, conditional discharges
and revocations, which often require court appearances and testimony
-Supervision of treatment team case managers and student interns
-Hllness management and recovery train the trainer .
Maui Memorial Medical Center, Kahului, HI June 2005-January 2006
-Psychiatric Social Worker: Provides services for adults with severe mental illness and / or substance abuse issues
and forensic patients on a short-termn inpatient psychiatric unit
-Comprehensive psychosocial assessments, treatment plans / education plans, substance abuse screening, daily
treatment team meetings and discharge meetings
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-Provide crisis intervention, individual therapy, family therapy and daily life skills groups

-Case Management service / discharge planning

Souza-Baranowski Correctional Center, Shirley MA -2001-2003
-Diagnostic assessment crisis intervention, suicide prevention and 1:1 psychotherapeutic and substance abuse
services to adult male inmates in a maximum security setting

-Comply with and adhere to institutional safety procedures in accordance with UMCHP / DOC established policies
-Case management / discharge planning

-Mental health representative for the Department of Corrections transition planning meetings

-Daily triage and segregation rounds

-Leader of a student intern support group

-Supervision of Student Interns

McLean Hospital Belmont, MA (Graduate School Internship) 2000-2001
-Case management / clinical work on an adult inpatient psychiatric unit

-Daily patient rounds, psychosocial assessments and 1:1 psychotherapeutic services

-Group therapy Co-Leader; Adult woman outpatient eating disorder group

-Ongoing collaboration with outpatient treaters, community residences, partial hospital / day treatment programs,
family work and completion of treatment plans

Mass. Eating Disorder Association Newton, MA (Graduate School Internship) 2000-2001
-Assessments, group intakes, family / individual consultations, and school based prevention presentations
-Evening treatment program, meal mentoring program and Co-Leader of various program groups

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

- Certified Life Coach with a specialty in Organizational and Time Management Skills
- Certified Signs of Suicide Prevention and Programming (SOS) Trainer

- ANSA Certification

- Toastmasters International Speechcraft Certificate Program

- NFI Leadership Program: Completed six month program in 2014

- Certified lllness Management and Recovery Practitioner and Trainer

- Certified Supported Employment Practitioner

- Certified DBT Practitioner

- Agency trainer for Family Systems, Group Process and Counseling Skills
- NFI North Conference Presenter 2013 and 2015

- NAFI Spirit of the Community Committee

- Certified Public Supervisor: Completed one-year program in june 2008
- Former NHH Assaulted Staff Action Program responder

- Former NHH Schwartz Center Rounds committee member

- Former NHH Ethics Committee member

AWARDS / RECOGNITIONS

- NFI North Agency Shining Star Award (2015)

- NFI North Agency Dr. Yitzhak Bakal Essence of Leadership Award (2013)
- Two-time gold star award winner (2009 and 2011)

- Special recognition award winner (2005)
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Jennifer L. Altieri

Objective

Key Skills and Strengths
L eadership — Adept at leading/managing cross-functional programs.
*System building and implementation
Capable of leading high performing teams under tough deadlines, to meet expectations
of multiple stakeholders and other regulatory entities.
+Stronig commuiication gkills (Verbal and written).
*Problem solver — Creativity and forethought in solving complex project issues.

o _ . - }}f

A motwated professional seeking a posifion that continues to eithiance my skills and

challenge further growth and development while providing leadership to plan, direct and
coordinate program expansion, program oversight and system impqu_neqtanom

Masters of Science, Clinical Mental Health Counseling v :ﬁr an addictions freatment’

C'erfzf cate, ‘Plymouth State Umvers:ty, Plymouth N.H. Accredlted by the Counsel for

Accreditation of Counseling and Related Educational Programs (CACREP) Graduation date, December 1,
of2015. GPA 3.75

Bachelor of Science, Human Services/Counseling, Lyndon State College, 2002

Professional Experience

‘Reglonal Divector, NFI North 1 2/2@22-’ Cuirrent

Responsible for oversecing the administration of assigned programs. Provide leadership, supervision, guidance, and
cliritcal support. Responsible for commanicating all policies and procedures, contenet negotistions'and developnient,

*fiscal planning and ont-call availability.

Care Management Entity Administrator, NFI North 1/2021-12/2022

Responsible for overseeing the aduunistration of all programs of the Care Management Entity (CME) that
serves:as a centralized accountability hub to coordinate all care for youth with complex behavioral health
challenges who are involved in muitiple systems. The CME Administrator provides leadership, supervision,
gnidance, and clinical support to programs and staff. Responsible for communicating all policies and
procedures, contract negotiations and development, fiscal planning and on-call availability.

Progvam Divector, NEI North FAST Forward and Tr-ECC State Wide 2017-1/202]1 Oversee program
operations for two separate entities. One providing a Certified Wraparound model to children, youth and
families ages 5-21. The other entity providing intensive transitional services to Résidential-and psychiatric
hospitalized children, youth and families.

Program Dirvector, NFI North FAST Forward and Comniunity Based Services, State Wide 2017-2020.
Oversee programn operations for two separate entifies. One providing a Certified Wraparound model to
children, youth and families ages 5-21. The other entity provides intensive therapeutic services through
clinicians and case managers through two different New Hampshire certified programs serving 0-21 years
of age. Individual service option and Foster care as well as Home Based Therapeutic Services.
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Program Director, NFI North transitional housing, Maple Lodge, Bethlehem New Hampshire. And Array
of Services, Community Based, and January 2016-2017,

Transferred to manage a residential program and pervasively mentaily ill adults. Included a staff 1eam of 10
+ and an annual budget. Responsible for all clinical and programmatic operations, including intake,
discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal management, hiring and terminating of staff, record
keeping; training, marketing, licensing foster homes and supervision of staff,

Intera, NFI North Transitional Housing—Concord January 2015-December 2015
Currently completing a 600 hour internship and providing individual therapy to three
consumers at THS and co-facilitated many groups to include; morning community
meeting, arl therapy, wellness recovery actin plan, fitness, substance abuse, seeking
safety, vocational group, and community livings skills support group and coping skills. I
am currently facilitating Illness Management and Recovery group and Wellness
Recovery and Action Plan group. Competent in navigating the legal systems of
Consumers to include the NGRI status, incompetent to stand trial and scx offenders.
Knowledgeable around diagnosis of psychotic disorders.

Program Director, NFI North Array of Services. Davenpori School and ISO Services 2009-January 2016
Promoted to manage a residential program and school and community based services for emotionally
disturbed adolescents. Included a staif team of 25 + and an annual budget. Responsible for all clinical and
programmatic operations, including intake, discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal
management, hiring and terminating of staff, record keeping, training, marketing, licensing foster romes
and supervision of staff.

Program Director, NFI, Northern New Hempshire Youth Services, Bethlehem, N.H.- 2008-2009
Promoted to manage an intermediate level treatment facility for emotionally disturbed adolescents.
Inchided a staff of 15+. Responsible for all clinical and programmatic operations, including intake,
discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal management, hiring and terminating of staff, record
keeping, training and supervision of staff.

Assistant Program Director; NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem, N.H-June 2004-
2008 '

Responsible for assisting the Program Director in the overall functioning and operation of the program,
including administrative tasks, staff supervision, group/individual counseling and crisis intervention,

Shift Supervisor; NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem, N.H.- January 2002-June
2004. -

Responsible for the supervision of assigned direct care staff and program consumers for designated shift.

Residentizl Counselor; NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem, N.IL- October 2060-
January 2002.

Modeled appropriate behavior and social skills for adolescent girls in a residential sefting, Includes (asks
such as monthly reports, writing daily progress notes and having continuous contact with guardians.

Professional Development

= NH Disaster Behavioral health Response Teams Basic Training
The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) has developed an
organized {eam of behavioral health providers to respond to the mental healih needs of New
Hampshire residents following disasters (e.g., bioterrorism, man-made or natural disasters)

»  PREPaRE: School Crisis Prevention and Intervention Training
The PREPaRE curriculum has been developed by the National Association of School
Psychologists (NASP) as part of NASP’s decade-long leadership in providing evidence-based
resources and consultation related to school crisis prevention and response. PREPaRE (raining is
ideal for schools committed to improving and stréengthening their school safety and crisis
management plans and emergency response.
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*  Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) Coordinator for NFI North. Responsible for PREA
implementation, policy making and training of staff. Agency trainer utilizing NFI North’s
curriculn I eo-train staff on professional boundaries, Treatment Intervention, Family systéms,
and documentation skills. Also, designed and presented at NFI North’s annual conference on
“Girls finding their voice® and “Marketing your services.”

= Jliness, Management and Recovery Currently being trained and will obtain a 16 hour
certification on this evidence based training.

.= Supported Employment 2 day certification

= Medication training

*  Trauma Informed peer support training by SAMHSA one day training developed for the
National Center for Trauma Informed Care

= CADY (conununities for alcohol and drug free youth) active panel member for Grafton county’s
restorative justice expansion program.2013-cusrent

= Grant Awarded through the Building Bridges Initiative and Transition To Permanency Project.
Focused around Family Diiven and Youth Guided Treatment.

= Grant writing workshops, NFI, Northem New Hampshire Youth Services and The North

Conntry consortium,

Suicide Prevention Conference, YSPA of NH.

Certified in Child and Adolescent Needs Scale (CANS)
Science Implementation

NH Wraparound

Membership/Affiliation

s Member of American Counseling Association (ACA) Currentiy Expired

*  National Certified Counselor (NCC) NBCC’s flagship eredential, the National Certified
Counselor (NCC) recognizes counselors who voluntarily apply and successfully complete rigorous
standards. These standards are based on research in the counseling profession. The NCC is the
prerequisite for all NBCC specialty certifications Currently not veinstated

*  Certified as a Human Services- Board Certified Practitioner (HS-BCP) by the Center of
Credentialing and Education and the National Orpanization of Human Services.

= Inducted into Plymouth State University’s Upsilon Pi, which is a chapter of Chi Sigma Tota -
(CSI), which is an international counseling honor society,

= Board Panel Member with IOD/NAMI to approve Certifications for all NH Wrap Coordinators,

Awards/Recognition
s Scholarship Awarded throngh National Board for Certified Counselors to further my education
at Plymouth State University. Scholarship awarded was $5,000.00. .
Nominated and selected as one of the 40 under forty recipients for New Hanipshire (2014).
Dr. Yitzhak Bakal Essence of Leadership award (2010)
Courage to.Grow Award (2001)
Shining Star (2014).
Spirit of community award NFI'NAFI (2019)
Recognition for volunteering time to missions trips to Nicaragua (2006) and Africa (2008.)
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BUILDING PERSONAL AND PROFESSIONAL RELATIONSHIPS
DEVELOPING STRONG WORKPLACE CULTURE

ABILITY TO SEE THE GLASS HALF FULL

CLINICALLY SOUND IN DIAGNOSIS AND TRAUMA

HIGHLY ORGANIZED - MULTITASKER

GRITTY AND COMPETITIVE

POLICY AND PROPSOAL WRITING

'OPEN TO FEEDBACK AND GROWTH

FISCALLY SAVY

RESPONSIVE

OPERATING OFFICER
NFINORTH, BRIDGTON, MAINE
February 2024-Present

Provide oversight to all agency operations for NFTNothi. Ensure the overall
mission, vision, and policies ofthe agencyare followed. Dutizs mclude the
multi-million-dollar, fiscal management of 26 individual prograins i two
states, mcludingmultiple residential, five schools, and both child and adult
community outreach, Foster Care, Wraparound; and Case Management
services. Chaitperson and facilitator of monthly clinical meetings, ensuring
the fidelity of the nofmative approach and otherclmical madalities are
followed. Program development and strategic planining as part ofthe
Administrative Team, and in conjuncture with Statewide Partnerships.
Uphold all licensing regulations and Jont Commission Standards fncluding
DEB mitiatives. Provide direct oversight to the Directorof HR and the HR
department melnding the hiring, onboarding, and traiming of staff Provide
direct oversight to the Director of Developmeit and Marketing and the
recent rebranding initiative for the agency. Mentorleadership team
members, inchiding Regional Divectors foreach state of ME and NH,
providing supervision, coaching, and guidance as needed. Champion all
program participants, familisd, and connected team members for
successfil treatment outcomes.

REGIONAL DIRECTOR
NFENORTH, BRIDGTON, MAINE
November 1956-2024

Provide.oversight to all program operations i the State of Maine. Ensure the
_overallmission, vision, and policies ofthe agency are followed. Duties
inclnde the muiti-million-dollar, fiscal management of15 individual

programs, including residential, four schools, and both child and adult
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commuaity outreach, Chairperson and facilitator of monthlyclinical
- - development meetings, ensuring the fidelity of the normative approach and
S other clinical modalities are followed. Program development and strategic
planningas part ofthe Administrative Team, and in conjuncture with
Statewide Partnerships. Uphold all icensing regulations and Joint
Comeission Standands mcluding DEIB initiatives. Mentor leadership team
members providing supervision, coaching, and gridance as needed.
Champion all program participants, families, and connected team members
for successfil freatment outcomes.

PROGRAM DIRECTOR
NFI NORTH, LEWISTON, MAINE
APRIL 1992-NOVEMBER 1996

Provide oversight for all program operations for Dirigo Place, a 7-bed
propram for adolescents inneed. Duties mcluded start up activities
including policy writig, facility construction oversight, and the hiring and
onboarding of staff Oversight ofall clinical and educational programming
' Build community parinerships with stakeholders and development offocal
. s , Adwvisory Board. Work in collaboration with local psychiatric hospital and
N/ .
% De-dic-atlon ) : . contracted psychiatrist to ensure clinical success. Lead weekly

. 2 - ' management, staff. and community meetings. Maintain phiysical plant

‘:’ Enlpathy accordmgto MSHA and State Fire Marshaliregulations.
o< Resilience

!
:
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i
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!
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% Trust

MASTERS OF SCIENCE IN MENTAL HEALTH COUNSELING
UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN MAINE
1991-1995

BACHELOR OF ARTS IN COMMUNICATIONS - PSYCHOLOGY
: : e e UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN MAINE
C | o ) 1980—1985

Resident Assistant in the First CO-ED Dorm on Campus
1981-1984

Trainer in the following topic areas:

< Nomnative Community Approach
% Safe Altematives For Everyone
s : g ** Supervisory Skills

. : L ' < Tauna hionned Meaningful Engagement

| ( » Counseling Skills
; ' % Group Process
% Documentation Skills-Evaliation Writing

Recent Trainings Attended:
<+ NAFIConference: Presentation Skills, Public Speaking 2023
*+ Boston National Tiawnsz Conference 2022
AL _ *  Work Humnan, Driving Workplace Culture by Leveraging Recognition
R . P 2023 __
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Awards and Recognition

g

!

Best Place to Work in Maine (20018-2023)
NFINORTH Remarkable Role Model 1999
NFINORTH Yitzhak BakalIeadership 2011 -
NAFI Individual Spirit of Community 1997

e

*

L. )
".0 .‘0

Professional Memberships and Assignments

-
.‘O

Child and Family Provider Network Member 28 years
Secretary, 1 year ' ’

Vice President, 3 years

President, 12 years

.
C.’

3

o

*
..0

Youth Juvenile Justice TaskForce 2018-2019
Families First Implementation Member 2019-2022
Legislative Advocacy - ongoing

. )
o

3

*8
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'KRISTI VAZIFDAR |

FINANCIAL EXPERTISE PROFILE
» Financial Reporting e A dynamic team leader who leverages positive energy, humor and
+ Cash and Credit Management keen intelligence to inspire, motivate, and guide team merbers to
s Budget Creation and Analysis optimal success.
s Payroll Management e Respected financial professional, with a proven record of success
«  Strategic Planning driving operations for growth and maximizing cost efficiency.
v Financial Training and e Insightful and ethical MBA experienced with strategic planning for,
Management and management and analysis of, multi-million dollar budgets.
» Accounts Payable and
Receivable

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

NFI, North, Inc., Contoocook, NH, FEBRUARY 2016 — PRESENT

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Reporting to CEQ, principal financial leader responsible for overall financial management of the organization’s 18
million dollar annual operating budget in our sixteen programs across Maine and New Hampshire and managing a
staff of 5. Provides critical oversight over each aspect of financial operations including budget creation and
management. :

i

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center at Community Council, Nashua, NH, DECEMBER 2015 —FEBRUARY 2016

INTERIM FINANCE MANAGER
Reporting to CEQ, principal financial leader responsible for overall financial management of the organization’s 13
million dallar annual operating budget serving Hillsborough County and managing a staff of 10.

Key Accomplishments:
e Provided program analysis to advise on future direction of resources,

* Manage accounting and finance issues including monthly close, revenue recognition and analysis, policy
interpretations, balance sheet reconciliations and daily productivity of all finances.

e Consolidated business team to save approximately 18% of departmental personnel costs.

Star Island Corperation, Porismouth, NH, 2009 — MAY 2015

FINANCE DIRECTOR .
Reporting to CEOQ, principal financial leader responsible for overall financial management of the organization’s 3.5
million dollar annual 6perating budget serving 4000 visitors annually. Manage 2 full time seasonal employees and
additional financial supervision of 5 seasonal employees,

Key Accomplishments:
* Prepare and manage the annual budget and all financial reports as needed by the CEC, Finance Committee
and Board of Directors.

e Manage accounting and finance issues including monthly close, Accounts Receivable, Accounts Payable,
policy interpretations, balance sheet reconciliations and daily productivity of all finances.
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* KRISTI VAZIFDAR

Prepare financial statements-and reporting for CEO, Finance Committee and Board of Directors; including
monthly reconciliation of revenues and expenses, with appropriate variation explanations and analysis.

Critically evaluate new, or renewal contracts and annual corperate insurance policies for appropriateness.
Key contributor of 3 year (2011 — 2013 and 2014 — 2016) strategic plans, authoring the financial tactics.

Developed and executed a weekly matrix to analyze payroll for 110 seasonal hourly staff to successfully keep
seasonal salaries under budget for the past three years saving $30,000 plus annualiy.

Introduced seascnal weekly budget meetings with Department Heads to share updated financial information
and collaborate on seasonal budget management.

Created and implemented internal control and purchasing procedures.

Manage preparation and fieldwork for annual external audit process.

Star Island Corporation, Portsmouth, NH, 2004 — 2008

BUSINESS & FINANCE MANAGER
Promoted to leadership role supporting all accounting and financial aspects of mainland and on island offices.

- Key Accomplishments:

Created and implemented Finance Handbook as a guide for staff and Finance Committee.

Analyzed seasonal payroll and daily rate compensation structure, impiemented time clocks to pay
nonexempt seasonal staff per hour saving 5% annually on seasonal payroll.

Leadership and day-to-day management of seasonal on island stores {book shop and lobby shop) purchased
all inventory, managed staff and all inventory controls.

Compile detailed information to prepare and submit regulatory filings for town, state, federal.
Ensured compliance with audit standards and proper revenue recognition.

Staff liaison to Finance Committee.

Star Island Corporation, Portsmouth, NH, 2000 ~ 2003

ACCOUNTANT
Hired to process Accounts Payable and Payroll reporting to the Executive Director

Key Accomplishments:

Assessed all accounting procedures and eliminated the need for external accounting firm.
Implemented-cash management protocols to eliminate overdrafts and fees.

Researched, purchased and implemented new accounting software and revised General Ledger account
structure for efficiency.

Advised creation of Purchasing Agent position to consolidate staff workload and maximize productivity.

Wolf Coach Company {acquired by L3 Communications}, Auburn, MA,
ACCOUNTANT, 1997 - 1959
OFFICE ASSISTANT, 1995 - 1997
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COMPUTER SKILLS
Highly skilled in Excel, Proficient in MS Office including PowerPoint, Microsoft Dynamics-Great
Plains and Management Reporter, Blackbaud Financial Edge, Fund EZ Accounting, Paychex
Paylink and Paychex Online Payroll, Apprentice level in Evolv and LWSI
Previous experience in QuickBooks Pro, and Peachtree Accounting (now Sage)

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT & VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE
Leadership Seacoast, Member Board of Directors June, 2015 — PRESENT;
) Treasurer September, 2016 - PRESENT
Leadership Seaccast, Admissions Committee, 2014 - PRESENT
Leadership Seacoast, Program Graduate, 2013
4H, Judge for various competitions, 2013 — 2015
Barrington NH PTA 2011-2015

EDUCATION
‘Master of Business Administration, Southern New Hampshire University
Graduate Certificate in Accounting, Southern New Hampshire University
Bachelor of Arts, Political Science, University of New Hampshire
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ABOUT ME

Experienced nonprofit leader in behavioral health and disability service systems
and pfogram operations. Currently serving as the Executive Director of NFI North
overseeing the administration of agency operations, programs, strategic planning,
and ensuring the organization adheres to the agency mission and vision while
meeting financial objectives. Adept at fostering relationships with key
stakeholders, including board members, state partners, team members, and
participants. Well-rounded professional with experience in both operational,
administrative and financial operations, and driven by a focus on mission and
values. An effective communicator with the ability to translate complex
organizational goals into actionable plans, | am proud to bring visionary
leadership, operational excellence, and strategic insights to the NFI North
Executive Director position.

SKILLS &
ABILITIES

s Leadership & Organizationat Development
* Financial Acumen )
« Analytical Problem Solver

PROFESSIONAL
EXPERIENCE

NFI NORTH
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR January 1, 2024 - Present

Provide leadership and overall management for agency administration including
operations, finance, and strategic planning, working closely with the Board of
Directors. Responsible for ensuring the successful operation of agency programs
serving individuals through the life continuum. Collaborate with the Board of
Directors, agency management, business office operations, and key stakeholders
to achieve and maintain fiscal and programrhatic excellence.

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER: April 2021 - December 2023

Oversee the program operations of Maine and New Hampshire services, as well as
IT and health record operations. Ensure agency compliance with Joint
Commission accreditation and standards, as well as state contractual
requirements. Support agency strategic plan goals and execution. Represent NFI
North with numerous stakeholders and state agencies, cultivating positive
relationships. Supervise program expansion and development opportunities.
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UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS, UNH INSTITUTE ON DISABILITY, START PROGRAM

July 2019 - April 2021
Provided operational and financial leadership for national START MH/IDD program
consultation, research, and program development.

MHMR TARRANT TX
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER, DISABILITY SERVICES

November 2005 - June 2019

Beginning as a case manager, progressively assumed leadership roles culminating
in a Chief Operations role for Disability Services for Texas® second-largest
community mental health center (CMHC), serving over 4000 people monthly in
residential and community-based programs.

EDUCATION

ANDERSON UNIVERSITY — PH.D CANDIDATE IN LEADERSHIP AND
ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Doctoral student in the Center for Leadership and Organizations with research
interests in organizational commitment and antecedent factors, leadership
empathy, mindfulness, and emotional intelligence factors.

Expected graduation: May 2025
UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS SYSTEM — MASTER OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION
Graduate business program with a focus on economics and analytics

TEXAS STALI"E UNIVERSITY — BACHELORS DEGREE IN PSYCHOLOGY

Major in psychology; minor in criminal justice

VOLUNTEER &
COMMUNITY
ACTIVITIES

TOWN OF HENNIKER,NH — BUDGET ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Member of the Budget Advisory Committee reporting to the Board of
Selectpersons. The role includes financial analysis and recommendations to the
Board regarding the annual town budget prior to the town vote.

HENNIKER YOUTH ATHLETICS — COACH

Volunteer coach for youth baseball and basketball. -

Page 2

Luke Reynard
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PROFILE

* Motivated; determined, personable business professional, who s
dedicated, §§é3§§eat and focused; Problem soiver who is able to prioritize and
mu!:?)ie task; follow through in achieving }goais and very much a risk taker,
» Diptomatic and {actful within both a professional and non-professional
setting: willing and able be introspective, assist others in buifding positive
relationiships with those we serve and colleagues at all arganizational levels.
s Accustomned to handling sensitive, confidential records; able to
demonstrate documenting according to accuiracy, and In a timely manner.

= Flexible and versatile team player open to learning new concepts quickly
while working well under pressure, and communicating ideas clearly and
effactively.

= Strong leader praviding reguiar supervision, encouragement and teaching
skills to staff membaers.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Program Director

June 2021 - Present
NFl North Community Based Services

Responsible for all clinical and programmatic operations, Including intake,
discharge, counseling, service/discharge plang, fiscal management, hiring and
terminating staff, marketing, snd licensing of foster homes,

Real Estate Agent
April 2021-Present

Caron's Gateway Real Estate

Gathers, provides, and expiains details of current market conditions, pricing,
tegal requirements, and simifar information. Assists selling clients w‘[iﬁ pricing
based on current market vakees. Assists clients with staging properties for
sale; hosts open houses and other promotional events,

Program Director
April 2016 Jung 2021
o NFi North Array of Services; Davenport School and Residential Treatment
; o . Facility

SL Juhn;‘ghun{‘.,»v HSin HusmnScnlms s Promoted 1o rranage a residential program and school for at-risk youth o
N Y S include a staff team of 20+ employees. Responsible lor all clinical and
pragrammatic operations, including intake, discharge, counseling,
service/discharge plans, fiscal managemaent, hiring and terminating staff,
marketing. and licensing of foster homes

R
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PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE CONT'D

Program Assistant Director
July 2013~ April 2016 -

NFi North Array of Services; Davenport School and Residential Treatment
Facility .

Suppaort the Program Director In overall program operations. Oversee house
management and ensure safety of bullding and vehiglés (supply ordering,
maintehance delegation and complete regular inspections). Actively engage
with clients and'staff to promote healthy relationships between.
managemant, direct care staff and clients Responsible for staff supervision

antt coordinstion of staff tralfing

Shift Supervisor, Direct Care Counselor, Teacher's Aide
September 2007-July 2013 :
NEI North Country Sheiter

Provide therdpeutic intervention services to cients using ndividual and group
reatment. Help coordinidte and implement the curricdlum for special
education teaching, following through with students 1EP's, Responsible. for
the supervision of stafi and overseelng milieu,

Owner/Manager
April 1989-Present
TANSUN Place Restaurant/Catering

‘Managed the gverall performance of food service facllity and kitehien
operations for sinteen years; directing the recrultment, interviewing, hiring,
tralning, motivationand evalustion of staff. Continues 1o cater on an
individual basis,

w i et

o e g
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.
Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: NFI North, Inc.

2

t¥

Executive Director

Luké Reyr;a‘rd

$108,000.00

Jill Allen ) Chief Operating Officer $0.00 $168,500.00
Kristi Vazifdar Chief Financial Officer $0.00 $151,000.00
Jennifer Altieri NH Regional Director $21,800.00 $131,000.00
Deborah Weeks Assistant Regional Director " $18,300.00 $110,000.00
Noel Chipman Clincial Director $19,500.00 $116,500.00
TBD Program Director $87,000.00 $87,000.00

TBD Program Director $87,000.00

$87,000.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

Loti A. Weaver
Commwisisaer 603-271-5544  1-500.8%52-3345 Ext. 9844
7 Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1.800-735-2964 www.ghhs.nh.gov
Katja 5, Fox
Dieector
May 1, 2024
His Excellency, Govemnor Christopher T. Sununu
‘and the Honorable Council
State House 7
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with NF1 Narth, Inc. (VC#177575-
B001), Contoocook, NH, to continue to provide transitional housing services for adults who have
severe mental illness or severe and persistent mental iliness, by exercising a contract renewal
option by increasing the price limitation by $3,428,800 from $10,852,600 to $14,281,400 and by
extending the completion date from June 30, 2024 to June 30, 2025, effective July 1, 2024 upon
Govemor and Council approval. 1,.5% Federal Funds. 98.5% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on July 15, 2020, (item #16),
as amended on September 23,2020, (item #15), and most recently amended on June 15, 2022,
(item #23).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2025, upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjustbudget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between statefiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-092.922010-41170000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

State ' increased
Class / Job Current Revised
Fiscal Class Title A {Decreased)
Year Account Number Budget Amount Budget
Contracts .
2021 § 102-500731 for Prog Sve 92204117 | $2,582,800 §0| $2,582,800
' [ Contracts -
2022 | 102-500731 for Prog Sve | 92204117 | $1,897,000 $0| $1,897000
Contracts !
‘2023 102-500731 for Prog Sve 02204117 1 $2,997,000 $01 $2,897,000
" .{ Contracts
2024 | 102-500731 for Prog Sve 82204117 | $3,375,800 $01 $3,375800
2025 | 102-500731 | Contracs | grn04117 $0 | $3,375,800 | $3.375,800
for Prog Svc
Subtotal | $10,852,600{ $3,375,800 | $14,228,400
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His Exceliency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councl
Page20f3

\
05—95-092-922010-41200000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH
SERV’ICES, MENTAI. HEALTH BLOCK GRANT

[ P

State T TIncreased | o
| Fiscal Ac::l:::ril Class Title '. N:r::dr g::e:: {Decreasad) ::::“': :
Year . “ g " Amount ge
| 2025 | 102-50073¢ | CONVACtS for | 004120 $0 $53,000 |  $53,000
‘ Prog Svc | ‘ | )
SN Subtotal so| 53000 $53,000|
S 1 Total | $10,852,600 | $3,428,800 [ $14,281,400

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Saurce because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
prewously approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. The Contractor has capacity
to provide a 76-bed transitional housing program and has expemse with providing targeted mental
health services.

The purpose of this requést is for the continued operation of a transitional housing program
for adults who have sévere mental iliness (SMI) or severe and persistent mental illness (SMPI)
and are el:glble for community mental heatth services at a Community Mental Health Center, as
defined in New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 401; and who no longer meet the Ievel of
care provided by New Hampshire Hospllal or- Dessgnated Receivmg Faciiities. .

Approximately 100 mdwndua!s will be served during State Fisca! Year 2025.

Individuals aged 18 years and older, who participate in the transitional housing program,
will continue to receive the necessary services to support and promote rehabilitation that
facilitates a transition to independent living in the community. The Contractor will continue
providing a 76-bed transitional housing program as well as offering psychiatric, clinical and
medical services, medication management, targeted case management, specialized and co-

" occurring treatment services, vocational and day treatment services, and support for community
connectedness and family involvement, - -

The Depanmenl will contlnue to monttor contracted services by reviewing monthly and
quarterly reports, annual Adult Needs and Strengths Assessments, and individual service
encounter data provided by the Contractor. 5

_ As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Prowsnons. of the original
agreement, the parties have the optlon to extend the agreement for up to four (4) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services; available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for one
(1} of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, transitional houslng program
beds will .-no longer be available to individuals, in need of transitional residential treatment
services, who are transmomng from New Hampshire Hospital or-a designated receiving facility to
the eommumty which, in tum, limits the availability of beds for individuals awalllng mpauent
hospital services across the State. -

b4
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His Excellancy. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
- and the Honorable Councit
Pege daf 3

Area served: Statewide,

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.858, FAIN #1BOSSM089640

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer ava;lable additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.
Respactfully submitted,

-

“F" Lori A, Weaver "
. Commissioner

The Department of Heolth and Human Services' Mission is lo join communities and families
in providing opportunities for ¢itizens to achieve health and independence.

Fl
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- State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Transitional Housmg Programs contract is by and between the State of New
- Hampshire, Depariment of Health and Human Services ("State” or “Department”) and NFI North, Inc. ('the
Contractor”).

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the “"Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
“.on July 15, 2020, (item #16), as amended on September 23, 2020, (item #15), and most recently amended

on June 15, 2022, (item #23), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and

conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council, and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
m the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Prowswns Btock 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2025

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$14,281,400 )

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Serwces Section 1.23.7, to read;

1.23.7. The Contractor shall ensure successful transition to mdependent housing by providing
support to individuals and landlords after discharge, until a warm handoff is completed
with the Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) HBSP housing specialist.

- 4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:
S 1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. - 0.3% Federal funds, Mental Health Block Grant, as awarded on October 13, 2023, by
the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, ALN 93.958, FAIN #
. 1B09SMOBSB40. -

1.2. 99.7% General funds.
5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3.4. lead in paragraph only, o read:

3.4. For individuals without health insurance or other coverage for the services they receive, and
for operational costs contained in Exhibit C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-5, Amendment 3, SFY
2025 Budget, for which the Contractor cannot otherwise seek reimbursement from™ an
insurance or third-party payer, the Contractor will directly bill the Department to access
contract funds provided through this Agreement, -

8. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 4 to read:

4. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved line items as specified
in Exhibit C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-5, Amendment 3, SFY 2025 Budget.

7. Add Exhibit C-5, Amendment #3, SFY 2025 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by

reference herein.
CS

NFI North, Inc. . A-8-1.3 Ccntraq}%w&l.ﬁq
55-2021-DBH-03-TRANS-01-A03 Page 10f3 ' Date
v7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contraqt and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain in
full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their han&s as of the date written helow,

. . -} State of New Hampshire )
v Department of Health and Human Services

’ ) .Dw.u!lg.ntdhr: ’ I ! N )
T 5/2/2024 Eﬂa S. Fep .

[EIRRAEY

Date E _ _ Name: Katja 5. Fox
' e Title: Director
. "NFI North, Inc.
' = Doﬂis_w.h:
5/2/2024 : @L(, g:lw‘!,
‘ SE,
Date Name:tuke Reynard I
- : Title: .

Executive Director

_NFI North, Inc. A-5-1.3

- 58-2021-DBH-03-TRANS-01-A03 ] Page 2 of 3
v, 7.12.23
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[

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and

execution,

5/8/2024

Date

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSigas by:
TARTMBLA04 1480

Name: rRobyn Guarine
Title:

Attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of

the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on:

o

Date

[

NF1 North, Inc.

55-2021-DBH-03-TRANS-01-A03
v. 7.12.23

(date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Name:
Title:

A-5-1.3
Page 3oi 3
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
- DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
‘ DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH
Lol A Shibtaer * 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH ‘0330(

-

Comminloger - 6032719544  1-800-852:3345 Ext. 9544 : C
- Fax: 603-171-4333 TDD Accesy: 1-800-735-2964 www.dkhs.nh.goy ’
Kags S Fos
Direetor 5 :
P | . May 23,2022
. His Excellency, Govemnor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council , .
) State House ) ' L S
i Concord, New Hampghire 03301 _ . :
; . REQUESTED ACTION

. Autharize the Oepartment of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,

to amend an existing.contract with NF| North, Inc. (VC#177575-B001), Contoocook, NH, to

continue to provide transitional housing services for adults who have severe mental lliness or

severe and persistent menta) illness, by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the

e price limitation by $8,372,800 from $4,479,800 to $10,852,600 and extending the completion date

. from June 30,.2022 to June 30, 2024, effactive upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
' General Funds. o :

The original contract was approved by Goverior and Councit on July 15, 2620. item #16

and most recently amended with Govemor and Council appreval on September 23, 2020, item
s . y ' :

. Funds are available In' the following account for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anficipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
. appropriation of funds in the future.operating budgat, with the authority to adjust budget lineitems . -
" within the prics limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,

f needed and justified. ‘ .

. 05-96-092-922010-41170000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

! HUMAN 'SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT .

4 ‘%;E!. Ait—‘:z':t | | Class Title | N:;ger : g:g;:: _ (%?E}F’l g?;zg
'2021°"| 102:500731 c}’,’;ﬁ.’?‘éﬁ;"’ e2204117 | $2582.800 80 $2:582800
2022 | 102-500751 C%r;g;csti tor o2204117 | $1:897.000| © 80 | $1,897.000 |
2023 | 102:500731 'c?;::gacét;or 62204117 | 50| 52997000 $2997.000 |
2024 | 102500731 C‘,’,‘;L’g%if’ szz04117 | $0| $3375800| $3.375,800

: , Total | $4,476,800 | $6,372,800 | $10,852,600 |

The Departmant of Heolth ond Human Services’ Mission is to join communitics and families
fn providing opporiuaities for ciliens to aohizve health and independence,

J ]
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His Exceaet;cy_. Governor Chrigtopher T. Sununu

and the Honcrabla Council .
Page 20f3
S N EXPLANATION

~ The purpose of this request is to continug operation of a transitional housing program for
adults who have severe mental iliness or savere and persistent mental illness; are eligible for

© community mental health sarvices at a Communily Mental Health Center, as defined In New
Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 401; and who no {onger meet the levet of care provided by
New Hampshire Hospital or Dasignated Receiving Fadilities. With successful iransitions of thesa
individuals to transitional housing, beds a! New Hampshire Hospital and Designated Receiving
Faciities continue to be available for individuals in need of and waiting for the level of care
provided at those facilities. This request aise includes the addition of dedicated housing

. specialists within the transitional housing program who will assist individuals ready to transition to - ' .

independent Imng by creating plans and applying for permanent housing options.
- Approximately 100 individuals will be served each Stale Fiscal Year.

Individuals, aged 18 years and older, who participate in the transitional housing program,
will continue to feceive the necessary services to support and promote rehabilitation that
facilitates a transition fo independent living in the community. Program services Include
psychiatric services, medication management, clinical services, medical service, targeted case
menagemam spacialized and co-occurring treatment services, vocational -and day treatment
services, and support for community conneciedness and family involvernent.

The Dapanment will cont:nue to monitor contracted services using the follmng
performance maasures

. Quarteﬂy meetings to review submitted reports that outling the number of beds
‘ occupied programmatic services provided to each individual, each individual's
+ progress towards independent living, length of stay for each mdwidual served; and
, incoming cases.

o Annual review of the eﬁect:veness of services measured uging the Adult Needs and
Strengths Assessment, or olher approved ewdenoe-baaad agsassmant,

. Evaluation of individual service encounter data submn!ted 1hrcugh the Department’
Phoenix repering system.

+ Review of monthly Balance Sheet and Profit-and Loss statements for ongoing . .
avaluation of fiscal integrity. ‘ '

; » Engagement in financial and programmatuc sudits to ensure fiscal integrity is
mainigined and programming is meeting the needs of the individuals sarved.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions.to Standard Cantract Provisions, of the ariginal
agreementi, the parties have the option to extend the agreamentfar up to four (4) additiona years,
contingent upon gatistactory dalivery of services, available fundmg, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew sarvices for two
{2) of the four (4) years available. :

Should the Govemor and Coundil not authorize this request 76 Transtuonal Housing
Program beds will no longer be available to individuals in need of transitiona! residential treatment
services who are transmonlng from New Hampshire Hospital or a designated receiving facility to
the commumty which, in tum, limits the availability of beds for individuals awaiting inpatient
hospital services across tha State. .

Area servad: Statewide

'y

ity
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v, Pegedold

Source of Funds: Genaral- Funds
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Respecifuﬂy submittad,

Lorit A. Shibinstie

Commissioner
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" State of New Hampshire
Department of Health-and Human Services
Amendment #2

This: Amértdment to the Transihonat Housing Program contract is 'by and betweén the State of New
Hampstiire, Depariment of Health and Human Services (*State” or "Department”) and NFI North Inc.,
("the Contracto:")

WHEREAS, ptirsuant to &n dgieement (the "Contract”) approved by the Governor and Executive Councnt_

on July 15, 2020, (ltem #16), as-amerided on September 23, 2020, (ltem #15), the Contractor agreed to i

perform certain services basad upon the lerms and conditions specified in the Contracl as amended and
‘o in consideration of certain sums specnf ed; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to' Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions to
‘Standard Contract Provisions, Paragraph 1, Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions, Subparagraph
1.2., the Contracl may be amended upon written agreement of the pames and approval from the Governor
and Executive Councul and

‘WHEREAS, the parties agree lo axtend the term of the agreement,- increasé. the price: ifmitallon and -
modify the scope of seivices to support continued delivery of these sérvices; and

‘NOW THEREFORE, in consnderatlon of the foregomg and the mutual covenants and condttrons contained
in the Contract and sel forth herein, the partnes hereto agree 1o amend as. follows:

1. Form P-37 Gefierdl Pravisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
Y Junedo.2024 ' *
2. FormP-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
# - $10,852,600 .,
3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 19 Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

e

. Robert W. Moore,.Director: .
4. Modify. Exhibit B, Scope of Servuces Sect:om Statement of Work, by.adding Subsection 1.23, to
redd: K

% 1:23.Housirig Specialist Services "
1.23.1  Thé Conlraclor shall assist individuals with completing applications t6 all hausmg
« programs the individual may be eligible for, including but nat limited to, Housing -
: Bridge Subsidy Program, tntegratwe Voucher, Housing Program,: and Housing -
-Chivice Voucher Program. ”

i

1 _'1.23f2 .The Contrattor shall.complele crlmmal backgroiind checks and registeréd cfiminal
. offender checks for alt individuals,-as needed, for housing applications.

A .23.3_ Tha Contractor shall collaborate. with the individual lo ¢reatea housmg plan, which
~ Shall include, but is not limited io;

1.23.34  Hoiising history'and community of choice preferences.

1.23.3,2 Bariiers o housing, including identified sofutions..

1:23.3.3 initiai rental needs'and resaurces.

112334  Benefits eligibility and statiss.

-

-1.23.35 Information regarding community services as requested and needed
which may include, but.is not limited to:

1.23.3.5.1 Supporlive services. ' @
: ) P

NFI North, Inc, - . AS812 ‘ Conlraclor Initials >
55.2021-DBH-03:TRANS-01-AD2 Page 3 of 5 - Date
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1234

s 1.235

11,236
1.237

* 1.23.8

1.238

©

1.23.3.5.2 r Substance use disorder ireatment.
1.23.3.5.3 Behavioral health care; psychiatric health care.
123354 Primary and medical heaithcare. .
1.23.35.5 Transponalion services.

].25.3.5.6 Resources for obtaining grocenes and other nesded
- household items.

The Contractor shall assist the individual with understand:ng tenant rights and
obligations, fair housing laws, and the role of landiords.

The Contractor shall assist the individual with identifying 2ppropriate housing and
with contacting polenlual tandlords, as appropriate or as requesled by the individuat.

The Contractor shall attend appointments and meetmgs with.the individual and the
rentai agency or renling landlord 1o negoliate rent, utilities, lease provisions, and to
ensure the individual securas leases.in their own name, with full rights of tenancy.

The Contractor shall ensure successful transition to independent housing by
providing support fo individuais and Iandlords for no less than six (6) consecutwe
months after discharge.

The  Contractor shafl participate in monthiy comphance meelings with the
Depadment at the discretion of the Department

The Contractor shall ensure their housing specialist participates in all trainings
conducled by either New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority or the Depariment,
as requested by the Depariment.

5. . Modify Exhibit C, Paymenl Terrns Section 3, Subsection 34, lo read

3.4. For individuals withoul heal!h insurance or other coverage for the services !hey receive-and
for operational costs contained in Exhibit C-1, Amendment 1 Budget {hrough Exhibit C-4,
Amendment ‘2, SFY2024 Budget for which the Contractor cannol otherwise Sseek
réimbursement from an insurance or third-party- payer, the Contractor will dureczly bill the
Depantment to access contract funds provided through this Agreement.

3.4.1. Invoices of this nature shall include general ledger detail indicating the Departménl is
only being invoiced for net expenses, shall only be reimbursed up to the cument
Medicaid rate for the services provided and conlain the following ntems for each cliem
and line-itemn of service:

3.4.1.1. First and last name of cllent.

N 3.4.1.2. Dale of birth.

3.4.1.3. Medicaid ID number. ‘
34.14. Date of Service identifying date, units, and any possible third-party

reimbursement received.

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Seclion 4 to read: .

4. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement . basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved line items as specified

in Exhibit C-1, Amendment 1 Budget through Exhibit C-_4. Amendment 2 Budget.

7. Modify Exhibil C, Payment Terms, Section § to read:

than lhe fiteenth (15th) working day of the month fol[owmg the month in which the

NFI North, Inc.

" 5. The Coniractor shall submit an inveice and supporting documents to the Depanmsﬁgg later

rvices

A-S-1.2 Conlraclor Initials ™

" §8-2021.D8H-03-TRANS-01-A02 Paga2of § Date
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‘were provided. The Contractor shall:

5.1. Ensure the invoice is submitted in a form that is provided by 1he Department or is
*otherwise acceptable to the Depaitment.

P

§.2. Ensure the invoice identifies and requests peyment for allowabla costs, mcurred inthe
previous month .

5.3. Provide - supportmg documentation ‘of aliowable costs with each invoice that may
include, but are nof limited ta, lime sheets, payroll records receipts for purchases, and
proof of expenditure, as applicable,

- 54 Ensure the. invoice is completed, dated and returned lo the Departmerit wuth the
suppomng documentanon for authorized expenses, in order to initiale payment.

8. Add Exhibit C:3, Amendment 2, SFY2023 Budget, which'is attached. hereto and incorporated by
" reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit C-4, Amendmenl 2, SFY2024 Budget which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

F

| | | )E
. NFI,ﬁBﬁh,h Inc. . £-871,2 , Conlraclor Inftials -

$5-2021-08H-03-TRANS-0)-AD2 Page 3ot § .- Datp /4472022
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AII terms and condmons of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and sffect. This Amendment shali be efiective upon Governor and Council approval.

I

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the pa_rties have set theif hands as of the date written i)elow. _

L3 -

.- .

State of New Hampshire
: Depariment of Health and Human Services

- DoceSigrned by: . .
: 5/24/2022 ) : | ésg,‘ S. Fow K |
" Date . Name: TR Fox 4

) Tille:  pirector

. : NF1 North, Inc.
- o T * Ibcusbw_dm M
5/26/2022- | Paul Dosusn.
Date . Name: o :
. Titte: Executive Director
— . . - &
I :
NFI Narth, Inc. ' AS12

§5-2021-DBH-03-TRANS-01-A02 ~ " Ppagedol5 ,
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" ¥

%

execution. . ok
) OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

H

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and

) i . Boe bye
$/26/2022 ' . : ‘. Shugn Aunsino
‘Date . Name; Robyn Guarino )

Title:  acrorney

.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment wa's. approved by the Governor and Executive Coundgil of

the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: _ - (date of meeting)
e ) . .
s ‘ OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE
Dale - Namie:
; T, . Title: g
! A ¥ e ¥
- oo .
‘g ’ . * ‘ { ’
NFt Nbrlh, fnc. ' ’ A-S-1.2

5%.2021-0BH-03-TRANS-01-A02 Page5of &

&

»



Docusign Envelope |D: 45430224-BDD7-443A-8453-121AAE2ECB3E

- -

1.0 w
* 5
-, « V
T
B . ; "
¥ . "
, = ¥
>
i
.
DocuSign Envelops 10: 5407 0096-44FC-4067-81 FB-EEISEAIDDOF .
DocuSign Efrelop? I0; JD3010C-CINY-4455-SF09-I58800BAFDA ;
. b B
e (oS mum:mqw
s & i ¢
* : . 3 s
Now RamGahir v Duparimwcet 1 Haskh VG HUFRAA vTIons.
\;m
# T
§ LI .
[T Sybbyrt phatne
- R >
M0 HS FY as :: [3
5 d . X . i
AT I AL} ') “hblh
. Wt‘ 7 mt'u £ 1 “:H ) ¥
e e e e
3 3 A CX] ) I
¥ A T e e "y -
mmal——walt ol el — ol
. ' = ) 0 e
:9%2 1' - [ E (A1) La l:-
N AT Tt ea Bl : ﬁ .
- : t ” I
LENIK] pl"ﬁ"ﬁ ThvTy AT ] o3 12l TLTRIT
150 3 e T 1 v @
Yol L} uH_E - .]s r ’a,
[} R SF
. i s 102 K3 Tk 01
» "y — = -
W T -
—— e R
I e [ s - L
m.!_-z‘_;'- r;) “g".u . IET “m n,m‘l‘ - m .
z = . " . )
: o\ 1714 .23 2.5 L N 02 Th——pmmEy
m NG
- ™ . -
~ . . - *
. v -
L} *
. P
“ -
2 -
! " M -
;;r;ai.wxwmm . e s 2022
% % A & ' )
[
H
N
3 " L} 4



-

Docusign Envelope ID: 45430224-BDD7-443A-8453-121AAE2ECB3E

.~

‘ > .
. EaR ¥ '
»’:'- ° A.’
i, " - i
Y 1
. % P
' o
.
2t
@ 7 .
' . . \
~ hh ]
Doculign Envalope 10; 5487DB96-44F C-4007-01FB-EEISEAIDDOF i
DocuSign Envelogt I0: S05010C CIU 144855759 3589300AF DA - . ’ v ;
- - ® :,
, . i & awr
bt o
NG N Hatmniire Depiieica M o Hba it 2o Hariso Lorvicas
g P " = i, e
e T — =3
Tr :
A <,:lr 3 At i% 3 o) : hlt .
i iz T D X ERL ! .
) 70@1 TR vg;_ép E;ﬁ LK} 1 Y “ﬁ’ IR
- " i o e e " —= .
- R LHE LA 2413 LER T ¢,
p S s - n : n 3
Eq .IMF ¥ | s (i) ERI B
(1] + -
- N . = s hes = .
T o)
; ot '% e iy .
1 1 [X1YF ] [
- [} ¥ LK)
ATELTY X1 Fi ey 1 % % !
e v P v - o T
'?::‘OE ﬁ : T (i} - !E;B [17) @ , +
) ) EXLEN SAZF! [T 1) A4
“ s pary = s — :
5 7K} I L3787 E a— R
= s = > : .s‘ s
i LA S 12— 15 1 LU i) .
R 1 5 .
L3 *
) '
2 ¢
" . . N
A M .
w +
i ot
-5 i [
:mn L, * i PD
- LA TRAME Y .
3 Pyetiryadaany y v T . sTR2022
& P tel) O iin,
o, ¥ ¥
b f
: e
L.



Docusign Envelope [D: 45430224-BDD7-443A-8453-121AAE2ECB3E
DocuSign Envelope ID: 5487D896-44FC:4967-81F B-EE3SEATIDDOF

DocuSig Erivalope 1D: BDSDBTOC-CI01-44D5-9F95-3585030BAF DA " Y
- ‘ S . SEP0S°20 m110:03 DAS 4‘3/ ¢$J

- STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE e
. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES '
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIQRAL HEALTH
139 PLEASANT STRLET, CONCORD. NH 03301

031719544 1.800-552-3343 EaL P34
Fax: 603-173-4003  YOU Aceras: 1-800.735-2964  www.dhhs.ohgov

Kata 5 Fos
r x

" | T " . Auguat 31, 2020

. His Excellency, Governar Christopher T, Sununy . . -

and the Honorable Council -
State House

Concord, New Hampshue 03301

EQUESIED ACTION.
Authorize the Departmant.of Heallh and Human Services, Division for Behavidral Haatth,
“to'amend an existing Scla Source contract with NFI North, In¢. (VC#177575-B001), Contodcosk,
'NH to expand their community Transitional Houslng Program for edults who have severe mente!
.illness or sovere and persistent mental linass, by increasing the number of beds from sixty (60)
""to seventy-six (76} and increasing the price “limilation by $2,078,800 Trom $2,400,000 to
$4,479,800 with no change to the contract completion .date of June 30, 2022 eﬂ’odwe upon
Govomor and Council approval 100% General Funds.

Thé origina! contract was approved by Govemnor and Council on July 18, 2020, item #5.

Funds are -available in the foliowing accounts for State. Fiscal Year 2021 ‘and are
anticipated to be. available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the avallabiity and’ continued
appropriation of fuids in the future operaling budgat, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances behveen slate fiscal years through the Budget Office,”

if nseded and justified.
_ * 05-95-92-92201041170000 HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES,-DEPT OF HEALTH AND
' > HUMANSVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALIH SERVICES .
CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT ]
Stato | . , . Ncroased | o ..t
. Closs/ PR dob - Cusrent y Revised
Fiscal.}] . Llash Title : (Docrsased) Ay
Year Account - Number Budgat . Amou’qt 8udget
~ | Contracts for- " $1,200.000 | - $1,382,800 | $2,562,600 |
2021 }102-500731 " Prog'Svc 892204117 “ . : _
2022 | 102500731 | Convrects for | o004y | $1.200000)  3697.000 | $1.897.000f .
Prig Sve
) Sublotal | '$2,400,600 | $2,079,800 | $¢,479,800
'EXPLANA‘I’]O

This request Is Sole Souite bécause the Deparlment did not receive any responses o
the Request for Application, Posted Apnl 24, 2020 and' closed May 15, 2020, to cperate thesse
) sixtean (16) tranditional housing program beds. In the Interest of maintaining Transmonal Housing
E} .capacity statewide, aind thé public’s héalth and safety, the Depattment has idantified this vendar
as having the capacity and expertise’ lo quickly respond 16 the Transitional Housing Program‘

" needs for these sixtean (16) bads,

c¥ . 1] 1
. H
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His Excaliorcy, Gowmchmmeﬂ Smmu .
erid the Honomble Couneil
-Pagn!d:l

The PUrpose’ iof this requasl is expang the existing contract to includa elght (8) agditional
transitional housing program bads in the Greater Manchester Reglon and eight (8) additions! beds
in another area in the state, as approved by the Deperiment, for aduilts who have savere mental
illngss or sevara and persistent menta) liness and are gligibla for community meéntal health
services, and no lonper meet the level of care provided by ‘New Hampshire Hospital or designated

- receiving fecilitios: With successful transitions for these patients, it is anticipated that this will
enable beds to opan-al New Hampshire Hoapital and the designated receiving faciities thus
having a posilive Impad on Individuals walting in smergency departments for 8 bed. individuals
participating in.the transitiona! housing’ program will recelve the necesaary- sarvices lo suppon

> " and promote rehabilitation that will facilitale a transition ta Independent living in tha commminity

The population served -are individuals who ars a! least eighteen {18).ysars of .age and
oldar, have baen diagnosed with g severn mental illness or.sevére and persistent mental illness,
and meet etrglblhty criteria for community mental heatth services at 8 community mental heatth
canter as-defined in New Hampshire’ Administrative Rule He-M.401.-Approximately eixtesn (16)
indwiduah will be served from October 1, 2020 to June 30, 2022.

The program éerves the clinical, medical, vocalional, and residantial neads: of adult men
and womén with mentat illness. The program sorviceo include; péychiatric services, medication
management clifiical servicas, madical servicas, targelodmemanagamen! spacialized and co-
occurring treatment services, vocationa! and day treatment services, and support for community
gonnactedness and family involvement:

The Department will menitor” contraclad aerv:ces using the following performance
measurea .

-« Quarterly meelings to review sUbmitted quanterly reports that outline the number of
beds oOccupied, programmatic services provided to ach individuai, ‘each
‘individual's prograss towards mdependen& Iwing. and Inoommg cases. ‘

s. Annual rgviéw of tha effectivenéss of services will be measured using the Adult
% ‘Needs and Strengihs :Assessment, or o‘ther approved evidence based
Bssessment.

» Evdludlion of individiial gervice encounter 5data that is submitted’ 1hrough the
Dapartment's Phoenix reponmg gystem will Inform care monitoring and ongoing
agency wide quatity sérvice' menitoring.

» Submiission of monthly. Balance Shest and Profit and Loss Statemen!s fo the
Departmént for ongoing evalvation of the programs fiscal tntegnty

» Engagement in financial and programmatic sudits to ensure fiscal integrity Is
maintained and ptogrammmg is'megting tha needs of individuals served.

sAs-referenced in Ethbit A, Revlslons to Stendard Contract Language, Paragraph 1.2 of
thé .original contreft, the parties have ths oplion to extend the agmament for up to four (4) -
‘sdditional yoars, conlingent upon satistactory delivery nf servicas, available fundmg. agreement
of th parties and Govertior and councn epproval Tha Dapartmon! i5 not axemsmg its option to
rénew ot thig timé.

‘Should the Governor 'and Councll not euthorize {his.request sixteen {16) Transmona!
Housmg Progrem beds will no longer, be. avarrable o %ndnndua!s in nesd of lransitional residsntial
tréatmant §ervicas who'aie transmon!ng drom New, Hampshlre Hospital or a designated recaiving
facility 1o the commumty which; In tum, lifits’ the' availability ‘of beds for Individvals awalting
mpat:enl hospital sarvices aéross the Stale. :
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Pogedold
Aren servad: Gredtér.Manchestér and an‘additional Mental Health Region
Source of Funds: General Funds B

.Respectiully submitted, .
o o Lori A. Shibinetle
Lo ‘Commissloner
A P - s
" -~ ¥ Y i ot +
I - | . .

The Departinent of Health 67id Himon Services’ Miseion iv'to join comiualties 6nd fomitiss

in providing opperiudilics for cititens'to achinws heclth and independente. |

i
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STale of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and Human Services ™
Amendment #1 to the Transitional ' Housing Programs Contract

£l

This 1 Amendment to the Transitional Housing Program contract (heréipaher referred to as "Amendment
h #17) is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Depantment of Mealth and Human Services

{hereinatter refermed 10 as the "State” or “Department”) and NFI North, Inc., (hereinafter referred to as “the
Contrattor’), a nonproftt with 2 place of business at 40 Park Lane, Conloocook, NH 03229,

" WHEREAS, pursuanl 10.an agreement (the “Contract”) approved by the Gavemnor and Executive Council

on July 15, 2020, #16, the Contractor agreed 1o perform certain services based upon the terms and
. canditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of cenain sums specified; ang

WHEREAS, the patties agree to extend the iarm of the agreement, increase the price fimilation, or modify
the scope of services to suppont continued delivery of these services: and

. NOW THEREFORE, in considémtion‘oi the foregding and the mutval covenan’i_é and conditions,contained

. in the Contract and set forih herein, the parties herelo agree to amend as follows:
1. Fotm P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, 1o read:

Ees

* NFI Norih, Inc.
$5-2021-0BH-03-TRANS-01.ACH Page 1018 ‘ Date

$4,479,800. _ ° :
Add Exhibit B, Scope of Senvices, Section 1. Statemént of Work, Subsection 1.1.. Paragraph 1.1.4.
to read:

1.1.4. An eight (8} bed Transitional Housing Program in mental health region seven (7) at the
Coniractor's Greater Manchesler localion.

1.1.5. Aneight (Bj-bed Transitional Housing Program in another mental health region as approved

‘

by the Department in writing within thirly (30} days of contract approval. ‘
Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 7. Use of Prémises for the State Owned Buildings ~

Govemnor Hugh Gallen State Office Park Campus, by deleting it in its entisely and replaéing it to -

read: -

7. Use of P.remlse's for the State Owned Bullgings - Governor Hugh Gallen State Office
Park Campus ‘

= 7.1, The Coniratlor shall use the buildings owned by the Stale of New Hampshire, identified

i by the Depariment as Bayberry House, Brick House, Grey House, Pond Place East,
Pond Place Wesl, Yellow House, and Howard Recreationa) Center, to provide the
Transitional Housing Pragram on the Hugh Gallen State Office Park South Campus in
Concord, New Hampshirg (hereinafter "premises’) to provide transitional housing
services as specified in this Exhibit 8. .

'7.2. The Conltractor agrees thal routine building mainlenance is defined as normatweat and
tear of the building slructure, envelope, systems, hardware, and fixed assets (not
including kitchen appliances). Routine building maintenance does not include damage
resulting in abuse or neglect by the Conlractor or its agents, consumers, and visilors.

. 7.3, The Conlractor shall: .

. 7.3.1. Establish accounts for sl utilities (Natural Gas, Waler, Sewer, Waste Disposal
and Electricy in the name of the Conlractor, with NHH named as “second® on
‘each utility accounl. Invoices for each ulility shall be sent direclly to, and paid by,
the Contractor; . -

7.3.2. ‘Reimburse the Stale for utiliies based on aljocated one-third {1/3) the square
: foolage of the Howard Recraational Center: -

o3
“1.3.3. Assign a liaison and backup lo develop a Maintenance and Hou{eﬂé@pmg

Amendment R4 Contraclor Initials
9/2/20i0
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. Checklist for fouline repairs and mamienance needs. The Mainlenance and .
-~ .* Housekeeping’ ‘Checklist will be available for the Hospital to review and prioritize
. . during the monthly inspection conducted by the Hospital. Liaisons will'be the
only persons who shall contact Hospital Facmtues or Environmental Services
Ottices,

7.34. Descgnateal:aison to be responsible for all keys, toinclude dlslnbuuon trackmg,
: and communication wnh the Hospital Facilities Ofﬁce for lock repair or key
replacement;

7.3.5. Be responsible for routine household 1asks, such as, mowlng o'f furnilqre,
T o e changing light bulbs, and minor plumbing repairs, such as, teilel untlogging;

7.3.5. Bs responsible 16r housekeeping in ‘accordance with checklist re!erences in .
. ; Paragraph 7.3.3. above; ‘

. 7.3.7. Be responsible for wmdow air condllaoners mamienance repai'rs. and‘

replacement;
7.3.8. 8e responsible to call State Office Complex: Pelice if there is an emergency
; E requiring maintenance afler normal business hours; %

z © 7.3.8. Be responsible for maintenance, repair, and replacement of thousehold
! appliances, such as reflrigeralars, dishwashers, washer and dryer, and stoves;

7.3.10. Be responsible for maintenance, repair, and repiacement of landscaping fealures
+ and decorations, such as gazebos, gazing balls, etc.:

7.3.11. Condugt monthiy fire extinguisher mspecttons in coordination’ with Hospnaf
¢ Facilities Office, Mainiain, or replace the extinguishers annually as.necessary;

7.3.12. Be responsible for any damage due to occupancy or l¢asehold improvements,

:nc!udmg interior painting and floor covering répair or replacement In no case

: shall the Contracior make improvements without the written permission of the
. ~ New Hampshire Hospital Facdmes Office; v

7.3.13. Use the Department's !nfomlatmn Technology {IT) cables only as approved by
the IT Depatment; .

7.3.14, Pay for the personal alamm ("Life Alen®) sysiem !

7.3, 15 Be responsible for snow removal and de-icing of stéps and walkways adjacent
{o the buildings; .

‘ 73 16 Be respansible for the purchase, supply, laundering,, and management of all
- . _ linens (sheets, pillowcases, bath towels and face cloths);

. ) 7.3.17. Be responsible for laundering and management of ali client personal ilems;

: 7.3.18.Ensire all buildings are reasonably maintained, kept sanilary, and clean
between, scheduled claaning. mspechons and services provided by the Hospital;

. ? 3.19: Ensure all bu:ldmgs are free of pesls and pay for pest extermination services if
. needed; and

7.3.20, D:spose of recycling malerials.

7.4. The Contractor shall have the righi to utmze the onsite parksng lots and acknowledges
thal no reserved parking is prowded as par of thls Agreemeni

7.5. The Contracter confirms the premises has been mspected and the condut:on of the
- premises Is acceplable,

@

.

B

NF1 North, Inc. . -Amendment 81 - , Contracior Inilials
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7.5, The Conlractar shali oblam wnuen consent Tom the State ol.New Hampshrre prior fo
performlng or constructing any addilions, atterations or improvements to the premises.

1. 7 " The Coniractor shall ensure all work, repairs, renovations, or replacements approved by
the State in Paragraph 7.3.3. are guarameed by the vendors completing the work, -
‘agains! defects resulling from the use of inferior materials, equipment or workmanshlp
{or one (1) year from the dale of complalion_of the work.

7.8 The Contraclor shall ensure that if, within any‘guarantee period, repairs or changes are
required in connection with guaran!oed work, which In the apinion of the Stale of New
Hampshire Is rendeied necessary as a rasull of the use of malerials, equipment or
workmanship which are inferior, defective, or nol in accordancé with the terms of the
Contract, (he Cantractor shall promptly upon receipt of notice lrorn the ‘State of Naw
Hampshire, and al lhe Conlraclor's own expense:

7.8.1. Piacein sahsfaclory condition in every parllcular afl guaranteed work: and correct
‘all- defects therein, .

7.82 -Make good all damage to Ihe building or site, of equnpment of contents thereof,
which in the opinion of the State'of New Hampshire, is the result of the use, of
materials, equipment-or workmanship- which are. inferior, defective, or not in
accordance with the terms of the Conlract; and

7.8.3. Mgake good any work or material, or the equipment and contents of said’ buuldung
. * orsite disturbed in fulf'lhng any such guarantae. W

7.9. Thie Contractor is responsible'f for all repairs due to wear or negligenca an the' pan of the
Contractor, its employees, assugnees or guests..

7 10. The Conlractor shall be subject to general supeivision by the State oT New Hampshlre
“The Comraclor shall be subject o rules and regulations prescribed by the State of New:

. Hampshure including, bl not limiled fo, meeting he requitements of the Depariment's
. Health Facilities’ Administration, and (he Stale of New Hampshire Puhhc Works
Department

7.11, The Contraclor shall protecl repair and mainlain the prémises in good order and

‘condition and shall exercise due diligence in protecting the premisés ag ains| damage or
des!ruchon by fire, vandalism, thefi or.other causes.

kA 12.The Contrac{or shall a1 all times dunng ‘the existence of thls Agreement; promptly
observe ang comply with the provisions of"all applicable, federal, stale and local laws,
riles, regulatlons. and standards, and \in_particular those provisions cnnoermng the .
proiechon and enhancement of environmenial quality, pollut:on ‘control and abaterment,
. safe’ drmkmg water, [ife safety systems and solid and haza(dous waste:

7:13. Shotld the Contractor discover any violations 16 applicable federal, state and local laws,
rufes, regulatlons or.s\dndards, the Contractor shall report the violations immediately to
the Departmedt and, ol their own expenseg, be responsible for any costs incurred as 3
resull of the ‘violation of the afofementioned federal, stale and focal laws, rules and
regulat:ons and standards.. .

7.14. The .Conlracior agrees thal any ageéncy-of the Stale of New Hampshire, ils-officers,

agenls, employees and conlractors may ‘enler the -premises, al all times (with
reasonable notice) for any purpose, including inspection, and the Contractor shall have'
no claim on account of Such enliies against the State of New Hampshire or any officer,
agent employge or contractox thereof.

7.15-The Siate-shall nol be responssb!e for damage 1o property or m;unes o persgmasvhich
‘may anse from or be atifibuled, or incident 16 the exercise of the privileges gra{ Wder

Amengmen #1 Contractor Initials

§7277030
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This Agreement, Including the condftion or state of repair of the premises and s use and
occupation by the Conlracior, or from damage to their property, or damage lo the
property, o injuries to the persons of the Contractor or any officars, employees,
servanis, agenls, contractors, or others who may be al thelpremises at their invilation ar
the-invitation of any one ¢f them arising from governmental activities at the premises.
The Contractor expressly waives all ¢ciaims agains! the State of New Hampshire for any
loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by or occuseng by reason of or incident
10 the possession or use of the premises or.as consequence of the conduct of activilies -
or the pedormance of résporisibilities under this Agreement.

The Contractor agrees, to indemnify, save, hold harmiess and defend the State and the
State of New Hampshire, theiz officess, employees and agents from and againsi afl suils, -
claims, or actions of any sort resulting from, related to or arising ouf ot any activities
conducled under this Facilities Use Agreement section and any cosls, expenses,
liabilities, - fines or penalties resulting from discharges, emissions, spills, storage,

disposal or:any other action by the Conlractor giving rise to fiability to the Stale or the

State of New Hampshire, civil of ciminal, os responsibility under federal, state or local
environmental laws, This provision shall survive the expiration of terminalion of this

.Agreement and is not intended to waive the State's sovereign immunity, which is hereby

reserved by the State. .

- . 7.17- The Faciliies Use section of this Agreement is effective only insofar as the rights of the

Contracior in Ihe premises involved are concerned,.and the Contractor shall gbtain such
petmission as may be necessary on account ol any other existing rights,

. 7.18.The lerms of the Facilities Use section of this Agreement shall not be transterred or

assigned. The Contraclor agrees that on the Compigtion Date ot this Agreement, it shall

vacale the premises and shall, remove 2l personal property and reslore the premises

to a condition satisfactory to the State, with damages beyond the conlrol of the
Conlraclor and due to ordinary wear and tear excepted. If the Contractor neglects to
remove their personal propedy and 10 so restare the premises, then at the option of the
State, such property shall either become propedy of the State without compensalion
therefore, or the State may cause propery to be removed and the premises t be so
restored at the expense of the Contractor, and no claim for damage againsl the State of
it§ officers, employees or-agents shalt be created by or made on account of such removal
ang resloration work. g

. . 7.19. The Contractor'and the State agiee that no notices, orders, directions, detarminations,

requirement consents, or approvals under this Agreement shall be of any effecl unless
it is-in writing. All notices ic be-given pursuant to this Agreement shall be addressed to
ithe Stale:

New Hampshire Hospital B - -
Alin: Direttor of Facilities

36 Clinton Slreet ) R
Concord, NH, 03301

7.20. The Depanment's New Hampshire Hospilal shall:

NFI North, 1n¢.”

$5-2021-D8H-03 TRANS-01-AD1 _ Pagedofd "o Date

7.20.1. Conduc! scheduled preventative mainl¢nance inspections and repairs for all
equipmenl lo include, heating and cooling systems, sump pumps, plumbing
fixtures, drains, and backflow preventers; -

) 7.20.2. Replace, as needed, équipment 10 include, healing and cooling systems,

sump pumps, plumbing fixlures, draing, backflow preventers, and genefators;

- 0%
7.203. Maintain all elactrical wiring and related hard-wired lighting, recep ?8’) and
pane) board fixtures; : . P
. Amendment Bl - o Contracior Inlllals
9/2/2020
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- i 7204 Maintai"h all Tire pratecton refated equipment, except lire extinguishers;

. .

7.20.5. Respodd to requests for routine maintenance during-normat business hours, -
. Monday through Friday 7:00 AM - 3:00 PM; . -

7.206. Respond immediately to emergency maintenance requesis thal threaten the
heallth and safely of consumers, staff, and property as needed, twentyfour
{24) seven {7) days per week; &

"L 7.20.11.. Tour each building as needed, or requested to inspect the building and to

: review and prioritize the Maintenance Checklist developed by the Contractor
ll.laison; . : s :
= 7.20.8. Provida manthly testing of each generator ond egress lighting, and provide -
the Cantractor with written documentation of the lesting and results;

B 7.20.9. Conduct fire drills in accordance with applicable compliance regulations, and
© + provide the Conlractor with written documentation of the tes and resulls;

7.20.10. Conduct sprinkler inspeclions in accordance with applicable local, State, and
federal requlations, and provide the Contractor with written documentation of
Ihe test and resulls;

7.20.41, State Office ‘Complex Police will provide Police Coverage and Protection
_including Life-Alert; ' o

7.20.12. Monitor Transitional - Housing Services environment via the building
: automation system,

7.20,13. Clean kitchen exhaust duct;vmk on an annual basis; and
7.20.14. Maintain locks and replace lost or damaged keys at a price to be determined
" ‘ by the Hospital. : o, _
. 3.4. The Department shall provide greund maintenance, defined as the following:
- 7.20.15. Mowing of lawns; ' ‘
7.20.16. Trimming of bushes and shrubs;
' 7.20.17. Plowing ofroads;and . . ¢ :
.o ) 7.20.18. Maintenance of trees. '
: © 4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Tenms, Section 3, Subsection 3.4, to read:

3.5. Forindividuals without health insurance or olher coverage for the services they receive, .
. _andd for operational costs contained in Exhibits C-1, Budgel, C-1, Amandment-1,
Budgel, C-2, Budget aind C-2, Amendmenl 1, Budget for which the Conlraclor canno!
) otherwise seek reimbursement from-an insurénce or third-party payer, the Contractor
N - will direcily bill the Departmen! 1o access conlracl funds pravided Ihrough this

% Agreement. . :

3.5.1. Invoices of this nalure shall include general ledger detail indicating, the
Deparimen! is only being invoiced. for net expenses, shall anly be reimbursed
up-to the current Medicaid rate for the services provided and conlain the |

N . following items for each client and line lem of service:

3.5.1.1.  Firstand last name of client,

351.2. Daweofbinth,
. 3.5.13. Medicaid 1D number, . i
3:5.4.4.  Dale of Service idenftilying date, unils, and any possible @any

-

ar

reimbursement received. W,
NFI North, Ir!;’.- ’ - Amendmenl #1 : Contracior infllals
§5-2021-DBH-03- TRANS-01-AD1 . Page5d8 Dsle
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_ New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services z
Yransitionat Housing Programs ; :

= Woddy Exmibit C-1, Budgel and replace n s entirely with ExPiBN C-1, Amendment 1 Budgel whmh
Is auached herpio and incosporated by reference hasein,

6. Momfy Exhibit C-2, Budgetand replace in its entirety with €xhibit C-2, Amendment 1 Budget, wh:ch
. 3 } is attached hereto and incgrporated by reference hirein.

d .
NEI North, ink. Anieddment#l - “Conlrattor Inltials :*
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W B

(] - * A’ b - , .

- All'tesms and conditions-of the Contract not'inqunsislem-wilh this Amendment #1 rémain in full forca and
effect. This amendment shall be éffective upon the date of Govemor and Executive-Council approval.

.

w =

AN WITNESS WHEREOF the pariles have set lhelr hands as of the date writlen below
w I State of New Hampshare
L a ~Depaniment of Health' and Human Services-
. ’ F Mw”: . ‘.,, )
9/3/2020 - ¢ Chistive Santaniclle _
. Date ., Name; Christine SantamelTo :
. v : . Title:  pireceor
" NFINorih, Inc,
4 L ‘ v Bacaligmed oy ) i
. 97272020 " | Pad Dasun S
; 5 !
, Data - T Name: rPaul bann - :
’ Title: . . g
H ) Executive Director
ko ) ,
R 5 "o ) . . *
1 3 E .
. NFINorh, Ing. Amendment &1
55-2021-DBH-OFTRANS-01-A01 Pogs 7 of 8 - :
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- New' Hampshlre Depaftmant of Health and Humahn ‘Services
Transitional Housing Programs

Ha

e-precedng Ameng men_t. ving been reviewed by this afice, (s approved as 4o lorm, suhs!anoe:and . E
axecution. ‘ ) ’

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

9/1/2020
Date - - . MName: <ac ‘e‘ﬁne Pinos
e Tile!  ccorney o
b hereby ceitify ihat ihe foregoing Amendment was approved-by the Govemor and Execulive Council of
lhe State of New Hampshlre at the Meetmg on. (date of meehng)
. OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE - :
- * # 4 ‘ - . * *
. Date: = " Name:_ ~
i : . Title:
| . ' : PN e
1 " !
. . ) .y
: NFI-North, Ing. Amondmentsn -

58:2021-DBH-OFTRANS:01:A01 Page 8 of 8
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X STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES -
. Dl VISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Il’ PI.I'ASM‘TM!.T CONCORD. KH 0531
. COM-IT1FM4  1-S00-B52A048 Eat 9544
) Fax: 603171403 TED Accrp: {-$00-18-7064  warw dkhsab gor’

Kalja & Fox
- Blecewor

Juna 23, 2020

- His Excellency, Governar Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councll |
Stote Housa )
Cancord, Naw Hampshira 03301 ) '

€

REQUESTED ACTICN * !

Authorize the Department of Health-and Kuman Services, Division for Bahzvmai Health, to
.enter into & Rotroactive, Solo Source contract with NFI Nenh, inc, (VCI177575-8001),
Contoccouk NH In the amount of $2.400,600 to provide e community Trangitionat Housing Program
for odulis who have savere mental llinass or severs and persisient mental flinass, with the option to
renaw for up.1o four {4) edditional years, effective retraactive to July 1, 2020 upon Govemor end
councn approvat through June 30, 2022, 100 % Genernl Funds. - , -

Funds are availatts in tho following accounts for Stale Flacal Year 2021 and are anuupatad
1o be gvaliabla in Stete Fisca! Year 2022, upon {he aveitability end continued apprnpnallon of funds
In the fulure operaling budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation
through the Budgﬁ Office, if needad ond iusld'md ) Lo

05-06-92 922010-4!17 HEA.LTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: BENAVIORAL HEALTH DN BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES CiHH

PROGRAM SUPPORT «
State Class/ P ‘ :
‘ Fiscal Yoar Account . ‘cum Tite Job Number Total Amountai;
2021 102/500731  *| Contracts for Prog Sve | 92204117 $1,200,000 |
) 2022 1102500731 | Contracts for Prog Sve | 82204117 $1,200,000
' ' Subtotal $2,800,000
EXPLANAYION

This réquest is Solo Source becsuse In the interest of the public's health and safety, the
‘Depaniment has identified this vendor os having the capacﬂy to quickly respond to the Transitional
Housing Program needs for aixty (60) beds. This requostia Rotroactivo because this abrupt change
in the Depertment's strateglc approach led to addiisnal negotiations, which dalayud tho exeou'llon
of tha contract.

" The purgoas of this request is to operate tmnslnonal housmg program(s) for gdults who have
evare menial filnees (SMI) or severa and persistent mentel iflhess (SMP1) and are eligible’for .
community meatal heaith services and no longer meel the level of care provided by New Hampshire
Haspltal (NHH) or Designated Receiving Facilities (DRF). With successful transitions of these difficull
to place pauems Itis antsclpaied that beds will open 2t NHH and the ORF(s)), thus having 8 positive
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His. Excauancy. Gavernaor Christopher T, Sununy
and the Honorabie Councli .

-

tmpact on mdwutua!s waiting in emergency depaﬂments for o bed, Pa!len!a pamapa!mg in the
transitfonal housing. progiem will - recalve the necessary services to cupport and promote
rshabilitation that wil felitale o transition to independent tiving in the community. )

The population served cre individuals who are at laast eightesn (18) yearn of'age and olitar

v ond havo been diggnosed with @ SMi or SPMI and moet eligibilty critaria for community memal
haalth services et 6 community mental hoalth canter (CMHC) as doﬁmd in Ho-M 401. Approximataty-

60 !ndmduals will be gerved from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2022,

# . The program s&rves the dinica), medica), vecations), andrealdentlalnmdsofao‘ultmenand
women with mentsl (ingss. The progam earvices. Inciuda: paychistric services, madictnion
- management, clinical éervices, medical services, targeted cose manogement, spacializad ond co-

. . occuring treatment sarvicas, vocational and day treatment services, .and suppod for community
’ ‘connoctodness and femily invelvement.

Ths Departmant will monllor conlractad services using the following performance measures:

_maintained.and pragramming is meating the needs of individuals served.

- Quartedy meetings 10 review submitted quantesty reports (hiit oulline the number of

beds occupind, programmatic tervices provided ta each individual, each individyal's
progress towards independeni living, and incoming casos.

Annual reviéw of the effectiveness of serviceg-will be measured using the Adull

Needs ond Strengths Assessment, or ‘other approved Evidence. Based

paseasment.

Evaluation of lndwldual aendoa ancounter data !hm i3 gubmitted through tha

Depastmant's Phoenix reporting system ‘Wil Inform care mondloring and ongolng

‘egsncy wide quatity service monRoning.

Subdmission of monthly Belance Shest and Picfit and Loss Stalements to lho
Dapanmenl far engolng eveiuation of the programs fiseal integrity.
Engagemant In financial end programmatic audile to ensure fiscal :Integrity is

“

]

As referanced in Exhibit C-1, Revislona to Slandard Cunrtmcl Languege, Parsgreph 2 of tha

" attachsd contradt, the.partigs have the option to extend the agreement for up four (4) edditiona)

" yeare, canlingent upon satisfectory delivery of services, available fundmg. agmement of the parties
snd Govemnor end Coundl approval.

Should the Gpv:mor and Coundl not authorize this requast the aixty (60) bed Transittana!
Housing Pragrama may no! be available to individuals in-need of trensiional rasidential treatment
genvites who are fansilicalng from NHH or @ DRF to the community which, tn tum, timhs Lhe
avaalabullty of bada tor individusla awaiting inpatient hospital aervbna acroasg tha State.

Area served: Statewids .

. +

' Raspecﬁulry submm -

bt A, Shibinatte
. Commiagioner

TM Dlparu'lml of Health and Humen Serwioes Miszion Us o kin ommunitios ond fomilin
in providing np,wﬂ‘umlm for cilizans W ochicon Aeclth ond wfmmdtm .

3
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. .
. ; - " FORM NUMBER P37 (rershan 1211112019)
Scbjeet: Transitionel Housing Progrems (§5-2021-DBH.03-TRANS01) E

Potice: This agreement end ait of iss arachmenls thifl become public upon Wbmission to Govorner end '
Excowiv Cowrk) (Or spprovil, Aay informuion thes fa privete, conflidential or groprismry must

be claarly idontifled 19 the sgovcy ond agterd 19 & wiiting pritr 10 signing ihe coate. | :

. AGREEMENY

i Ihe State oF New. Hampahire and e Contracror héreby mutvally agrex as follows:

. GENERAL PROVISIONS i
L IDENTIFICATION. _ ,
1.1 Stz Agtncy Narie 1.1 Stme Agency Agdeens b N B
New Himpoyics Departmcn of Health ong Human Sarvices * | 129 Plaasam Sweet. )

Coneord, NH 033013887 .
1.3 Conrsciar Namc. — . i.i Contacior Addrans N
NF( Norih, Inc. . +~ | 40 Pk Lane
i . Contoocook, NH 03229 l
1.5 Coniracior Phons 1.6 Accounl Number -« 1:7 Eunﬂdim 6::1: LY Priee LImiﬁﬁm .
Number o o . ot
) ’ 05-95-92.922010- Jun¢ 30, 2022, $2,400,000 o
{603y 746-7550 . 417
T3 Conmsaing Ofco for Sate Agoey T.10 Suite Agency Telephone Number
Mathan O. White, Direcior . (692) 221963}
x Signaac - Thle of C
Lile o Signange - I.I'J\ MNume end Tizle of Confractor S'grmuy .
SN T E——— oue i fed foz) L Danu Ok ‘
S g Ecerye heeep a : "

11y S!I\ﬁ]tﬂ;? Signaas 114 Neme'and Tide of State Ageney Sigrnory i

WQ {05"’-6/?5? 2 JeatNas SFDp Dl eetir”

145 Approvel by the N.H. Deparement of Adminisiasion, Division of Personne! (if appdicablc)

h]
By Lhrestor, On:

L] - Kl
.

L6 i Appr tval by the 'Anm;? G:ﬂcn_l (Ferm."S\;w‘mu and Execution) {-‘fqﬁpltabh)

B (atherive Pinos ® sneno

VAT Appeoval by the Governor wnd Executive Council rya,pya:cuy

G ilem nizzmber: G&C Meiting Dade:

.

-

, . . Pagé ] of'd ' . M
Contracior Inntiaty # ™4,

* . - . . Da}cm
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES

8.1 Any one.or moreof the following scu or omjmsions of the
Contrettor shall constitute un ¢went T defult hereunder (*Event
of Default™): ,

AL foiture o perfarm ihe Services satisBerssily ‘o on
schedule; - . oo
§.1.2 Gihoe toiubmin any repon required hercunder: And/or
1.1.3 foilure to porfeam any othar coveasnt, torm on condition of
this Agrecment,

8.2 Upon the ecxurrence of any Event of Defull the State may -

~1eke gy one, of mave, oF all, of (he lolowing neiions;

8.2.} give the Controcior & wrifien notice spccifying the Event of
DOcfaull and sequiring it to be femedied withia, in théskaenee of

. agreuter of lexser specification of lime, thinty (30) days from the

date of tho notice; and if the Event.of Default is not timefy cured,
Jevminate this Agrecmen, efferive two (2) days ofter giving the:
Contriictar notice 6f sermination;

8,2, ive the Controcror & wrien notice specifying the Evont of
Defaull end yuspending 3l payments to be made under tiis
Agreement sad ordering Bhot the partion of the contract price
-which would otherwise scorue 10 the Contmacter during. the
period from ‘the dase & such notice until such time o the Suate
Baomints that the Contracter hos cwed e Event of Defauh

sholl ncver bc paid ta-the Contraaior; .

£:2. givo the Conirgetor o wrilten niics tpocifying the Event of
Defoult ad 5ot off againg any dher obligations the Sate may
[owe to the Contracior any damages the Suie suffers by reason of
oy Event of Defeutt; andfor )

~8.2.4 give tha Conlroctof g wrinen noxice'specifying te Event of
Defouly, veal the Agteement &t tweached, tominate the
Agrocrenl and purtus sy of i3 remedics, a1 law or in'eqisity, or
both. .

i8.. No failire by the Stasn to enforca any provisions herof alter

“#ny Event of Defeult ghell be-deemed 8 waiver of it rights with
‘reyerd 1w thai Eventof Oefeult, or eay subscquent ‘Evem of
Deloult, Nocapress failurs o enforee any Event of De fauly shatl
be déemied n wuiver of the sight of the Staie 10 enfovee each and

‘Defavlt on the pant of the Contrpceér.

FTERMINATION. ‘ )

9.1 Norwithgtonding paingriph &, e Staic may, &t ity solc
discretion, teminate the Agreement for anly reasen, in‘whole or
@ parl,.by thirty {30) days wrinten natfce o the Conteacror thai
the Stite.is exercising its opition 10 tominae the Agreement,

2. In the event of an carly 1rminstion of this Agreemant fox
any’ réison’ olé then the completion of the Services, the
Convocior shall, et the Swie's distretion, delives 10 the
Contracting ORicer, not Eater than (iReen (1 5) days sfler the date
of termindtiod, 8 repon (Termination Report”) desceibing in

~dewil ok Services performed, and the contoat price eamed, 1o

and including the doto of terthinstion. The form, Subject mater,

-coatent, and number of copics of the Tengtination Repron ghafl
“be identical to theas o any Fingl Repoit deseribed inihe stinched

EXHIBIT B, In'additicn, ot ibe Sure's discretion, the Contracior
shail, within )5 days of notice of eafly termination, develop angd

i ' . ‘Pagr: :.1'0 rq i '

61) 61 the provisions hereof upan any funhar.or oiher Evemi'of -

s

i b

submit to the Stetc & Tranuition Plan for” services under.the’
Agreement,

10. DATAJACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/ °
PRESERVATION. a . L

100 Agused in this Agreement, ive word "daws™ shali mean ol -
informaticn and chings developed or obiainod diring the

performance of. or scquired or developed by reason of, this

Agroement, including, bui net Timiled to, 8l studies, repons;
fifes, foemuylac. surveys, maps, charts, sound recardings, video

secordings, picorial reproductions, drawings, cnalyses, graphic

feprestnations, computer programs, compuicr printouts, notes,
levters, memorunda, pupers, and documenss, 8l whether
finished o unfinished.,

10.2 Al data end say propeny which has been received fronp
the Siaie or purchased with funds previded fer tha) purpose:
unges this Agrecment, shall b the progiiny of the Sie, snd

. shadl be returned 10 the Staie upon demand or.upon tonminstion

of this Agreement for any reason. _
19.3 Confidenciality of data shalt be govemed by N.H, RSA

chaper 81.A or dther Existing taw. Disclozure of dors requites.
frior urinen appeovel of Lhe Sigte, )

E

1. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION YO THE STATE. Inthe
performance of this Agreement the Controctor is in all Fespecis
en independent contruciar, and, is neither an mgemt nor on
employce of the Swie.  Neither the Contracior nor any of o
officers, employees, agents & members shall have nuthority to
bind the Susc or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
cthor encluments provided by the Stle lo it employees.

. ASSIGNMENTIDELI‘.CATIONISUBCONTR),\_C@.

ELU The Controcior shall dot assign, or otherwite iranafer any.
interest ifi thiy' Agreement without the prior wrinen notice, which
shotl be provided to the State at least fifteen (1) doys prior 1o
theassignment, 2nd a wrilien consent of the Swie. For purposes

-of ‘this paregroph, o Change of Convol shall censtite

sssijnmant. “Change of Control” ¢neuns (e) merger,
coaselidaiion, or & ansaciion'or series of related trunyacdions in

-whith o third perty, togetier svith fu" oiTifintes, beeames ‘the

direcr of indirect osner of fifty perdent (S0%) or more of the
votng shares or similar equity interaats, or.cémbined voling

_pawer af'iho Conbutior, or (b) the sale ol all, ¢ subaiastially sl

oF the essats of the Contrugior, _ .
12.2. Noae of the Services' shall b Jubconiricted by the
Contraeror without pigr wringm notice end consent of the Sute.

“The Stae is entitled to copics of it subeontracts sad ossigniment

agresmens and shall not be'bound by iy provisiond containgd
ind subeonirkc of an Basignment agreemen to which it not a

13. INDEMNEFICATION. Unlcss cthonvise exempied by law,
the Centrzcior shall indemaify 106 hold harileds the Stte, it
oflicers 6hd employces, from aad againgi-any end oli cloims,
tiabilities end costs for nny personsl injury or property damages,
paient of copyright inlingement, or aher plofms ptserted agains:
the, Staic, ils oficers or-employees, which arise out of (or whih
may be ciaimed to wise out of) the ocw -or “omission ‘of (e

Coniractor inilialsm

; Date

"

e

3
v
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e

Coneractor;
negligence, recklicss or intenticasd canduer. The Stze thall not
be liaWle for any conts incurred by the Contractor arising unéer
thisparagreph 13, Netwithstanding the foregaing, nothing herein
eontained shall be deemed to congtitute 8 waiver of the sovereign

or subcontraciors, including but Aot limited to the |

.

immunity of the State, which immunity is hmbytmvd 1othe *

Sute. This covenaat in pragmph 13 thall aurvive the
wmmumonbiuym

i TNSURANCE.

4.1 The Conmacior shall, s i sole expense, obtain and
continuausly maintain In force, wad shall sequire my
whconTactor or Ri3ignes to obuin ond mainaain in force, the
lollowing insurance:

14.1.) eammuorcial generdl liehility innuwance qmnn all cloims -

of bodily injury, dexth or property damage. in amouny of acl

less then §1,000,000 por exeurence and 52,000,000 pgregaie . .

or execss; and

14,0.2 special wouse o losa caverage form covering all propenty
subjet 1o subparagraph 10.2 herein, in &n amount net less hin
B0% of the whole replocainent valut of 1he property.

14.X The policies deseribed in subparagraph 14,1 herein shall be
o paticy forms and endorsementy approved for use b e Siote
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Inserance, “and
issued by insurers ticensed in the Stats of New Homphise.

14.3 The Congocror shall Rwish to, de Contraciing Officer
identificd in block 1.9, or his or her sutceasor, o centificate(s) of
inyurance for oll insurmnce roquired under this Aproement.

in Ylock 1.9, or his o her sutcessar, certificate(s) of inswance

 Tor et renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no

fater. than ten (10) days prior 1o the “Tapinstion date of cach
ingrzence policy. - The cenificate(s) of insurance and eny
rencewaly thercaf shall be-atiached and are m:orpomud herein by
referente,

15, W_ORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.2 By signing this agrotment, the Conirretor agrees, cevtifics
and watronis et the Contradior i in compliance with o7 exempt
Bom, the requirements of N M, RSA chapter 204~ A (" Workers'
Compa.rmmn 7.

152 Yo'tho exient the Contragter is subpq 1o the requirements
of N,H, RSA chopier 281-A, Contracior shall ruaintain, oad
require any subCONIMAOF O g3signee (o socure and muinwin,
paymenl of Workers' Compensation in conacdtion  with
pclivities which the person propades 1o undertake parsuant to this
Agreement. The Convucier thall furnish the Coneracting Officer
identified in Mock 1.9, or his or her successor, proalof Workery'
Campensaiion in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapier
221.A end say opplicoble renewsl(s) thereo!, which shell be
ttiathed pad os6 incorporsicd herein by reference, The Siec
thell not b rupﬂ'mbl: for payment of say Workens'
Compentation premivms-or for tny othes claim of benefit for
Conumeior, oF oy fubcontractdl or employee of Controctor,
whith might wrise under spplicable Stete of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation lsws  In connession with  the
performance of tve Scrvices under _thil Agreement,

e

Coneractor shald alsa fumish 10 the Contmcting Officer identified:

’ © Pogedofd

¥

* *

16. NOTICE Any notice by e gty herefo to the othor purty
thall be deemed to have been duly delivered of given et the lime
of mailing by cenified mail, posiage prepaid, in n United Staes
Post Office addressed to the parvies &1 the nda‘:mcs guvu-l in
blocks |.2and L 4, hm

1. AMEHDMENT This- A groement myh amondod, woived
or distharged only by un insrumonr in wrhing signed by e
mn “hereto nd only eficr spproved of mich amendmeny,
waiver or dischazgo by the Governer and Executive Coungil of,
the Suie of New Hampshire unieas no such opproval is required
under the sizcumsinnces pursuani to Saate law, rule or policy.

L0, -CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. Thiz Agreamend shall
be govemned intespreted and construed in ecordance with the
laws of the Swie of New Hnmp;hue, und is blndmg upon and
inures tothe bencfin of the pestics rnd their respective successors
&d essigns. The wording vsed in this Agreoment is the wording

" chown by the panics 10 express treir murval inteny, and no rufe

of conssruction sholl be applied ogaing o in favor of eny penty.

, Any octions erising oul of this Abreement shalt be brought ead
mainwined i New Humpshira Superior Court which :hul! have,

exclusive juritdiction thereof, .
19, CONFLICTING TERMS. In tie event of g conflicn
between the terms of this P-17 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) ondor atmshments and amendment thereof, e 1erms of G
P-37 (a3 modified in EXHIAIT A) chall cantrol.

10. THIRD PARTIES. The panics herrto do not intend 10
benefi any third partics end this Agreement shzll nt 5o
congrued 19 confes pny Suth b;-nel" 1.

2. HEADINGS. The headmgs dumghout the Agreement ere
for seference purposes only, aad e words cantained Iherein
shull in no woy be held to explain, modufr nmphry of id in the

inferpectation, construction or meaning of (Ne provisions of u'us

Agreement,

22,
provizions sct forth in the stiached EXHIDIT A are incorporaled
hescin by referénce,

1). SEVERABILITY. (nthe event sny of the provisions of this
Agreement es& held by o cours aof competent Jurisdiction 10 be
contrary (o wny sigic or faderal [aw, the remolning provisions of
this Agreement sill remein in Gt force and effeci.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which moy be
executed in 0 number of ecunterparts, coch of which shall be
decmed on oeiginal, constitutes the entire sgreement and
undersianding beiween the. putics, and tupersedes oll prioe
sgrecments ond undersuandings with respect 1o the subjees matter
hereol.

’ .

N a

-, Contractor [nitials
Dale

SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additionst o modifying -

-
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EXHIBITA i o

1.1,

1.2.

13..

857021-DBHU3-TRANS-O1

Cudmrgniing

"1, Revisions toiForm P.-37, General Pf'ovisions

REVISIONS TO STA oAfgo CONTRACT PROVISIONS . . ..

- +

Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effaclive Dale!Con-tplehon of Services, is
amended as follows: ’ "

I Nolwitha!andlng any provislon of this Agreemont to the contrary. and
* subject to the approval of Ihe Governor snd Executive Council of the

Slale of New Hampshire as indicaled in block 1,17, this Agreement, and”

all cbligations of the parties heseunder; shatl heoome effeclive. on Juiy 1,
2020 ("Eftective Date”).

Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Semoes is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement forup tb tour (4) additionat year(s)
" ftrom the Completion Dale, contingenl upon satisfaclory delivery af -

* services, avaitable funding, agreement of the panies, and approval of the
. ‘Governor and Exgcutivé Coundil. . .

Paragraph 12, Asscgnmenunelegahon!Subcoratracts is amended by addmg
subparagraph 12.3. as follows:

12.3. 'Subconlractors are subjecl 1o the same contractual ccnditions as the

Contraclor and the Contractor is responsidle to ensure subcontractor:

compliance with thosé conditons. The Conlractor shall have writlen
agreements with all subcontractors, specitying the work 1o beperformed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subconlractor's
performance is inadequale. The Conlraclor shall ‘manage the
subcontractor's perfmmence an an ongoing basis end take corrective
aclion a5 necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list ! &l subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and nohfy
the State of any inadequate subcontracter perlorrnance 5

.
K

Extibit A . Revisiong 10 $1andent Contsrzt Provilon Certration inlilaly

T TRY 3 . ) Gato §

He
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o New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
‘Transitional Housing Programs

T ) , Exhibit B
: ! Scope of Services
o L Statumonl of Work. N .
) 1.1, The Conlractor shall ensure services are available In Lhe_following Mental Health &
" regions: . . .
. LLA Afdrty (40) bed Transitiona Housing Progrom oa the grounds of Govemor
Hugh Galen State Otfice Park Campus in Concord, New Hampshire,

- 112 Aneight (8) bed Transitional Houslng Program in mental health region one (1) o
a1 lite Contraciors Bethizhem location.

11,3 Atwelve (12) bed Transilonat Housing Program In mental health region'tour
. (4) loca!ed ot the Contracters Bradford focation.

. 5 1.2, The contractor shall submit copies of tobacco-free palicies’ that appty to both inside pnd
. - onthe grounds of each residence within thirty (30) days of the effective contract date. o

£33 The Conbraclor shall adhisra to Administration of Medication standards 8s Sutlined in
. " s ‘NH Administrative Rule He-M, 1200 Medication Standards, Pad 1202, Administrdtion
‘of Madications in Behavioral Heallh Programs (hereinatier referred to as He-M 1200,
Panri 1202).

1.4, The Contraclor shall complete and malntain cedification and licensuro In accordance
wilh, NH Administrative Rula He-M 1000, Housiig, Pant 1002, Centification Standards
' for Behaviosa! Health Community Residences (hereinaler referred to s He-M 1000,
Part 1002), and NH Adminisirative Rule He-P 800, Residential Care and Health Facility -
. Rules, Part 814, Commonity Residencas al the Residential Cars and Supported "
' Resrdeﬂhal Care Level (herelnafter refarred 10 as He-P BOO, Pan 814),

1.5, The Contractor shall comply with all State and federal laws and regulalions ‘
- peraining o the licensure and operation of a communily residential program.

i * 1.6 The Conliactor shall be in compliance with applicable federal and Slate laws,
rules and regulalions, and applicable policies and procedures adopled by the
Department end currently in effect, and os they may be adop!ed ot smended
during the conlract period,

1.7. . Forf the purposes of this agreement, ali references o doys shalt maan businosy
- " days unless Slherwise 5pecﬂsed -

18 ¥ransitional Housing Pmp:am_

1.8.3. The Contractor shall operata a Transitiona! Housing Program (Program)
twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week for the supervision
for clients, who are;

“1.8.1.1, Eighteen (18) years of age or older; and

1.8.1,2.  Eliglble for community mental heatth sarvices In accordanics with.

New Hampshire {(NH} Administmtive Rule Chapler He'M 400,

v Communily Mental Health, Pan 401, Eligiblity Determination and
. Individul Service Plannlng (hareinatter referred to as MésM 400,
NF] Horth, Inc. : Exiph B Contractor iniiass _ fo2

$5-2021.0BH-03-TRANS0) Pagetof1s e A
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Now Hampehiro Dopartmont of Health and Human Sorvicss
. Trangltional Houslng Programs
L Panaot). ’
1.82. The Contractor shall gperate Transitional Mousing Programs to provide

. : 1.8.3%

1.84.
¢ a :
.“‘ 1.8.5,
e ’ “ 1.6.6.
NF} Norh, Ing,

$5-2021-0BH-03-TRANSO1 " pagszerie Daie

houting snd rehabilitative menial health services and suppods for dients '

ansuring: _
1.8.2.1, Any bed is ovaitable to dienls with end wilhout iﬁmranﬁa.
1.8.22 Any tied is-avatiable to clients regardiess of their ability 10 n'ay.- ;

1.8.2.2.1. Tha Contracter shall ensure that no iore than five {5)

parcent of bed days are avaﬂabfe to mdmduals without
Insurance .

The Cantractor shall provﬂe ihe lollowing services on an Individual and g:o__up
basis, as necgssary, in accordance with NH Administrative Rute He-M 400,

Community Mentai Health, Pant 426, Community Mental Mealth Servicés.

(herolnafter referved to as He-M 400, Pan 426):
1834, Individualized Resiliency and Recovery Orlented Sennces
1.8.3.2. Psychotherspeutic Services, including sex offender traatment,

1833, Targeted Casg Management Sarvices;

1.8.34.  Parial Hospilalization Services; end =~ -
1.83.5 _ Medication Retated Services.

Tha Contractor $hall provide assislance and instruclion to improve and
maintain 2 client's skills in basic dally living, personal development, and
commuaily adivities, thal shall include, bul are nol be limiled Lo

1.8.4.1, .Personal declsion making:

1.8.4.2. Personal care, budgeting, shopping, and othes funcl:onal skills;
1.8.4.3.  Household chores and responsibifitias;

1.8.4.4, Having relgtionships with peop:a with and witheut mental illness;

1.8.45  Accessing a wide range of inlegrated -community actuwlms-

ncluding recreational, vocational, and cuftural;

1.846.  Participating In religious services.and praciices of the ciient's
" choosing: snd

1.847.  Choosing and weanng clothing that i3 negt, clean, in good repair,

. and appropdate to the season and aclivity, .

The Conlractor shall provide the witlen pracesses for telerrals admisslons,
avalustions and discharges'to the Department no [alor than thirty (30) aays

*from the contract effactive contract dale,

The Cantractor shall serve clients reterred from New Harnpshlm Hospita!,
Designated Receiving Facilities, or Community Mental Heanh Providers who:

Exhtil B Conliactor tnifals |
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1.8.0.5.

mental ilinéss (SPMI) and meel atigibility for community mental
health services al a community mental health program, as defined
in He-M 400, Part 401;

Require exiensive support ond. rehabilitation to, succassiully
transition from NHH or 8 DRF Béfere maving 10 2 less restdctive
altgmnalive in the client's communty of cholce; and

*

" Have bean daterm:nod 1o no tonger require the lovael of cam

provided by NHH or 8 DRF,

1.87. The Contractte shail give cliants from NMH !'rsl priarity of admittance lo the
Transitional Housing Program, followad by chenls from 'DRFs and the CMHPs.
“The Contractar shalt: |

1.8.7.4.

T . ) -iis:.‘f.'z.

iy

Maintain 3 list of referred ,dienlsj.ih, order of referrp! dale; for
whom admission.is saught,'but a bed is not yet available,

‘Coliaborate with the Dapartment on the data elements to'be

captured in'the'BSt. THe agreed upon list shali be made availah!e

.. 10 the'Depaitment iweekly. st a minimum. -

1873,

lNoufy ithe Depanment in writing, pror to enroliing non-NHH-

ciients info the Program.,

1.88. The Conlracior shall prinnuze clients re!erfed by NHH. by, havlng a mleual

» admission, 'and evalvation process thal: .
1.8.8.1.  Places current inpatien! clienls at NHH ahead of all'ORF énd
" . CMHP referals; . o
. 18:8.2.  Provides for.a wiitien féfomal piolocal that includes & reviow and
. evaluation™af the clién's cumrent siluation, assessment of need
e . and dnsposnlson .
= 1.8.8.3. - Respondsteal relerruls in willing. 83 16 1he client acccpluneo -Or
! dentpl into the Transitignal Housing Program,: including an
. .explanahon of any conlingencies placed on the accgplangs, :or
'the reasons tar denial of the client;
'1.8.8.4, Responde o'the clisnt, with a decision in writing, wulhln‘launeen'
. {14) businass days of receipt with @ copy to the Departmenl
, 1885,  Nolfies Ihe Depansent in wiiting of any acoepled referrsfs prio
- to admission and ‘transition into the Traasitional Housing
.F'rogram
18886, includesan admlssion process approved by the Depantment ihat
ensyres the successiul entry of accepted referrals “|nto the
_pfogram In"the event-thét.a referral is not successful in the
transition process, the' Contraclor shall communicate with NHH of i
‘ the agency that iniliated the'referral, verbally and in w
NI NOrh, g, Extidli B . Conliactor mmm
§8.02 1 DBHONTRANS.O1 , Poge’d of 18 cm@a

‘Now Hamipohiro D‘qp.irlmu‘nt of Hesith and Human Services - -
‘Transitional Housing Programs .
186 Have a severs mental illness (SMI) ot severa and perslslnn!“

'

1]
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Now Hamgahire Dopartmont of Hoalth and-Human Sorvices . =i
Transitional Housing Progroms ) L ;

v . : e

" - " (he reason(s) for the unsuécassiul lmnsition; and- -

1.8.8.7. 7 Includes approval by the Dapaniment for all clients being referred
. by the community, .
' , 189, The Conlractor shall davelap and opérate Transhional Housing Programs with

residential and rehabililative mental haallh services and suppofts ond be
operptignal.no (ater than sixy (80) calehdar days from the conlrad effeclive
' date.

1.810. The Contractor shall become an enrolled Mediceld provider through e
Depariment's Medlca!d program within In 120 days of the en’ective conlract
. date, .

- . 1.8.11. _In the event the Depariment.incorporates Medicaid efiginte Transitonal
o Housing Program(s) with ils Managed Care Omanizations, the Centractor o
. shall be notffied by the Depariment and provided 120 days o enroll gs a .
- 4 provider with the Managed Care Organtzations for ali Medicald eligible
o, ¥ - Translional Housing Programs. Proo! of enroliment shall be providad to the
Oepartment within saven (7} days of enroliment, Y.

© 1842, The Contractor shall have 8 dischorge protess fot clients who are dist'.hargad
from tha Transitional Housing Program that;

. ‘ . 18120,  Suppons b maximum stay of two (2) years per client, per episoda, .
- uniess otherwiss epproved by the Oapantmant mwnlmg .

18122  Enswres padicipaion in discharge planning meetings with
. communily menlal health centers, NHM, other providers, ang

, w N . Natural supponts;
) P 18123 Providés for o written discharge pidn thal includes an evaluation
. . +of the c!nent 3 cutrent situation, disposition and transition plan for
- " moving back inlo the community; .
¥ " 18124, Refains the client’s bed. in the evant thal: _ ’
- . .7 184284, Aclient's conditional discharge Is revoked, and the
. ‘ .- t client Is readmitted to NHH. for up to m.ny (30)
days
, 161242, Acligntis voluntadly raadmitted io NHH for up to
thiny (30) days.

1.8.125. Demonstroles developmant snd  implementation of a
.collaboralive refationship wilh the community mental health_
- program end nalural supports, including family, to develop the™
terms ol condilional discharges pursuant to RSA 135£:50 and '
NH Adminisirative Rule He-M 600, New Hampshire Hospltal, Pant
. w 609, Condilional Discharge,- and 1o develop trepimen) plsns -
" ) . : . designed to ralum each clien! to the communily,

1.8.13. The Contractor shall submit g transiticnal plan that transitions clienghagk Into
NF1 Nocth, 1ac. CxbiL 8 _ Contrctor Inlilals

$$-2021-DBH-03- TRANS-01 Pagi 4 o 18 ) pate & |/
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" Now Hampsmro Ocpadmam of Hoalth and Human Sorvices
Transitonsl Houuinp ngrnma

! : ' the”community to the Department no later than 30 days from the contract
: ¢ . effective date, which includas..but is not fimied ta:

1.8.12.1.  Specific steps to move exisling program participants into more’
inlegrated community seltings. . .

1.8.13.2. A person-caniered plan that incorporates thelr needs, and safefy
of themaevas gnd the public per Administrative Rule Ha-M 400,
Pan 401 and Ha-M 400, Pan 408. H

* . 1833, Coordination wih the client's’ local communny manlal heaith

. . program, peer support agengies, and olher natural suppornts lo

e < pravide otlher services and suppons 1o the dient in the
commund'y

. 1.8.134. -Involemen) of the d:enrs tamily to suppon Integralion mlo the
community. with the clieat's conseny; :

* ’ 18135, (dentification of any bamiers 1o placament in lhe cemmunity wih
. . a plan 1o overcome those bariefs, that emphasizes inlerventions ,
- " o necessary lo promate more Opporlunmes for integration into the .
5 ; -communlry
, 1.9.  Medical Sorvices
1.9.1, The Contractor shali ensuie a minimum of one (1) regisiered nurse is
. avallable during the hours of B:00 AM (EST) to 10:00 PM (EST), Monday
through Friday, ang 8:00 ,AM (EST) lo 4:30 PM (ESY) on Salurdsys and
Sundays, or the availability of on-call nursing thal is avallabla o eoma on-site’
during Ihe waekends and evening hours. The Contractor shall ensure:

. 1813 “Services ars provided on site, or in an office setting prowdlng
there is na medical reason to provide the services on sils,

1.9.1.2 " Medical semces include but are not l:m:led te:

. ' 18125 Ap nnnunl roview conducted by the reglaternd nurse
. in consullation with the client's Pdmary Care
Physician, of: ) :

1£.0.2.5.1.  Health history;
184,202,  Health status;

19.1.2.1.3, . Supponts idenlified or needed fo
malniain physical, menial, and socist
. wel-being incorporating; and
, 1.8.1.2.1.4 Al Core Standardized Assessment
oo _ fequired domains,

. E < 18122, dinstruction in, and asislance with, laking prescribed
' N medicelions independently’ In accordanca with He-
.ot . M 1200, Part 1202, Adminisiration of Medicali

NF] Noh, Ieg, Extioll B Conlracter Inely

a

§5-2021-DBH-03-TRANS-DY : Pagesolg - _ Oate
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‘ -- Now Hampshiro Capartmont of Hgalth and Humasn Sarvicos 3
. Trensllonal Houeing Frograms

; o . - . (he Transitional Houslng Program: and
- 1.9.4.3 Residential staff are trained 1o meel the requiremants speacified in
o . i He-M 1200, Pant 1202, Administration of Meditations in the
Transitional Housing Program,

1.10.. Health Sorvices -

" . 1.10.1.  The Contractor shall provide and triage health services for medical and
. : psychiatric needs twenly-four (24) hours per day seven {7) days per week.

! 1.10.4.1.  The Conlractor shall ensure a minimum of onie (1) mastors lovel
- dlinician is on-call evenings, weekends ang holb:lays lo provide

1.10.1.1.1. Emgrgencyireaiment;
' . ) 1.10.1.1.2. Crisis inlesrvention;

‘ 1.10.1.1.3. Ctordination of Involuntary Emergency Admission”

pelitions, in accordance wilh New Hampshirg {NH)
Heoo, Ravised Statute Anaotatad (RSA) 135-C127 and NH
; Y i ' RSA 135-C:28; and

t ) 1.10.1.1.4, Coordination of ravocahon of condqtzonal discharges,
¥ . W in accordance with NH RSA 135-C:51.

k 11012 Yhe Conlractor shall ensure o minimum of one (1) tagistered .

nurse is available on'call the remainder of each day the masters

- provide:
1,10.1.2.1, Educalion;

. . v 1.10,1.2.2. Prablem solving and suppor! regarding medications;
angd

_ 1.10.1.2.3. Response lo health-ralaled concerns. .
1.11. Speclalized Treatment

1140, The Conlractor shall ensure sex offender sarvices; sk assessment
evaluations; and ireatment for clients who have co-occurring disorders, or
-require sex oHender trealment, or other coud-mandated treatments sre
avsilable, as necessery or as requested by the Department, ensuring services
are not be unduly delayed or denied,

- . 1.12. Wellneaa Management

1121, The Contractor shall support a culture of wellness and provide clients with
access lo services and octivities, including bul not limiled lo, “Healihy
Choices-Healthy Changeas®,

. 1.13. Adult Needs and Strengihs Assessment (ANSA)
1131, The Conlraclor shall ensure dinlcians are centified in the use of the New

-
'

‘ NFI North, trc. Eioii B . Conlractor Initie's
$5-2021-08H G3- TRANS-01 Faged ol 18 oate 6

leve) tiinician is nol an-call, incluging weekends and holidays, to.

-
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* Now Hampshiro Dapartment of Health and Humin Servicis
Trensitione) Housing Programs

-

1132

1,133,

1,138

1.134.

. B 1 .[35

» : 3
’ g . *

ampshlre version of ANSA 2.0, or other Depanmenl- approved ewdenee-‘

‘based tool if they are a dinician- serving the adult population. ..

The Contractor shall ensure clinicians obtain certxﬁcauon through the
complation'of the Praed Foundation tast.

The Conlractor shall submit ratings lo the Department via the database

- managed for the Oapanmant in order to dliow clienidevel, régional and

statowide outcome reporting by tha 15th of every month, in ANSA formal.

The Coniractor shall ensire ratings genecated-by the New Hampshlre version
of tha ANSA 2.9 or other Depariment-approved toots are wtiliized to: .

1.134.1.  Develop an individualized, person-centared treatment pilan.

1.134.2.  Document and review progress. foward goals and objeclives and’
assess cantinued need fof community mentat health services.

1.13.4.3.- -Assist in,détermining eligivility lor Slate psychiatric rehabisitation

Services:

The Condtracter shall documenl _assessments using tha New Hampshire
version .of the ANSA 2.0. or other approved lool whan condutling 1e-
assessments in accordance with the timeframes specified in He-M 401,

The Contractor shall ensure an aligrnale evldence-based gpproved
-assessmént meets all ANSA20 domains in order to meet consistent reperting
cequiréments, hxeCcnlrador shall ensure: v

1

1.13.8.1, Written approval is received from the Deparment pnar to
implementing a suhsmute far the ANSA 2.0, -
11362  Monthly reporiing of data through the subslituted system mdudes

the sbily to complele d:enl-level regional and statewide
reponlng

1.14. Pre-Admigsion Screenlng md Annudl Res!dent Review,

1.54.0,

1.142.

The Con\mclor ihal] assist the ‘Pre-Admisgion Scresning dnd Annial.

Rasidest Review {PASARR) OHice of the Depirtment lo mest the
requirements ol the PASARR. provisions ‘of the Omnibus Budge!
Reconc:lnazlon Actof 1987,

Upon request by the PASARR office and wilh the approptiata aulofizalidn to)
reledse snrormatmn .ihe Contractor shall provide the PASARR office with-tho
information’ necessa:y to geterming the axistence of mental Hiness or menlal

reldrgalion fin, a fibrsing facﬁtty appﬁcant or rosident gnd shall .condiel,

évaluations and examinatians necded to provide the data to determina if 3
-person being screaned or reviéwed requ{res .nursing facility care and has
-aclive treatmenl needs.

1.15. ‘Recovery rd Reslliéncy Approachas

PageT ol 18

1151, The. Contractor shall grovide dients with access to'services !hal pramoté the
& Y NFIModn, Ine. Exmibli B Contracx, Intizl
' §§-2021-DBH-03-TRANS:01 Daje’
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1,162,

values-of recovery 8nd resaltency through an emphasis on a strength-based
approach and persan-oenlered service planning, in accordance’ with NH
Administrative Rutes He-M 400, Pari 401 and He-M 400. Pant 408

The Coniractor shall ulilize the ‘client's individuat service plan 10 assist Ihe
clignt with tdenldymg cultivaling and suﬂain!ng relationships with peers,
family members, neighbors, andlords, employers. and cthers in order to
creale 8 network of suppor that will, build resiliency and strengih based
recovery and wellness skills,

. »
B

1.96; ‘Complalnt Manager Services ) f

116,

The Conlractor shall designate a staH member io perfom'l the responsibilities
of complaint manager in actordance with Néw Hampsmre‘Admnmslrahve Rutfe
He-M 200, Practice and Procedure, Part 204, Rights Protection Procedures
for Mental Heafth Services. .

1.17- Access to Primary Care Physiclans :

i IRTRE

147.2

1,173,

The. Contractor shafl assist each cilenf with secuiing a locdl prmary care
.physician (PCP) of the client's choosing, within thity (30)-days from the
éHactive conliadt date.

The Cantractor shall coordinate cilent are with the PCP.

The Contractor.shat, exchange helth information at regular intervals wlth the
wiltlen condent of the client or guardian.

1.18. Coardinate Cere.with the.Legal System

.81,

1182,

The Contractor shall assess he Iepal commitment slatus of efients residing In
the program and, it deemed appropriate, provide for the wnhnuahon of tha
, commitment via the proper legal pfocess

The Coniractor shall provide codrdinalion of card with lhe fegai sys:em when
indicated. which may inctude, but is nol |:msted ta:,

118.2%.  TheNH Depanment of Corrucltons .
1.1822. The applicable NH County Attomey's Office. d
1182, 3. " TheNH ‘Aftorney General's Office.

1:19. Quallty Assurance

1393,

Asg2

NFINGith: InG:

The, Conlracior shall pedoim, or cooperate in the perlormance of, quality
improvement and utilization roview activities -as determined necessary and

‘appropriate by the Deparimepl, within timgframes. specified by the
‘Depanment, in order to insure (he e!ﬂdem and aﬂeaiva admlnlsualbn oi e

NH Medicaid pmgram
Thy Contractor ehall ensure activifies Include, but are nol limitzd to;-

1.19.2'.1.. "Maintaining deia‘led client'récords as required by He-M 400, Part -

408, ;
Exhbii B : Contracior Iu'lims; Q_D .

. $$:2021.0BHOBTRANS 01 Pojedol1s - oae-g"!fﬂ‘l'_a'
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G e 1.19.2:2. Submrﬂmg data necessary o compl‘y Mlh fedaral :eporﬂng
' requirements.

“: ' 120. Cllent's Contribution for Cluthing, Food and Housing
“ 1.20.1.  The Contractar shatl ensure clients ara not required 16 sign residentia! leasas.

-
L'
u

o 1202, The Confractor shall ensure clients aré aware of and abide’by housing nules.
.. 1.20.3. The Centractor shalt collact up to thitty (30) parcont of each client’s income to
v J - be eppliod loward the cast of housing and shell collec! an additional smoynt,

subjsct 1o approval by the Department in wriling. of each client's Income to be
‘applied toward Lhe cast of clothing, food, and other essential Rems, Financial .
. reporting and analysis of clent contrbutions shafl be monitored by the
. i " Depariment upon reques!, !hrough the auditing of cfient accounts and |
' » recondiliation of the Canlractor's expenses charged {0 clients in cornpaﬁson-
' 1o axpensas charged to the Department for general fund reimbursement,

1.204. The Contractor shall establish a policy o which the agency wodks with the
. client on establishing ‘a clothing and food atlowance ‘based on Income ang
i adoress sleps to suppor the dlient in preparation for, and management o, 8
' renlincrease upon discharge.

ot 1.20.5. - The Contraclor shall provide the process and method for calcutating:

] collecting; accounting for the client’s contribution and share of expenditures;:

and for maintaining records for collections and expanses 1o the Oepartment
tor appraval no Iater lhzn ten (10) days from the conlracl eNeclive date,

1.206. - The Contractor shall ensure client contribution polldes, processes and

. . maethods are designed 10 suppon the clienl's retum io mdepencent living while

T praviding client oontrihubon towafd the client's dolmng faod and housing
] b . ma‘s

“ 1.20.7. The Contractor shall ensure clienls wn.houl incomes are nol denied eniry 10
o the program-dus to an inabifity 1o provide a client conlribution,

1.20'.6.' The Contractor shall.ensure client funds in excess of client coniribution, r!
-maintained by the Contraclor. are kept separale from program operation
" , revenues end expenses, and in client-specific Individual accounls.

1.21. Staffing '

1.21.5.  The Contractor shall piovide sufficient personnel to -ensure the safety of
glients, stalf, and the communily, -

- 4212, The Contractor shall.ensure staffing includes, bul is nol limited to:

¥ T ) \ 12121, One (1) Medical Qirector'who: -+ | .

o ‘ . 121211, Possess a valid ficense (o praclice medicine in the
] <, United Stales; \
- N ’ 1.21.2..2.  Possess a valid ficense {o practice medicing In New

: i Hampshire: and meets the requiremenig of RSA
NFI North, Inc. - Lot Exibh B ) Contractor Ialfipts |

55 zouoma-anmsoa . Page ol 13 ] Dalnf
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> 7 Lo 135:C: 2, Xi;

"1.21.213. s Board-eligible or Board<cerffied in psychlaty

acconding {o the reguiationg ¢f the American-Board

' of Psychiatry and Neurclogy, Inc., of fts successor
organization.at tha ime ol hiring; and

1.21.2.14.  Maintsined Hoard  elighity or certification
throughout his ar hartenure as Medica! Direclor,

" 421220 One (1) adminisirator or Director who Is responsivle for the doy-
lo-day manpgament, supervision, end operahon ofiha residencs.

' 12123, One (1) registered nursa, licensed In accordance with NH RSA
. : v .7 328-B, who is responsible for the delivery and suparvision, of
nursing services.

1.21.2.34. One (1) registered nurse. as sited in Si.lhparagraph

‘. 1.21.2.3., may be on-call during weekends and off-
. ) hours and mau provide telehealth and face-to-face
23 W i p SBMC&S

" . - AM24. .One (1) nurse trainer who provides supervision o any s\aﬁ
i . . member suinorized to sdminister medications, .

o L2128 A sufficient number of porsonngl wha shall provide aursing

' servi:.es conslsting of registered nurses, licensed praclical |
nurses, and other staff, Nurses shal ba icensed as requued by
REA 326-8, ’

5 1.21.26. A suMlicient number of direct care personnel who meet the tv.enly
; Jour {24) hour scheduled and unscheduled needs of the clients in
S - - accordance with the individual client service plans, which includes
. but Is not limiled to one (1) pan-lime peer suppon specia'ﬁsl as
E defined In NH Administralive Rule He-M400, Pant 426.13 (N4

during daytima programming Houra,

1213, The Contractor shall have a minimum of .one (1) diract staff mernber pet
. residenca, per shift, when a clienl is occupying the res:dence

i . 1214, The Contraclor shall provide a stalfing contingency plan lolhe Depactment far
. . approval within thirty (30) days of (he cantract éifective date, which includes,
bul [s not limited to:

' 1.21.4.1.  The process far replacement of personnel in the event of loss of
key-personnet or other personnel belore or after signing of the

Agreement; )
. 12142 Allocation of addilional resources 10 the Agreement in the event ~
i . . of inabifity to meet any pedformante standard

1.21.43.  Discussion of time frames necessary for oblaining replawmunls

NE! Nosth, irc. . enivk8 . Contcactor Initialy

$5-202)-DEHO}TRANSDY Page V0 o1 18 oae G,
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, . "1.21.44, Capabsﬁues 1o provide, in @ timely manner, replacements angd
’ additions with comparable exparience; and
12145  Method of brnging . replacements and aadnions up- !o-data :
regarding this Agreament.
. y 22 Emergency Responae Plan,

1.22.0. The Coniractor shail submil an Emergency Plan fot clienls in the event oi a
L nalural, intentionsl or accidenta! incident or threat that atfects the client's

*

. .. health and safety to the Department far approval within ten (10) doys trom the
) effactive coniract date.
"- 2. Exhibhs incorporated . :

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health infortnation in complianca with
the Standards for Privacy of Individisally identifiable Healh Information {Privacy Rule)
. (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Heallh Insurance Portabifity and Accountablity
Ac {HIPAA) of 1988, and in accardance with (he attached Exhibit |, Business Associale -
- Agreement, which hes been executed by the padies.

" 22. The Conlractor shab manage afl confidential data related 1o Whis Agreement In
. accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Securily Requirements.

2.3. The Contractar shell comply with all Exhibits O lhrough K, which are atiached herelo
and incorporated by reference herein. ,

- 3. ‘Roporting Ruquitgmonts

. "31. The Conlracmf shall meol whh the Depariment quanerly, or as requested by the
Oepaimen), to Toview quanery programmatic reports submitied in a format specified
by the Oeganment. The COntfacta: shall ensure data elements reponed include, but
are not be limied to:

311, . Tolal number of vacant and occupied beds during lhe reponing period.

. 3120 Total number of Individuels referrod, admitted, and dischaiged during the
reporting pesiod.

313 Al admitted’ client's region of origin pﬁor to placement et the transitionat
’ housing program,

314 Al discharged client's reglon df dnschafge fmm the transifional housing
. ) program,

215 Al clienl's kgal status suth a5 panding charges, conviclians, lnvolun!a;y
emergency admission (IEA) status,

3.16.  Allclient's progress towaids Independent Iiving including: -

L 3161 Hospttal readmission rate{s).’ .
' 3162  Projecied discharge plans for each client; '
. ) 31,63 ‘ Clinica) updates; and
- ‘ NFINoth, Inc. | ' Eniulal ‘ CQntradcrwuau(\)\O
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3184 Programmatic offerings. which may include but are aol linfited to:
. _‘ 31649  Social aclivities and outings.
i 31642  Vocdlional support sarvices. ¢ .
- - 31643 Wallness groups,
2.2, Tha Contractor shall submit afl required data elements via the Phoanix gysiem, excopt
A for the ANSA data, ensufing any nacassary system changes are compieted within six
(6) months from the e!feciw contract date. i
. 3.3. The Contraclor ghall submit individual cluent-levet damographic ond encounter dala,
: - including non-billable ingividual-speciic tervices to the Department's Phoenix system
or -on an alternative format . identified by the Deparimen\ as specified by the
“ ) Department,
g 3.4, The Conlractor shall ensure all client dala submitted inchides 3 Medicaid 10 numb er far
clients enrolied in Medicaid ahd data elemants that inciude, but are not limited to; ' 7
< a4, Clienlt's housing status upon discharge; : o
342, Employmant stalus; C ) )
. 343, Smoking statug; end ol
P 344, Mental heslth and subslance use disorder(s) diagnoses.

35, The Contractor shal submil monihly data no later ihan the lfteenth {15th) of each
month for the prior moath’s. data, unless otheiwise approved by the Depanment in
wﬁtmg

38. The Contracior shall review tha Department's tabular summaries wathln tive {5)
tusinass days of the summaries becoming available,

3.7. The Contractor shall ensure submilted dala represents 8 minimum of:

371 N mely-elghl (98) percent of billable sarvices provided; and
’ 3 7.2, Ninaty-glgnt {98) percent of glients senved by the Conlractor.
as Tpe Contraclor shall ensure submitted service and member data shall canforms to
submission requirements, at a minimum of: a .
. 38.1.  Ninety-eight (98) percent of the data records; and
38.2.  Allunique member idenlifiers shallbe accurate and valid,
39 Tne Conlraclor shall submit quaniery program status repodis o the Department no fater
" than the 15th of the month following the quaner as outlined and iden!ﬂ:ed by the
‘Depantment. )
) 3.10. Tha Contractor shali submit monthly Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Staterr‘enls
N The Contractor shall ensure:
3.10.1. The Profil and Loss Slatemem inciudes a budgel column allowing for budgel-
to-attual analysis. s
NFI Norh, Inc. ' ) Exnivil 8 . Contracior Tnlisss M
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3.10.2.  Statements.are submitted within thtrry (30) vays after the end ot each mohith
o o ® - ond_afe based.on the accrual method of accounting and include thé
- Contractors total revenues and expendn!ums whither or nol genarated by,

of rasuiling from, funds provided pursuant lo the conlract,

4. Porformonco Messures, ’ .

*

4.1,  The Contractor shail hctwerr'and regularly collaborate with the Departrmeni lo enhance,
. coniract ml:n.agommt nmprave rosullg, end adjust progrém delivery and pohcy basad
! 4 Sk on sutcessful .ouleomes.

4.2 The Coatfptror mey-de, requlred 1o provide other key dova nnd metrics lo. the
Department, incheding client-level demographic, pedfarmance, ‘and service dala.

4.3. Whemn appiicadle, the Conlracigr shail coliect ard share'data with the Depaitmentina.
format spacrﬁad by thg Dapadment

‘ 5. Additional Terms
; i 5.1, impacts Resiling from Court Ordam or Legrslauve Changas

< ERR Y Thd Contragtar sgrees thal, lo the extent future ‘state or federal légigiation or

. court orders may have an impact on the Services dascribad herein, the State
4 Ras the right to modity Service prickilies and expenditure fequita mants under
x : f this Agréement 50 3510 achigve compliance therewith,

82 (‘:ui:ura{ty and Linguistically. Approptlate Sorvices (CLAS) o

521 The Conlractor shan subrml and oomply with a detadled descriplion of the
S _ language BSSisiance services they will provide lo pérsons with imited English

»
e

Y

» programs endlar sarvices within tep (10) days of the contract efeclive date.
5 5.3. . Cradits and Copyright Ownership '

" . 511 Al documents, fiotices, piess reléases, research repoits and athar matenals
¥ préparéd during or resulling, from the performance of the sawlces of the.

-. .Contract shall include the fol!owmg slaternent,. “The preparation of this’

{repont,.document elc.) was-financid urder a Contract wilh'the Stateof New'

. JHompahire, Deganment ot Health and Human Services,-with funds provided

Tn part by the State of New:Hampshira and/or such other funding Sources as

were avalabie or requlred eg., lhe United States Departmenl of Heallh and

, .. Humin Senvices.”

n ' 832 Al matenals produced 01 purchased under the cantract ‘shall have Prior
approva! from the Department befdre printing.. produchon distribulion oy use.

533 The Department shad retain copyfigh! ownership fos any and all ouglnal
-« materiais producad, inciuding, bul nol fimited to: i

. §331.  Brochures. i ‘.
. 15332 Resource directories. ° "

s a 3 . g . -
¥ NEVNordh, Ine. : Exhitin B : Contzactor nitics’ M

+
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5333 Prolocols or guidetines, X
! ) 5334 Posters’ e e T .

- S T 7 Y 8335 Reports.
! 534, . The Controcior shall not reproduce any ma!erials produced under the:
L. ..  conlbract without prior'written approval from the Department:

S * 54, Operation of Facillties Compliance with Laws and Regulations _ .

i - L 5.4, In the opnmuon of any fadilitins for providing services; the Contractor shall -
’ comply with alt lawp, ¢1ders end regulatians of lederst, state. county and
: municipal avthorities and with any direction of any Public Otficer or officers
. " R pursuant to laws which shail impose an crdar or duty upon the conlractor with
. respact lo the operahon of the facahty or the provision of the services at such
. . faciity. It any governmental license or permit shali’ be required for the
: operation of the sald 1aciflly or the performance of the said services, the
Contractor will procura said license or permlt, and will a1 all times comply with
-1 the terms and conditions of each such licknse. or permit. In connection with
ER GO (he forégoing requiremenls, the Confractar hareby covenants and agrées
B § ‘ that, during the term of this Contract the faciities shatl comply with ai tules,
- drders, regulations, and requiremants of the Stata Office of the Fire'Marshat
and the local fire protection.agency, and shall ba in conformance with local

B building end zonmg codes, by-laws and regulations.

5.5. Elginiity Dotermlnaltons "

. 551, I the Contraclor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals such
: C s e eliglbllity determination shall be mede in accordancé with applicable federa)
* and state laws, regulations, orders, guidetihes, poligies and procedures.

5 . .. 852 Eligidility detetminativns shaltbe niade on forms provided by the Depanmeént
o T, for thst purpose and shall be made and remade-al such times as are
’ * prescribed by the Department. ;.

5§53 in addghion to the detemminalion forms required by tne Depanment, the,
Cantractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder,
which. file shall inchade all Information necessary to support an eligiblity
dotemtinalion and such other informatian as the Depaniment requests. The
Contractor shall fumish the Depantment with ail forms and: documentation
regan:!mg eligibility detarminations that the- Deparmen rnay request of

,  fequire.

) 554, - The Contractor understands that all applicants for services heraunder as
*well s individuals declarad ineligible have a right 16-a fair hearing fegarding .
1. that datermination. The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees thal all
. apalicants for services shall be permitted’to ili out en application form and -
! that each applicant or fe-applicant shall be informed of hismer right to a tair,
hearing in atcordan:e with Oepanment regulations.

L '

is

6. Records
N NFiHorth, Inc. Exhlbit 6 Conlracior niigly
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6.1.

R

LI v ? -
LN . . ok

The Contractor shall keep records that inciude, but are not limited to: ~ + -

8.1, Books, records, documents and other efectrenic or physical data evsdenmg s
and reflacting all costs and other expansas incuired by the Contracior in the
performance of the Coniract, and alf tncome feceived or collected by the
Contrndor

6.1.2. All records must be maintainod in accordanca with acoounl}ng pm:ecums
' and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and
2 exponses, and which are acceptablé lo tho Depertmenl, and to iacludo.

without limitation, all-tedgers, books, records, and origina! evidence of costs
such 35 purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for

' matenials, inventories, valuations of in-kind conlributions, labar time cords,

payrols, and other records requested or required by the Depattment.

Seafistical, enrolimem, aftendance o visd records for each reciplent of

services, which records shall includa all records of application and eligidility

(including all forms cequired to delermine eligibility for each such recipient),
- records regarding the-provision of services and sl mvolcea submitted to the
- Depariment to oblain payment for such sarvicas.

.6.1.4. Medical recards 6a each pahentlrecfplanl of services.

During the ferm of this Contract and tha period for retention hereunder, the Depanment
the United States Department of Hezlth and Human Services, and any of thelr
designated representatives shall bava access to all reports and recards maintained
pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpis and transcripls.

. Upon the purchase by the Departmen of the maximum number of units provided for th

the Contract and upon payment of the price Emilalion hersunder, tha Contract and alt

* the obligations of the panles hereunider {except such obligalions as, by the terms of ths

Conlract are to ba performed-after the end of the term-of this Cantracl andlor survive
the terminatian of the Contract) sha!l terminata, provided however, that I, upan review
of the Final Expenditure Repon the Depaniment shall disallow any expenses chimad
‘by the Contractor as cosls hereunder the Depatment shall retain: Ihe right, at its
discretion, lo deduc! the amount of such expenses as are disaliowed or Lo recover such

- sums from the Contrac!or ’ h.

.7 Use of Premises for the Swta Ownod Bundings Governor Hugh Gallen State Offico

Park:Campus
7.1

" The Conlractor shall agree to use the State of New Hampshira owned buildings - |
. identified by the Department to provide the Transtionat Housing Pragram on the Hugh

Gallen State Office Park South Campus it Cancord, New Hampshire,

L 1

7.2. The Contractor shall agree o enter into 2 Memorandum of Understanding with New
Hampsnlre Hosphal (NHH) for grounds and ‘building mainterianca other than specified
in Subparagraph 7.1,
7.3.  Trha Contratlor shall agtes to the vse of premises of Stale of New Hampshue owned
Contrzcor Inifiasg £ S’

' Datahgx-“ -
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buildings in Subparagraph 7.1..as tolows:

‘ 7.3.1. Routine building maintenance is "definas :as nomal wear ang tear of the.
. buikling structure, envalope, syslems hardware, and fixed ashels (not
... . lngluding kkchen applignces), - .-
. .
’ 132 Rovtine buliding malntenance.does ngl intlvde damage resuling in abuse or

744,

742,

7.4.)

748,
4 747,

148,

2.4.90.

7410,

7490

neglact by the Contracior, its agants, clients, and visilors.

7.4. The Contractor shaf! agree to the following responsibitities:

Establish accounts for al utilities (Nalural Gas, Water, Sewar, Wasta
Disposal and Etectric) In \ke name of the Contragtar, with NHH named as
“second” on each ulilily account. Invoices for each utdity shall be senl drectly
1o, and paid by, the Contractor.

‘Be'respansible for relmbursmg the State based o allocated square lodlage

of 1he Howard' Re:realsona! Center.

Assign a lialson and bachup to develop 3 Mam!enanae ond Housekeepmg
Chackilst (or soutine repairs and mainiénance needs. The Maintenanice and,
Housekeeping Chackiist will be available for the Hospitaf to review and

- prioritize during the monthly mspuc!:on conducled by the Hospual Lisisons

wiil be the only persons wha shall coritact Hospalal Facilites or Environmental

‘Services Officés; - -

Llaison will be responsible for 8l keys, to include distribution, tral::klng.h and
communicalion with the Hospital Facilities Office for letk sepair or kay
replacemant;

Be' responsile. for rouline houséhold tasks, such as, moving of fumilure,

’ changmg light bulbs, and minor plumbing repairs, such as, tailet untlogging;
Be responsible for holisekeeping in agcordance wilth checkiist refgrences i

Paragraph 7.4.3_sbove;
Be rzaponsible for -window i condilioners mamtenanoe repairs, and

‘teplacement;

Be responslb!e to call Slate Office Complex Police If there i ;s an emergency
fequlnng malnignance atter ndarhal busldess hours;

Be responsible for rnamlenance repair, and replacgment .of househotd
apphnncas such 05 mfdgeralors dimwashers washer -and dryer, and

‘sloves;

Be respons:bie for maimenance . rapalr, and replatement ol landscaping
fedlures and decorations, suéh'as §azebos, gazing balls, el '

Conducl monthly fire-extinguisher: mspec!sons in coordination with Hosphat

:Fac-lﬂles Office. Marmain or replace the enlngmshars annually as
) neoessary

Shall take: respdnsibiity.for any damage dus o occupancy, of le. old', .

. 7.4.12.;

NEtNortn, inc.
15§.2021.08H.03-TRANS .01
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4

,mprovemenls Including interior painting. and, floor, covenng repair or
. repiacenient. In no case shall the Contractor make umprovemenis without the
wiitlen permission of he Hosputal ‘Fadiities Office; ~

7413, _Piopéry maintdin al equipment snd ‘will be responsmra 15 pay for any
equipment’ noedlng teplacement or rapair;

7.4.1%4. .Use the Oapanment s lnformalnon Technology (1T} cobles only a: nppmved
by the IT Depaitmant;

72.4.i5. ' Pay fot (he personai alarm (Lie Alert’) systém;

1.4.18. “Be sesponsible for snow ramoval end de-icing of sleps and. walkways
sdjacant to the buildirigs:

LY

ra17. Ba responsible for the purchase. supply, faundaring, and. managemeni of all
finens (sheels pillaweases, bath towals, and face ctioths),

7.4.98. Be responslbla fo: laundering and manggemani of all client pérsonal'liemr

i : ' 7.419.  Assure all bulidings are reasonably-fidintained, kep! sanitary, -and”clean
: . ‘betwien scheduled cleaning lnspecﬁons and services pfovtded by the'
s Hospnal and
' i kA 4. 20.  Be responsibla for dfsposal of mo,rclmg malenaIs =
« 8. Torminatlon Report.and, Transﬂion Plan

b 8.1, In the event ol early termmahon of the Agroamenl the Contractor shall, within‘Tftéen
(15) days of nolice of adly terminition, dovelop and submit to the Department &
. - Transilion Plan for services under the Agreement, including byt not (mitea lo,
ldenlﬂymg the ‘pregent and future needs of clienis recalving services undet the
L Agresment and establishes a process to maet lhose rieéds.

B.2. ‘Thd Contraclarshall I'ully éooparate wilhi ihe Department and shall promplly pravide

4 delailed information 1o suppont the Transilion Plan sndudmg. but not limited to, any

e . informatioh or data requested by the State rélated to'lhe termination of the Agreement

o -and Translion Plan. and shalt Frovige ongo!ng cofimunicatien ang revisions of ihe
Transition Plan to'ths Stale as requasied.

83. In tha event. ‘that clients ‘receiving sefvices under the Agreemenl ara lfansﬂioned o
. having service’s daliveréd by aniother ‘antity Including contracted providers or lhe Slate
the "Céritractor shall provide a process. for yninterypted debvery of services ‘in the
Transmon Plan. The ‘Tiansition Plan shall -also specdy the process for unlnlgm:pled
‘deﬁvery of any other seivicés.thé Contractor-provided under this Agreemenl.

. B4 The Conlractor shatl eslablish a method of notifying clients. and othér aleéctéd
. ) A mdmdusls aboul the transition. The Coilractér shall include the propésed
communications in,its Transition Pian submmed to the Staté a5 described abova )

Bi5. Dunng the term ofihis Contract and the period fof retention hiareunder, the Depanment
«thé United " Siales Depanmenl of Héaln .and "Human Services, .and, any ol their .
des:gnaled replesenlahves shall have access 10;all repdns and records m ntalnec

r

HF1 North, tng; . . Exibit B - convactor iniials
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~ ) ’ pursuant lo tha Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcrpls,
Upan the purchasa by the Deparimeni of Ihe maximum number of unils provided for in
. the Contract and upon payment of the price limilation hersunder, the Cantract and all
‘the obligations of the partias hateunder (excep! such obligations 85, by the terms of tha
T . Coniract are to be perfarmad nfier the end of the term of this Contract andior sunive

T the temnination of the Contract) shatl tarminate, provided however, thal f, upon review
;. of the Final Expenditure Report the Depertment shall disalow any expenses claimed
. "' by the Contractor 8s costs hereunder the Depaﬂmeni shall retain the dght, a1 ity
‘ o discration, to daduet Ihe nmount of such expensas s are dissiiowsd ar 10 racover such
- . sums from the Controctor. : . .

.

v
-l

§5:2021DBH-03 TRANS-01 Page 18 of 18 . Dato
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Now Harnpshlre Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing Programs
EXHIBITC

. . ~ Payment s

. 1. This Agreement is funded by:
) 1. - 100% General funds. .o
i . 2. Forthe purposes of this Agreement; _ ’

2.1, The-Depantment has identified the Contractor as a (Subreuplem ot
o Cantratter). In accordance with 2 CFR'200.330;

s . .22, The Deparimeni has identified this Conlract as NON-R8D, In
- accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

The Cantractor shall bill and seek reimbursement far sennces provided to
. individuals pursuanl lo this Agreement as follows:

3.1.For Medicaid enrolled individuals through the DHHS Medicald Fee for
Service program in accordance with the current, publically posted Fee for
g ) ;. “Senvice (FF S} sthedule located at www,NHMMIS.NH.gav.
T " 3.2.For Managed Care Organization enrolied individuals the Confractor shali-
. P .. be reimbursed pursuant to the Contraclor's agreement wilh the app!ncab!e
: ¢+ Managed Care Qrganization for such services.
. - 3.3.For individuals with other, health insurance or other coverage for the
. - sarvices they recelve, the Cantractor wil direclly bilt the other insurance of
- payors. -
- 3.4.For individuals without health insurance or o!her caverage for the services
. they recelve, and for operalional costs contained in.Exhibils C-1 and C-2
for which the Contractor cannot otherwise seek relmbursement from an
insyrance of th:rd-party payer, ‘the Contractor will direclly bill the
- Departient to access contract funds provided through this Agreemen,
. 3.4.1. Invoices of this nature shall include general ledger detall indicating
’ o the Department Is only belng Invoiced for nel expenses, shall only
. be reimbursed up to the current Medicald rate for the services
. provided and containthe to!luwmg items for each clienl and line item
of service;

: v 3.4.1.1. First and last name of client.
i 34.1.2. Daleofbith,
. : 3.4.1.3. Medicaid ID number.

. 3.4.1.4 Dale of Service idenlifying dale,.units, and any possnble
third party reimbursement received.

: 4. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for aciual eupendntures
! : incurfed in the fulfittment of this Agreemenl, and shall be in accordance with
) . ) " the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exmbll C-

L

-2, Budge!
* . HFI Roan, fnd, . Eduth © Conuracter Iaia
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Addis
13.1. The'Contractor is réquired to submit an annual audit to the Deparimen! -

The Contractar shall submn an invoice i a form satisfaclory to the State by the -
fikeerith (15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for ‘authorized expenses incurred in the priof month,

. The.Conlractor-shall ensuré’the i invoice is completed, daied and returned to the

Department in order to injtiate paymant L '

In iew of hard copies, all lnvolces may be assigned an elacirgnic signature and
-emailed OHHS. DBHInvaice sMHS@dhhs.nh.gov, o mvo:oes may be mailed to:

Tanja Godtredsén |
. Department of Health and Human Services *

128 Pleasant Street . B

Concdtd, NH 03301

The State shall fake gayment to the Contractor within thlny (30) days.of redeip!-
of each invoice, subsequent to -approval of the submitted invoice and If

sufficient funds are available, subiecl o Psragraph 4 of the General P:owsnons

Form Number P-37.0f this Agreemen).

The final invosce shall be due to the Stale no laler than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specrl'led in Forrn P-37, General Frovis:ons Block 1.7,
Complel:on Date. .

The Conlractor must, prowde the services in Exh:bn B. Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

The Caontractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be wa!hhe!d in

-whole or in part in the event of non- comphance with the terms and condtllons

of Exhlblt B ‘Scope ol Semoes \

Nohv:mslandmg anything to the contrary herain,, the ‘Contractor agrees that
fundmg under this agreement may be’ wﬂhhefd in whole or in pari, in' theevent
of non-complnanca wilh any Federal o "State’ iaw, rulo or regulalion applicable

‘to the 'services pru\nded or il the sald services or praducls have not béen

sat:sfacton!y ‘completad in accordance with theterms and .conditions of this
Bgreement.

: Notmlhslandmg Paragraph 17 of the’ Genera! Provisions Form P-37, changes-

fimited to ‘adjusling’ amounts withip, iHe price limitation and adjus!mg
encOmbrances between Siale Fiscal Years and budge tiass linas-througi the
Budgay Office may. be made by wiilten agigement of both _parties, withowt
obtaining dpproval. of the Goveinor :and Executive Coundil, if needéd. ‘and
justified. . ;

- -

(I -

it any of the following conditions éxist:

i

“Rev, 01B0D, )
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EXHIBITC ’

13.1.1. Condilion A - The Contractof exponded $750,000 or more m
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Pan
.200, during the most 1ecenily completed fiscal year.

13.1.2. Condition-@ - The Contractar is subject to sudit pursuant to the

requicements of NH RSA 7:28, 1l-b, ‘pentaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more,

13.1.3.. Condition C - The Contiactor is a public company and required

132..

" 134,

135,

.

HE1Norh.Inc,
$5.7021:D9H.0), TRANSO{
JRdv. 010810 '

133,

by Secutity ang Exchange. Commission (SEC] regu}ataons lo
submit an’ annual financial audil.

if Condition A axists, the Conlractor shall submit an annua) single audit
‘performad by an independéat Certified Public Accountant {CPA) to the

Department within 120 days afier the close af the Contraclor's fiscal - .

‘year, 'conducted in accordance with the. reqmremenls of 2 CFR Pant
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Admlmstralwe Regquirements, Cos!
Principles, and Audit Requiremeénts for Federal awarc:s

It Condition B or Condition C exisls, the Conlraclor shall submit an
.annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
-days-after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

Any. Contractor thal receives -an.amount equal lo or greatel ihan
$250,000trom the Department during a s:ngle fiscal yaar, regardiess
of the funding sdurcé, mayberequnred at 2 minitnum, 10 submit annual

* financial audits perforimed by an independent CPA if the Depatment's

risk assessment determination indicates the Contraclor is hsgh -fisk,
In addmcn to ancl fiol m any way in fimitaton of oblngauons of the

Con!rador shall be held fiable for any ‘slate o federal audil exoephons

* and shall return to the Departmeiit all payments made under, ihe .

Contracl o which exception has béen taken, or which have been
disallowed because of-such an.exceplion.

B C . . Canuu:toclm.m
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' * Exmlbit 0 .

W L8
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P . ’ \ DING € PLACE REQUIREMENTS -
: The Vendor Kantifiedd In Secton 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with-the provisions of
nop _Sections 51515160 of tha'Onug-Freo Workplace Actof 1588 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Sublitle D; 41

U.5.C.701 ol saq.}, and further agrees id have the Conlractor's reprosentativa, 83 identified in Soctions:
1.11 gnd 1,12 of the Genoral Provisions oxeculs the following Cadification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

'US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND MUMAN SERVICES CONTRACTORS
‘ o US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS s .
T LS DEPARTMENT.OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is reguited by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5760 of tha Brug-Froe-
Workplaca Act of 1988 (Pub. L, 100-650, Tille V, Sublitie D; 41 U.5.C. 701 etaeq.), The January 2,
1989 regutstions were smended and published as Pant 1l of Ihe May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
216B1-24891), and:roquite centification by grantoss (and by inference, sub{rantees and sub-
conleactons), prar to award, that they will malntain a drug-free workplace, Seclion 2017.630{c) of the
roguiation pravidas thal s grantee (and by inferance, sub-grantpes and sub-controctérs) that ts g Slalg

: may oloct Lo make one cenification to the Déperimant in each fedeval fiscal yeor In liey of cedificates for
aach grant guring the federsl fiscal year covared by the cénificotion. The centificato sat oulbefowis o
moteniat reprasentstion of fact upon which reliance Is placed whan Lho agancy awards the grant. Falises
centification or violation of Lho certificalion shall bé grounds far suspension of payments, suspansion or
tenmination of grants, of govarament wide suspansion or debaariont. Canliactors using this farm shovkd

sand il fo: .
" Commissionar : . ‘
NH Department of Health and Human Servicas ’
129 Pigasant Stroot, .
For i ~Cancord, NH 033016505 ' i
a2 S . ! I i
» 1. The grantes cartifios-that it will or will continue lo provide a drug-lrog warkplaca by, -
. 4., Publishing g stalement notttying employees Ihat the uniawiu! manufaciure, distibulon,
h B * disponsing, possession-or use of a conlroliod subsianca Is prohibited In the grantee's
¥ . . workgilace and spociying ihe pciions thal will be taken against employees for violalion of such
. prohibition: . ’ .
1,2. Establishing an ongoing drug-lroe swaroness progiam (o Inform employoes about 4

- : 1.2.1. The dangers ¢f drug abuse inthe workplace:

1.2.2. The granted's policy of mainlaining & dnug-lree workplace;

. ", . , 123, Any available drug counseling, rehabllitation, and employee assistenco programs; and

1.24. ‘The penaliiea that may ba imposed.upon employees tor dnig abuse vilations

. : © occuting In the waikplaca: . e

: T 1.3, Making it g requiremant that gach employee 1o be engaged in the performancs of the grantbe

* given a copy of tho slstemont required by paragraph {a); -
1.4. Nolifylng the employge in the slalement required by paragraph (a) thal, as & condition of
. - employmenl.under the grant, the employes wil
s . 14.%. Abigo by the terms of the ststoment; end :
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviclion for a violalian of & crimingt drug
s statulp occurring In the workplace Ao later than five catendar gays efier such
T convigtion; ) L. '

1'5.  Nolltylng the sgency in writing, wilhin len calandar days oher receiving nolice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee of olherwise recelving aclual nolice of such conviclion,
Eniployers of convicled employoos must provide nolice, including position tille, 10 every grani
officer an whose grant activity the conviclod employee was working, unless the Federal agency

2 )
> *
B .

, . Exhiuit © - Carification rogording Ong Free © Vendo Infe
. ! Workptace Raquirements .
(75 T U ] Fagelof 2 Dato

x

ey,
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b

‘hes designsted & contsel pclnl lor the raceipl of such notices. Notica shal mcludo tha
. identification number{s) of sach affectad grant;
- 16. Taking ons f Ihd lollowing actions, within 30 calondar doys of mcalvhg nolice under
o . subpatagraph 1.4.2, with reapect to any amployoo who I3 30 tonvicted
: 1.6.1. TYaking sppropriala porsonna! attion against sysh pa employes, up 10 and induclng
. . termination, consistant with the requirernents of the Rehabilialion Act of 1973, a3
’ " amanded, or
16.2. Requidng such empioyas ta perticpote satsstummy In 8 dru sbuse ass:stanoo o &
rehobiation progrem approved for gueh purposes by & Federa, Stala, or local healih,
. law enlorcement, or other appropriaie agancy:
s 1.7, MakinD 2 good falkh effort 10 continua (O maintain 8 arug-free workplace through . -

o

tmplamoumucdorpamgmphsn 12,13, 1.4, 1.5, 0n0 1.0, :
i . * ¥ 8 fe
2. The granles may Insert in the space provided bafaw the sita(s) !or the performance of work dono In
connoctian with (he spodﬂc grant.

Plgoe of. Paﬁcmanu {stiool aadraas, dty, c.ounty ‘state. tp ooda) {hsl eachlocsﬂon] ‘

e
[

W

. .Check O il thero ro workpiaces on fio thal are no! identified here. . :
i » i ) . :‘

K -t 3
4t d a3

VandorMome: - A3FT. Muﬂ.‘h: 7
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Now liampahlrc Ropanmont of Hoalth and Human Sorvices
’ Exhibit E

" B RTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

as

The Vendor idgnlified in Section 1.3 of the Genaral Provisions 2rees to comply with tho provisions of
- Section 318 of Pudlic Law 101-121, Governmont wide Guidance for Naw Rasticiions on Lobbying, ang
1 U.5.C. 1352, and Rurther aGroes (o havo the Conlratior's roprasantative, as idgntified in Sectlons 1,11
ond 1.12 ol the Gonara! Provisions eaecule the followlng Cenificetion; - -
B ' . US OEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, WND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
~ US DEPARTMENT OF EOQUCATION - CONTRACTORS
; US.DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
: Pragrams {indichla’spplicaths program coversd):
' * *Temporary Assistonce lo Neody Fomilles undor Tits 1V-A ) )
+Child Support Enforcement Program under Tite IV-D .
» "Socds! Services Block Grant Program under Tilla XX “ . ;
*Modicald Program Gnder Yive XIX : it .

‘Community. Services Block Grant under Tite Vi
“Chitd Corp.Davelopment Block Granl under Titl (V

o

The undorsignod coﬂiﬁa;a, {0.the bes! of his of her knowiodge ang baltal, thai:
1. NoFederal 2ppropiatad unds have baen pald or will be paid by or on behalf of tho undarsigned, 1o’

bay persen for tnfluancing or alta mpling to Influgnce an ofiicer o empioyes of any ogency, & Mombor
R ' W 0! Congress, an officer or employde of Congrass, or 3n emplioyes ol o Mambor of Congressin
conngelion with ihe Bwasdlng of any Federal comrect, caninualion, renawal, emendmen, or
- modilicalion of any Féderal contract, gran), loan, or cooperalive agroemant (and by spacific mantion
: sub-gronted or dub-contrectar)) . -

.2 #any lunds othor thain'Faders! appropriatad funds have been pald o will be paid to any person for -
Influencing of ottampling ta influence on olifice? or amployoe of any agency. s Membor of Congrass,
an oMicer or amployea of Cofgrass, or an empioyee ol o Member of Congrass in connection with this

" Fodaral conbract, grant; loan, or coopenative pgroemerit (and by specific menton sub-grantep o syb-

Contractor), the undersignad shalt complelo ord submil Standacd Form LLL, {Disclosure Fom 1o

Repor Lobbidag, In actordance wilh its Instructions, ottachod and Idantifed oa Standard Extibit E-1.)
3. Tha undersigned shed r'eéi;_!re.mni the limguaga of this centificalion ba Inclutsod I thy awarg

]

docurient for sub-awaids o1 ol tiers finciuding subcontracts: sub'Qren13, and tonlracts undor grsints,
loans, and cooporative Bgreements) pnd 1ha) 60 sub-recipienls chelt cedily gng disclose atcordingly:

This cerfification s o-maierfal reprasentation of facl Upon which relidrice was placed when this rensaction”
wa3 mada or enlered into, Subemission of ihls certification is a prerequistio-lor making or entering into'this -
. bensaclion Impased by Soction 1352, Tite 31, U.S. Code. Afiy porson who Lalls 1o filo the roqulred
~cortifitation shall be subjoct lo o civi PenoRy of Aof less Ihan $10.000 and not mare than $100,000° 10
‘esch such (ailurg, '

Veardot Name:

é!-/?_/'?.a. -

‘ . l.o_‘“ : ' g Nah ‘: YN ?ﬂhﬂ. @k b

.8 T I Dﬂﬂ_t.?v{.

ExthE - Cortiicilion Rogining Lodling Nondor talnals’ r ;
CUCreetrinriy Pagot1al1 - ’ Boto &,
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o . . R IRILITY MAYTE

Yhis Vandor Idéntilfied in Sectlon 1.3 of the Gonare! Provisions ogroos to comply with the provisions of

Executive Office of the Pm!uem. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Pant 76 regaiding Debarment,

Suspension, gnd Other- -Respensibiity Malters, and frthar ogroes to have the Contractor's o

;represantative, os Idemfﬁpﬂ tn Sectads 1.11 gad 1.12 of the Gedsra! Provisions execute tha loﬂonlng
o Cerification: :
INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

* 1. By signing and iubmmxnp this proposal {conlract). the prospactiva pnmnry oamcman! 1: mowdlng the
'J cestilication sat out betow,
2. Tho mabmly of o peraon io provide tho cortifiction requirad botow will nal necesnsnty raslt in domai
ol ol panticipation in this‘oovered trohsaction. If necessary, ihe prospective perticipant ahall Submit an
oxplanallon of why it canngl provide the certification, Tha centification or pxplanation will be
. cansidarad in connection with the NH Depariment of Haallh end Kuman Services” (CHHS)
dotemma!ion whether to enter Intg thia lransacl’nn Howaver, failure of the praspeclive peimary
. ‘participant to fumnish e cariification or on explanation-shall disquatfy such person from pericipation in
: this u'ansadon P

!
.
4 . a4

* 3. The umﬁcalron In thiy’ dum ls @ matartal regresentation of 1a61 upon which rellance was p!aced
’ whon DHHS.daformlnod 10 @er Inlg this transaction, I itls later delermined thal the pmspoclhla

prmaiy paricipant knowingly rendotad b arronoous cortification, i addition 1o other romadios .

, ' avallabla to the Faderal Govemimeént, DHHS may tarminate this ignsaction for cause or default.

a*

- " 4. The prospocuve, primary pailcipant shatt ptovida Immodialo writien nolice 10 tho DHHS égency to
A , N . whom this proposol {conlract]) Is submittad if o1 any lime the prospeclive prmary. paniipani loarns
thii its contification was aroneous when submitlod or has become errcnoods by roason of changad
1 gircumstances.

‘ & .
1

‘5. The termis "covared tinsaction,” “dabaned,” “suspended,’ "nuhglb!a “lowes Lidr covared
. Imnsoctbn " 'nart-cipanl *“person,**pdmary covered tiansaction,” 'pdnopnl * *proposal,” and
. "voluntarly oxcluded,’ 69 used in (his clause, have tha moanings sl oul in the Definitions énd
. ) Coverage sections ol lhe rules lmptamenung Execulwa Ordar 12549: 45 ‘CFR Pari 76. See the
s didched definidons. . s

» B, Tho prospecive primary pasticipant ugrnos by submittingthis ptoposaE {coniract) thal, should the

propased ciivered ranspelion be anlered ‘into, t shall no! Xnowingly onlésinto any lowss lior coverod

irnnsacion with: 8 persan who'ls debianed, suspended, declared Ineligibls, 'or volunterily exciudod’

tiom participation In 1his coverad transactlon, undess authodzed by DHHS. :

T, Thu prospoctivo primary psﬂzlpan; furthidr egrees by SUbﬂ'\lﬂmg‘N! proposal that i witt InGhud tha
clopuso litked "Cerdficalion Regarding Debermant, Suspension, Ineligibillity and Vialuntary Exclusion *
Lower Tier Covarad Transoclions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in'alt lower lisr covared,
trgnsactions and in all sollcitalions for.lower lier covered transsciions.

. . g A panigipant In @ covorad transaction may rely upon o certilicalion‘of a pfospechve pamc:pam ina

lowar-lisr covered !ransacuoﬁ that It is.not debarred, suspended, Inaligible, af Involuntarlly oxcluded
. 'frcrn lha covoied ransacton, unless it knows that 1he cartification i3 emongous. A paricipan! may.
2 =deelde the melhod ond frequancy by which il Goleimines’ thi” afigibility of its principals. Each

.....

,parbo pent may, but la no! requirad to, check the. ‘Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

i8, Nolhqu conlaliéd !ho rorsgotng shatl b consirued to raquire establishmiznt di @, sysigm of moocds .

sin-orger.to render A, good tolih the! ‘cartification ruquimd by,lhls clause. The knowiedgo and

f,x?u‘ul F = Cartifcation Rejansing Dabimani, Suspbision Yendol lnm!:
And Qthar ﬁomﬂinr Mstiers o)
. «CUREeON 1aT1) Pogo el Dale 6_

et
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. . »

Wloimstion of 8 parlicipant is not required fo exceed ihat which is normally possessed by a pruden
persen In the ordingry Sourse of business deatings, -

+

o 10, E for ronsactions "iwmqrizod under-patagraph 8 of these instructions, If a peniapé nt'ini‘z
I 4 el transaction knowingly antars into a fower lisr covorad transaction wilh 8 person who s
suspended. doberfed, inetigibla, or valuntarlly siciudad frénh participation in (his fransoction, in

PRP 79 m.smrmnpdm svailable lo the Fedzral govemment, DHKS may lomningte this transaction

‘or dafa
5 l‘ A 4$W . ] . N . - . ]
~——rPRIMARY-COVERED TRANSACTIONS i
11. Tha graspeciive primary paricipant canifias 10 1o bos! of its knowledge ang belle!. that & and iis
T peincipals: ° : 7
"11.1. orv Aot prodently deborraa, sushended, pronossd (or dabammant, daciared insligiie, or
_ . soluntardly exchided from-covared lransaciions by any Federal deparimant of agency,
L B 19.2. have not within a tvee-ysor periad preceding this proposslt (contract] been convicted of or had'
S 8 civil jusgmenl. randered egains! them for cammission of Iraud or o erminal olfense-in
* 'connection with oblalning, attsmpting lo abtaln, or parforming a public {Federa), State of locat) -
. lrensaclich or'a contracl under 8 public-Uaniacton; violation of Faders! or Stale antitrust
’ ‘statulzs or commission of embszziemant; thah, torgery, bribery, lalsification o gealruciion of
records, moking felse stalaments, or receMng stolen propeny; ’ )
o " 11.3. oienot presently indicted for othorwise oriminally of civiliy charged by a govemmental entity
i Tl * . ‘(Federal, Slala oc local) with commission of any of the cifensas onymeraled In paragiaph {IXb)
; _ ‘ol hig cortification; and L . ‘
¥ 114 hovo not vAthln & thrme-yaar pariod praceding s spplication/proposal had one or mora public
“trangoctions (Fodoral, Stale of locol) termihated {for cause of defaull,

12, Where the prospaclive primary paricipant is ungble to cantify 16-any ¢f the statements in this
cartification; such prospeclive partitipant shall atach on explangtion to this propose! {cantracl).,

‘4 . LOWER YIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS ) .
13.-By aighing and subimiting this lowar tier proposal {contracl), the proapactive lower Uer participant, a5
dafined in 45 CFR Pant 78, certifios to [he best of ks knowiedge and bellaf thet it pnd its principaty’.
h 33.3, -ara-ct prosently dobaned, 5uspanded, proposed for dabarmant. deciared inaligitlo, of
L valunlarily sxcluded from panicipation In this transaction by aoy féderal daparimentor agency.
13.2. whete (ho frogpective lowsr er goricipantis urinble 16 cartify to ony of ihe sbove, such
i LPrdapective porticipani shall attach en explenation to his proposal (cantract)..

, 14. Tha piospoctve lowai ior participant further agress by submitting this proposs! (cantroct) thiot It wid
inchudao Ihig clause enlitied “Cerification Ragarding Debament, Suspansion, Ineligiblily, and
. Yoluntary Exclusion - Lowar Tior Coverod Transaciions,” withoul modificetion In &1t lawer ier ¢overed -

irensoctions and tn oit seliciiations for tower 1181 covared tansactions.

. w

. o ‘ © VendorNamg: N & T o, Tarc ,
el NI
o b T Name: < R L DANY, QY
R o Erecwinoe Dec ryn

“ i 3 B N . -
k) 4 - v M

- i
, 1)
. ¥

- - - - . H
: : {Exhbi ¥ = Cantcation Regarding Ocbanmen, Swapenslon  Viehdr It ‘
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Now Mampehize Dapartmont of Heaith and Human Sorvices -

‘roquinos cantaln reciplants to produce on Egqus! Emplomenl Opportunity Plan;

o P, Exhibit :
. CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING 10 -
EEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH.BASED ORGANZATIONS AND
- WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS , .

‘ 5
Tho Vender idritfied in Section 1.3 of the Genargl Provb-ons ogoes by signature of the Contractor's
rapteuntsuw a3 Identlfted in Soctions 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genernl Provisions. lo onocute Ihe following
cerification:

»

Vendar wil comply, and will ltqulrn any subgraniees br subcontractors te mgay, with any applicoble

fadern! nondiscrimination coquitements, which may include:

. the Omnides Crime Control pnd Safe Sireote Aclof 1965 (42 U.5.C. Soction 37800} which pmh'b.m'
rwpventn of !adaml iundnng under this statute Irom discriminating, eitherin empldymaont practices of In
the colivary of aervices of benefits, on the basis of raca, calor, refigion, nationd) ongin, and sex. The Al

- the Juveniie Justice Detinquency Prevention Acl of 2002 (42 U.5.C. Section 567 2(0)) which 2dopls by .
reference, tha civil Aghts abligations of the Safa Streets Act. Recipignts of federa! funding under this v
s\atule are prohibited from dscriminaling, either in employmant practices of In ihe delivery of cervices or

banofis, an the basis of mee, color, religion, natisnol origin, and au The Actincludes Equal . .

Employment Oppontuaity Plan requirements; . -

- the Civli Rights Aot of 1054 (42 U.5.C, Section 2000d, which prohibits recipionts of fedarai financiat
sasistance from discriminaling on the basls of rece, colos, or natione! arigin in By progom or sclivity);

_ - tha Rehabifialon Azt ef 1873 {29 U.S:C. Section 794), which prohibits rocipients of Federl financial

assistance lrom discriminpting on Ihe basis ol disalily, in regard 10 employmen) aad (he do!wery of -~

. satvicas or benelits, in any program or aclivity; e

- tho Amedcans with Disobiltieg Acl of 1580 (42 V.5.C. Sections 12131.34), which prohibits
disiminalion and ensuses equal opportunity lor pamons willy disabititias in employment, Slolo ond locnl
govemment sarvicos, pubic nccommodations, commescial facitilies, end tansporiation; i

» the Education Amendments of 1872 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1581, 1683, 1665-86), which prohibits
disorimination on the basis of sex in federally assisitd dducation programs; .

«the Age Discrimination Act of 1875 {42 U.5.C. Seclidns 5106-07), which prokibits discrimination on the *
boshs of ege in programs or oclivilies receiving Fedefnt financial pssistence. Il does not include
employment discrimination, . Y

-28CFR. pt. 31 (L s. Depenmen) of Juslice chutauons ~OQJIDFP Gram Progtams): 28 CF.R. p1. 42 -
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulalions - Noadiscrimination; Equal Employmant Oppeitunity; Polices
2nd Procedures); Exscutive Onder No. 13276 {equal protection of the laws for {2ith-bagad and community
orgonizalions), Executive Order No.-13559, which provide fundzmental principies and palicy-making
critaria for parlnethlps with faith-based and neighberhood oiganizations;:

+28CFR.pt. 38 (U S. Depanment.of fustica Regulations - Equel Troaimenl lor Feilh-Based
Organizationg); ang Whistieblower protections 41 U.5,C. §4712 and The Nptiona! Delénse Authordzstion

"Act NDAA) for Fiseal Yasr 2013 (Pub. L, 112-219, aneclod Jonuary 2, 2013) tha Pilot Program (or
.Ennzncemen! ol Contract Employee Whislizblowor Prolactions, which protects employees pgainst
‘ rapeisad for certain whisile blowing eclivilies in coanaction with lederal gronts and canlracts,

The cedilicatn set oul bolowis a malenal reprasentation of foct upon which relisace is placed when the
sgency swardy tha prant. False cartificalicn or vialalion of Lhe certificotion shofl be grounds for -
suspension of psyments, wmmnon of torminatian ol cmnls or government wide suspansion of

. debarmanl N
z
£ G N
Vandor tiilaly
mammmmvmmm Trwt ymard of Foln-Daned Drpariartcrn %
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-

In the evant’s Federed or sme couﬂ of Federalor Slate adninistiative agoncy makes o5 finding of

discrimination efter a dus procass heanng on the grounds of raca, color, feligion, national OFigin, Of Bex

ogoinst's rocipient of tunds, the reciplent wil forward & copy of the l’mdlng to 1 Offica for Civd Rights, to
- he applicable contracting sgency or division within the Depertment of Health and Human Sarvices, aas
- Io the Department of Heatth. ond Human Servicas, Offico of the Ombudsman.

.-

I

The Vandor [dentifisd in Section 1.3 of ihe Genaral Provisions agrees by signeture of the Conlractors -
representative as iantified by Sections 1,11 ond 1,12 of the Gansro) Prauisona to execute the lollowing

canification: o
L: Gysigningend submiﬂmg this propossl {contracy) lho vendor agrees to oomply with the provisions = '
e Ingicotod above.
W S N : i . " ’ ’
e ’Vam!c: Name: N -z Nea ¥t
E] \ v -
! SR TR .rrl;;w: ‘PA.J— woPAaan, BERIDS
3 ‘ i . - . ) . )
e s o EXeeanve dime
£ . i Pt '
» “ e . L ’ " ' l :

.
LS
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mvm%wmnrm m-\ l.t TemPword #lmhwlnl:u
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Exhiblt B .
CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE .

*

Publu: Law 103-227, Pent C Environmental Tobaces Smoke, als0. known a8 1he Pro-Chilgran Act of 1994
[ {Act), requiras thal smoXing nol be permilted in any panion of any indoar faciity owned of leased or
W conlractsd far by on ontily and used routinaly or regulary for the provision of heallh, day care, oducation,
o litvary cervices (o children under tha age of 18, If the services ara funded by Federal programs eithor
diractly ar thvough Stata or local govemments, by f Fodaral gran, cantac, koan, or loan. gusrantes. The
3 aw does not spply to chiddran's services provided in private rasidencos, facifiios fundod solaly by
- “Modicare or Modicaid funds, and portians of faciiitioy used for inpatient drug or slochol teatmenl. Faturo .
to comply wilh the provigions of the law may result in the impasition of & civil monatary penally of up 1o
Slooo per day anc/or tho lmpooulm of en adminiatrative wmallmm order on the rezponaible enbity,

The Vendor deniified in Seclion 1.3 of (he Genersl Provisidng agrees, by signalure of ine Conliactor's
~ . toprasentative as identifiod kn Section 1. 11 ang 1.12 of the Genoral Pravisions, 10 sxecule me followirig
* cartifitation;

1. By signing ond’ submxmng this conlract, ths Vendar ngrees ic make reascnabls efforls to comply with
- - .8l npplicab!e provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known 83 (tho Pro-Children Act nl 1824,

& -

6 I 5] 20

Date _. el \ﬁAu; G OANN Pt N

# : Tiste:
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E.;hIBI! 1

) ﬂEALTu {NSURANCE PORTABIUTY AND ACCOUNT&BMTV AC\‘
& . BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT -

The Contraciof identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agraement sgrees lo
. ‘comply with tha Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Acl, Public Law 104-194 and
- wilh the Standards for Privecy and Secuwrily 6f Individually Identifisble Health Infomiation, 45
CFR Parls 160 and 164 applicabie 1o business associates. As dafined horein, ‘Busmess
Assodam shall mean the Conuactor and subconiractars end agents of Lhe Conlractor that

recalvd, use Of have access 10 protected healih information under this Agreement and "Covered |

‘Enlity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Depariment of Health and Human Services.
“ n . Beflnittons.

a. Brgach” shall have the same meaning es the term ‘Breach' in sechion, 164 402 of Titlé 45
Oode of Fadsral Regulations..

‘I

b. Whas the meamng piven such term'in sectuon 160, 103 of Tuﬁa 45, Coda
o!-Fedgral Reggflatians.

¢.  “Coverad Entity" has the, meaning given such lermin sedlon 160.103 of Title 45 i
‘Code of Federal Ragu!alwns . )

’ "od. 'Qw shail have the seme meanlng as tha term ‘des:gnaled recard sey”
in 45 CFR Settion 164. 501 i .
% o Qal_g_A_ggfgggﬁm -shell have the same meaning as the term 'dala aggrepation”in 45 CFR
- Seclion 164, 501 y
1 5™ shafl hava ths same meamng s the lerm "health care operalsons
» Cin 45 CFR Sectton 154 501, . ' -

" & 9. "HUECH Act mMeans the Health tnrormauon Technology for Eoooomuc and Clinical Hesglth
JAct, Titax e, Subtite O Pant1 & 2ot the, Amedcon Recovpry ond Reinvestmenl Ast 8,
2008, .

h. "HIPAA" méans the Health Insurarice Portability and Accduntability Act of 1996 Public Law
. . 104-191 sind the Standards tor Privacy and Securty of ndividualty tdentifiable Health
. ‘ln!ofrnat:on 45 CFR Parts 150, 162 and 154, ‘end amendments lherelo

i

L mmgga[ ghall hove the same 'meaning as he term'” ‘indivigual® in 45 CFR Section 50. 103

i and shall include a person who, qualifies as g personal repmsenlatwe in accordanca with 45
. CFR Section 164,501 (a}.

alt J: “Pdvacy Rute* shalt mean the Standaids for Privacy o! lndlwduaily Identifiable Heanh
L - Information at 45°CFR Paris 160 and 164, promuigaled under HIPAA by the United Stales-
. s .Départmant of Hgalth and HumamSewlces ‘

Ky

¥ T k. Protecied uegnn lnformg;ug "shali have the same meaning as thp. lerm “prolecled, health
s information® in 45 CFR Section' 160.103, limited o the.infarmatian created or received by
. Business Assoc-ate from ar on baha!! of Coveréd Entily. .
. mou « ExNDR L Coaracor thillats PNB“

Hzalth tnsursrce Portaillty At

. ‘. Buinlnagy Associats Agreemeny ) . .
H » . Pago 10! ‘Do ; 3
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’ Exhiblt .
e B3
: 1. “Required by Low" ahau have the same meaning asthe lerm requ:rad by tow® Tn, 65 CFR

‘Saction 164.10).

R

. m. '%q_man gha!l mean lho Secre!ary of the Dapanmam of Haalth snd Human Semces or
" his/es .

designes. -

.. “Securty Bu!g' shall mean the Sacuﬂty Standards for the Protecbon of Electeonic Pmlected
Heaith Information al 45 CFR Pant 164, Subpanr C, and smengmonts Marato.

0. ,' g It

* Institvte,

. . HITECH
~ Act,

¥ maans protected. haalth lnlormalion thatls nat’
gecurad by & !amruo*ogy standard that rendars protected health Information unusable,
-unreagable, or indacipharable to unauthorized individuals and is daveloped or endorsed by
astandards dave!opmg organization thal is eccredited by the American Nalional Standerds

-

s ‘  p. Other Deﬁmlggg AII fermis not otherwise defined harein shati have tha meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Paris 160, 162 and164, as amanded ffom liene o lime, ‘and ma

{2)  Business Assoclate Use and Diaclogiura'ef Protacted Hbalth Information,

B. Businesy Associate shall not use, discloso, maintain or transmil’ Protected Health,
Intorialion (PHI) excep! as redsonably necessary fo provide the services oullined under’

- Exhlbu A of the Agreement. Furiher, Business Associata, including but nol limited 1o all
b ils direclors, ofﬁurs amployees and agenls shall not use, disclose, malatgin of transmit

4'1' .+ b Business Associala may use of dasclose PHI:
I Fmr the proper management and ‘adminisiration of lhs Business Associdle;

s

PHlin any manner {hat would oonsblule & vilation of lhe Pdvacy and Securily Rule.

il, As remulred by law, pursusnl to Ine terms sel forth in paragragh &, bélow; or
- . For dala aggfegauon purposas Tor the heallh care opérations of Coverod

Entity.

t

s Q. To the'extent Business Associate’ls pamiitéd under'the Agresmant to distlose PHI to a
h ihird pany Business Associale must oblgin,.pdor lo making any such dusclosure i)

o

‘régsonable’ ‘assurances from the third party thal such PHI will be held uonfrden!nally and

wused o further disciosed only a3 required by faw orlor the purpose lor which it was,
discibsed to the third party; and (i) an agreement from Such thifd party lo nolily Buslness
v 1Agsogiale, In aaco:danca wilh the HIPAA Prvacy, Security, and Broach Nolification

knowledga of such breach,

oy

e ' w e dm e
Q

o Exxinil 1
. Hostth tnvumnca Portabily Act
* Busnass Assocdale Agrtament
i p.ﬁ. 198

.

.

Contrecior talvely

Rules of any breaches of- the conﬁdanha!:!y ‘o tha PHI, to lho exlanl it Has oblained

The Business Assoclale shall nol, unless such.disclosuee is reasonably nacesssty to, .
-provide ‘$orvicas under Exhibii A-of tho Agreemem disclose any PHLin rasponse 1o a
requost for disclosure an the basis that it is required by {aw, withow firs\ netifying
.Covered Entlity s0 thal Coverad Entity has an opporunity 1o.objec! to 1he disclosuie and.
‘loseek appropnale retlef If Coverad Enhty objects 1o such disclosure, the Businass

ﬂlﬁ#

¥

£

ELl
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Explbitt

i B

Lovered Enlity.

Associale shall rgfrain fwm disclosing the PHI yntil Coverad Enmy has axhsuslecl all
remading.

*

oy
#u *

If the Cavared Entity notifies the Bukiness Associaté that Covered Enlity has agragd to
be bound by sdditional restriclians aver and above those uses or disclosures of security

. saleguards of PHI pursuanl to the Privaty and Security Rule, ihe Business Assodiate

shall be bound by such additional restriclons and shail not disclose PHI in violgtion of
such additions! restriclons and shall ablde by any admuunal sacurity safequards,

! d Actlvitios of Busiaese Assaelat )

The Business Assoclale shall nolity the Covered Enhtys Privacy Officer immediately
efier the Business Associate becomes aware of any use ot disclosure of protoclad
health information A01 provided for by the Agresment including bresches of unsacured
protecied health information endfar any security incident thai may have an lmpaci on the
protected health informaltion of the Coverad Entity. oW
The Business Assoclate shall immediatsty parferm 2 risk assessment whan it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. * The sisk assessment shall include, but not be
limiled to:

o The nalure and extent of the protecled haslh mfo:malmn invalved, mdudlng the
types qof idenlifiers and the liketihood of re-identification;
o Tha unauthorlzed parsen used Ine protected heallh information or 1o whom (he
." distlasure was made;
o Whatharthe protected health information vias aclually acquired or vnawed 3
¢ The eatenl Io which the risk Io the proteciad health information has been
mitigated,

.
[1
5

The Business Associate shall corhplele the Aisk assessment wilhin 48 hours of the
breach and Immediately report’the ﬁnd:ngs of the nsk assessmeant in wriling co lhe

The Business Associale shall comply wilh all sactions of 1he P:ivacy.-Securily. and

* Broach Nolificalion Rule. ) "

Business Associalg shall make available all of its internal policias and pracedures, books
and records relaing to the use and discosure of PHIrécelved (rom, or crealed or
received by the Business Assoctate on behall of Covered Entity o the Secretary for
purposas ol.determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy nd
Security Rula. _

Bysiness Assbcialg shafl require all ol ils business associates lhal receive, use of have
accoss (0 PHE ungar the Agreernend, to agree in writing {0 adhere 10 the same
rastrictions and condilions on tha use and disclosure of PHI conlainad hereln, Iacluding
the duty to relurn or destroy the PHI 85 provided under Section 3 (1). The Covared Entity
shall be considered a direct third party benefictary of the Conlractor's business associate
agreements wgth Contracior's inlendad business associales, whg wili ba racnivlni PHI

Exnit } Conyocior infitsly :
mann lasymncs Portabllily At
Oualneia Auazelals AQRiwmeni é !,; f
Fage d ok b Date

t

*
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Exnibit i

pursuant to this Agreemant, with rights of anforoament and indemnification from such .
business associalas who shall be govamed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
tonlraét provisions, (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose ol use and distlosure of -
. i protected health information, " ‘
f, ‘Within fivé (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Enity,
Business Assodate shall make avaitable during normal business hours alits offices afl
records, books, agreements. policies and procedures refating Lo the use and disclosure
of PH1 1o the Covetad Entity, for purposes of enabling Coverad €ntity o detormine
Lo 8us:ness Assoclale's comfifiance with the lerms of the Agreament.

~

g. Within ten £10) business days of cecelving & written request from Covered Entlty,
Business Associate shall provide access o PHIin-p Designated Racord Set to the
Covered Enlity, or as dirbcted by CQvered Entity, to an individual in ordér Lo mesl Lhe.
* . requiremants under 45 CFR Seclion 164.524, .
h; Within tan (Y0} busiriess days of raceiving & wnt!en ret:uasl from chered Enlity'foc an
ameéndinent of PHI or a.récord about an individual coplained in & Designeted Recard
Set, the Bysiness Associate shah make such PHI availabla to Covered Entity for
: ameddment and incorporate any such amendment o enablé Coverad Eritity to fulfi) il.-.
w obligations-unger 45 CFR Section 164.526. ,

1, Businass assoclate shal documeni such disdlosures of PHI ang information relatad lo
D% such discigsures as would be required for Covered Entity lo fespond lo a reques by an
~ Individual for an awounlmg ol disclosures of PHI in scco:dance with 45 CFR Section
s . “ 164.528. ¢

AU T & Within ten (10) business. days of receMng o wrilten reques! rom Covared Entity Jor a*
request for an acoounhng of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall meke available
v e 1o Covered Enmy such information as Covéred Entity may requira to fulli its obhgahons

1o provide an accounting of discosures with, respecl to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Saction 164 528

A

B I

inthe evem any indrvldual requésls accass 0, emendment of, of sccounting.of PHI
directiy from the Business Asscciate, 1hs Busingss Associate shall within two 2 -
‘ business days forward such request fo Covered Entity. Covered Enlity shall’ have,the
: responsmlmy of raspondlng to forwarded’ requeszs Howéver, I forwarding the
T mdwldual s request 1o Coveréd Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business

Associpte to violala HIPAA ond the Privacy and Sccurhy Rule, the Businpss Associla
shall instead raspond (o the individual's request 3s tequired by such lave.end nou!y
‘Covered Entily of such response as soon as praciicabls,

L ‘Within ton (10} business days of termination of the Agreemenl {ot any reason, the
PR ) Busmuss Associste shall return or desloy, 85 specifiad by Covered Entily, all PHI !
. . riceived !rom or ereatad orrecsivei hy the Businiéss Associale in conneclion wnlh the
: T Agrasmen, Bnd shat not relaln oriy coples or back-up tapes of ‘such PHI. H refura or
dastruétion is nol feasible, of lhe disposhion-of the PHI has been othefwise agréed 16:n
tha Agreement, Business Associale ghali continue lo extend the proloclions of 1he
* Agreement, 1o such PH! and limit furlhef uses and disclosires of such PHI to thcsa
% purpbsas thai make ihe returd or dostruglion lnfaaslblo for 50 long as Busaness

A0 “ExhitA) . Conum wl!ab
. Heafth 1a s 5nce ?oﬂibliy At
* Buslnoss Astoclyte Agroomont
. Pogo d ol 6 . 'Zd

- = 2
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(6)

-
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L

. Yermination for Q. dige | i

Associate maintaing such PH, Ii Coverad Enlity, in ils sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associata-desiroy any or all PHI, the Business Associale shall cartify to
Covored Enmy thal the PHI hag been desuoyed

" Qblipatians of Covarad Entity .

Covared Entity shall notify Business Associa!e of dny changes arhmitauon(s} ints
Notica:of Privacy Prattices provided \o individuals in sccordante with 45 CFR Seclion
164.520, to the.extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use of dlsclosuzo of PH1, )

Covered Enllry shall promptiy nolify Business Associats of any chonges In, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entily by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclased by Business Assodiate under this Agracment pursuant 1o 45 CFR Secuon
164, 505 or 45 CFR Section 164. 508. .

cwered entity shaﬂ promplly notify Business*Associate of any resvictions on the-use or
disclosure of PHI thiat Covered Enlity has agroed to in sccardance with 45 CFR 164,522,
Io the extant that such restriction may allect Business Associale's use or disclosure ol
PHI

-
. i

In addition 1o Paragraph 10 of the standard torms snd conditions (P-37) of this
Agraement the Covarad Enlity may immedialely tesminalta (he Agraement upon Covered

Entity's khowledge of a breach by Business Assaclate.of the Business Associale H

Agréement set forth hérein as Exnibil {, The Coverad Enlity may elther immedialely
terminate-the Agreement or provide an ‘opponunlty for Busingss Associate to cuta the
plieged breath within a timelrama spocified by Covered Entity. If Covered Enlily -
delemines that ngithertermination nor curd is faasubln Covared Erithy shall repart the .
v:olallon to.the Sacratary. .

Refinitions and Regulatory Re faronces. All {erms usad, but not olherwiss dafined herein,.

shall have the same meaning as those tsrms in the P:lvacy and'Securily Rule, amgnded

*from timé to time. A réference in the Agtaemanl, as dmended to include ihls Exhibit 1, fo

's'Seclian in Ihe Privacy and Sacusity Rulé means the Seclion as m effect or-as
lmanﬁcd ;

) Amgndm_q it Covared Entity 8nd Businéss Associste ggtea o wka such action as is

necassary to.amend the Agreamant, from time ig fime as is necessary for Co\mrad
Entity to comply with ihe changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the anacy and
Security Rule, ang 6pplicable federdl and d\a10 taw,

w The Business Associata acknowiedges thalit has no ownership fights
with respadliio the' PHI'provided by of created on behalf of Covared Entity,

{nletpretation. Tho paries agree that any ambnguny in the Agreemant shat; be resotved
1o permit Govered Entlty to comply with HIPAA, Ihe Privacy:and Security Rule.

Exiph| Canlractor Infilsty _Ez_

- m-'nn Insurance Porabllity Act

" Bushosa Asacclaty Agreainent P
) . Paga 610 Oeld,

v,
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B Seqreqation. 11 eny tarm or condllion of Ihia Exhibit | or the applicetion thereof (6 eny
» person(s) or clrcumstance is heldinvalid. such Invalidity shall not etfect athar torms or

conditiony which £an be given affect withoui Lhe invatid term or condition; (o this end the °
torms gnd conditons of 1Ns Exhibll | mdeclared seversblo.

i

L Sunyival. Provisions In this Exhlbit | regarding thé use end Yistlasura &f PHI, retum dr

destruciian of PHI-exiensions ol the protections of the Agranment In section {3}, the
defenss andindamatfication provisions of seclion (3) o end Paragroph. 13 ¢f tha .
slandard mmn and conditions {P-37). shatt survive the tormination of Ihe Agroemant.

3 n

L]
¥

»

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the panios hefato have duly executed this gm'bu 1,

Deperment of Haaith ond Humon Sorvioes I\J l'.x.* N, T A C
The Stale cont.:qclor .

3

Signatyre of Autharized Reprascntative ‘Signbﬁue ot Aul.henzed Rapresenmwa

Namp ohauthodzas aepresenleuve Namo of Avtharized Roproseniative

’\);f,z,e- Nf- {.' % §=~¢.:\.i*|:\ v f‘) ATl
Tilte of Authorized Reprosantalive Til'e of Authorized Represantalive :
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Exhibit J T T

ACT (FFAT comm.l CE

The Federal Fundma Awounhbilrty ond Trensparency Act (F FATA) requires prime swardoes of individuai

Fedorel gronis equs! to or greater than $25,000 ond awarded on or oftor October 1, 2010, to reparton
‘dats refalod to oxecutive compensation snd assoclated first-Ger subgrants of $25, 000 or more. If the
Inftia) sward I8 below $25,000 bul sibsequent grent modifications result in 6 totr] awand squdl to gr over
$25,000, the swnrd {s subloct t4 the FFATA roporting requirements; as of, the date of tho awarg,

In aceordanca with 2°CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation. Information), the
Cepariment of Health end Human Services {OHHS) must repon the following information for any”
subaward or contract award subject to tha FFATA repomng requirsments:

Hamo of entity

Amount of awand .

Funding agency

NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for granis

Programm soutce’

ZAward e descriptiv of tha purpou of the fynding action, .

Location of tho entity .
-Prncipte place of performance - -

Unigqua ientflor of (o entify {DUNS f) -

. Total compensalion ond narmaes of the.top five execulives Ik B
10.1. More thian B0% of onnun! gross revenues arg from the Federsl.govammens, and thosa
rovonues ore groster than $25M annuplly ang

10.2. compcmlfon information is Aol olresdy avallelile through reporting lo the SEC

-

Primogrunt reciplents must submit FFATA tequired data by the 6nd of thé moath, plus 0 days i which
the eward or nwand smendment it mada,

The Contracter identified in Section 1.3 of tho Gerera! Provisions anrees 1o comply with Ihe provisions of
‘Tho Fedoral Funding Accounmblllty ong Transparency Act, Public Lew 109282 ang Public Law 140:252,
end 2 CER Part170 {Reporting Subaward add Exacutiva Compansabion lnfofma!ion) and hirther ppreas
to'have the Conltroctor's ropresentitive, os {sentifiad in Sections 1.1 end 1. 12 of the Gonerd) Provisiond
exotuto tha following Certification:

The belgw named Contracior ggrees (0 provide nasdod informatidn as outtined gbove 10 the NH
Degarimest of, Heallh and. Human Senvicas and fo mmp!y wccs oll, anplitzbla provisions of lhe Feuom
Financizl Accountability and Transpardncy Act. -

Conpctor Name: AFE ajorta,  Targ,

Lighio s T Y
Date, ;{-I;:‘a -&\ < b‘ M’u pk ﬁ
& :. &.Y-‘:"?-u ﬁd@, ﬂ;ﬂbm—

[
3.
3

ot e . . ‘)\Lr)
i3 Emu Vo Coreition Ragarcing the Foder Puumo Conbacter InBlan ™
Pecourlatiity And Trara parsccy At (FFATA) Compranty ] :
ouociinipris Reges o2 Date l_,“[tl_o
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- Exhibit 3
. A3 the Conlsactor klentifed In'Section 1.3 of the Genera! Provisions, | certify that tha responses to the
below Dslad questions arg lrue and scourate, ' .

1 TheDUNSnumhef!orp;srerﬁjryis: oy AioY .

, 2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business of organization
- ; ot tocoig {1} B0 percant or more &f your ennual gross revenun in LS, federnt coniracts, subcontrocts,
loans, grants, cub-gronts, endior cooperative pgrecments; and (2) 325,000,000 & maso in annual

gross sevenues from U.S, federa) contracts, subkortracts, koans, granks, subgrants, and/or

cacporalive agresments? . ot
. NO ] _LA& ’

if 1ho answer to #2 above is NO, stop here A

. It the answer o 82 sbove Is YES, please answer the following: - -

3. Does the public have sccess toinformation about the compensation of the execuives in your -
% Dusiness or orjanization through periodic raports filod under section 13(a} or 15{0) of Ihe Securitios
Yoo - Exchange Act ol 1934 (15 U.5.C.78m{a), T80{d)) or section 6104 of tha Intemal Reveaus Code of

; 19857 5
¢ I , ¢ ' . I 2 _YES A
i .. " It vz answer Lo A3 sbove is YES; slop here et . .

"Il the answer lo &3 abave i NQ, pledse answer lha loflowing:

4. The names and compensation of the ﬁine most highly compensatod oMcars in your business or

orgenization ere as follows: .
* Npme : Amount: < ]
- Name: - Amaunt;
Name: . . Amaount: -
¢ Name: : : ' Amount: )
- ws 7 .. MName : Amaunt ___. i

A ———e

"
—

- - 3 ]

i Embi :{E‘ C.ﬂﬂc?llhﬂ Rag#rding u(: :l‘gm(l: Funtlag Conlmator Inaty ‘
Accoontablily Asd Yesnspsoecy Ad (FFATA) Complanza
NIt «. Pagnlal . . Cate 6 ’s 10

- -
s
.




Docusign'Envelope ID: 45430224-BDD7-443A-8453-121AAE2ECB3E

L= . . f

DocuSign Envelope [D; 54870896-44FC-4067-81FB-EE35EA330D0OF +

DocuSign Envelope 10; BDSDB10C-C391-4485-0F ¢0-3588930BAFOA :

OozuSign Envalops ID; 05040A25-ECO4IF3-ASLE-2398A533831C -

. y . .

New Hampshife Dapartmant of Heallh and Human Servuces
Exhibit K
.. DHHS Information Security Requirements

4 i - - ‘
y H

+ A. Definitions . . L

- .

X , The foltowing terms may be reflected and have the descsibed meaning in this document:
" H i, 'Breach' ‘moans the loss of contro), compromisa, ﬁnamhartzed disclosure,
" unavthorized sequisilion, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to

situstions where percons other than authorized usars end for an othar than
. authorizad purpose have access or polential access Lo pemsonally -denuﬁab!e
. infarmalion, whether- physical or electronic, With ragard 1o Protectod Heegith
' - Iformation, * Bieath® shall have the same meaning as the torm “Breach” in settion
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federa) Regulanons ,
2 ‘Compu!er Security Incident” shall have the same meaning “Compuler Security
- Incident” in-section two (2) of NIST Publicaiion 800-61, Computer Security Ineident
- ‘Handling Gu!de, National Institule of Standerds and Techno!ogy, u.s. Departmenl
of Commerce.

3. *Confidential Information” or "Confidential Data™ means all configential Infarmation
¢+ . disclosed by ane party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
- A . _ assistance benefits and gersonal information including without limitation, Substance
: » .Abuss - Trealmenl Records, Case Records, Prolected Headith Information -and

Ty Persanalry identfidble lntormatwn .

, ) . Configential In!crmshon also inciudes any and ai m!orrnazuon owned of managed by

’ the State of NK - created, teceived from or on behalf of the Department of Health and

. Humen Services (OHHS) ar accessed ‘in the coursé of performing conlracted

. sanvices - of which caltection, distlosure, protection, and dnsposmun is govemed by

T state o federal 1gw or regulation. This information. includes, bul is -no! limited to

' Protected Hoalth Information (PHI}, Personal information {PI}. Personal Firiancial

!nformation (PFI) Faderal Tax Inforrhatlon (FTI), Social Socurity Numbers (SSN),
Paymenl Cerd Indusiry (PCI), end or olher gensitive and conhdan!ual informalion.

4, ‘End User means any person.oi, cnhty (e.g.. contractor, conlratlors employee,
business associate, subcontracior, other downslream user, eic.) that recelves
. " DHHS dala orderivalive data in accordance with the terms of inis Contract. -

. 5. "HIPAA" meangtha Health Insurance Podabﬂrty and Accountability Act of 1896 and the
- - regulalions promulgated thereunder. . ]
. o 6. “ingident”, fmeans an act thal po:entrally vuolales an axplicit or Implied security policy,
which kncludos altampts- (cn:hef feiled of succosshul) to gaan uhauthoried access 1o o
, -~ gystem of its data, unwanled dlsrupllon or'denial of service, the unautliorzed use of
. * a system for the protessing or storage of dala; and changes to syslem hardwars,
fumwire, or soliware characlerislics wulhoul the owner's xnowieogeé, instruction, 6r
. 3 consent, Incidents include theloss of dala thraugh thelt or device misplacement, loss
: or misplagemenl of hardeopy documents, énd misrouting of physical or ele;:tr‘onig

VS LN updals 100918 . . EdeiTR " Conlrastor Inbloty _______B r. -
: e . OHHS é\l.:hmm .
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.

mol, all of whith may have the potential to put the .data at risk of unar.nhcnzad
pcoess, use, disclosure, modnﬁcalcon o deshud:on

‘*Open Wirgless Network” means any “network or segmeont of a network that Is

not designated by the Stals of New Hampshiro's Dapartmant of Information
Technology or delegate as 8 protectsd network (designed. tested, end
approved, by means of the Stale, to transmill) will ba considerad an open’
network and not ddequalely secure lor the Yransmission of unencrypled Pl PFi,
PHI or confidentipl DHHS data.

"Personal Information® {or-"PI’) means information which can be used to distinguish

. of lrace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal

10

informalion es defined in New Hampshire RSA 359%C:19, biomelric records, elc.,
alone, or when cambined with ‘olher persanal or identdying information wnich is hnked
or linkabla 1o & specific lndmdual such as dale and place of hirth, mnther's maiden
name, elc. i .

“Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standerds for Privacy of Individdally Identifiablm Health
Information ot 45 C.F.R. Parts 180 and 164, promuigaled unaer HIPAA by the Um!ed
Stalas Department of Heallh and Human Semces

“Protected Health Infunnahon {or "PHI’) has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of ‘Prolwed Health Information® in the HIPAA Privacy Rute al 45CFR.§

- 160,103, . ,

1.

4 .

*Security Rule® shaﬂ mean lhe Security Standards for the Prolection of Elaclronic
Prolected Heaallh In!cwmahon al 45 C.F.R. Pan 164 Subpan C, and amendments
thereto,

]

. “Unsecured Protectad Health Information” means Protectod Health Inlormation that is

not secured by a technology standaid thal renders Protecied Health Information
unussble, unreadable, or Indecipherable 1o unauthorizes individuals "and is
developed or endorsed by & standards develcpmg organizalion thal is accredited by
" the Americsn National Slandards Instiute. "

. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS .AND THE CONTRACTOR

1

A. " Business Use and Disclosure of Confidental Information.

The Contraclor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Conﬁdénlial Information

. oxcept as reasonably nocessary as outfined under this Contract, Further, Contraciar,

2.

V5. Last updnie 1009/18 . , . Exdibiy K WWMM_
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including but not limited 1o &l its directors, officers, employees and agenis, must not
vse, disclose, maintain of transmit PH! in any mannet thai would constitute a vlolallon
of tha Privacy and Secyrity Rule,

The Conlractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to 3

-

£
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. request for disclosure on tha basis that it is required by. law, in response to 2
subpoena, etc,, without first nolifying DHHS 1] mal DHHS has an oppanumty to
consent or ob}ed to the disclosure.

3. If OHHS notifies the Gonuaaor tha! DHHS nas egreed 1o ba bound by additional

. Testrictions aver and above those uses or disciosurgs or security safeguards of PHI
pursuani ta the Privacy and Secydly Rule, the Contractor musl be bourid by such
pdditlonn! reslrictions and must nol disclase PHI in viclation of such oddilionat
rostrictions and must obide by any oddillonal cacurity safeguards.

4, The Contracior agrees that DHHS Oata or derivative there from disclosed to an End

User must only be used pursuan to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtainad under this Con!raci may nal be used for
any other purposes that are not inoicated in this Contract.

8. The Conlrsctor agrees lo grant access fo the data o the authorlzeo represenialm.s '

of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting lo'confim compliance with the lerms of this
Contract,

’, ’

., METHODS OF SECURE, TRAHSMISSiON OF DATA

. L

>

v \
VS, Lastupdate 100918 Eebu K Contraciortnilaty p\D

Appl::almn Em:ryphon Il €nd Usar Is Uransmitting DHHS data contining
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applicalions have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber sacurity and that said
application’s ericryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internat. .

Computer Disks and Ponable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or poﬂable storage devices, such.as 8 thumb drwa as @ mathod of transmlnlng OHHS
dafa.” *

Encrypted Emall. End User may only empioy emall to yransmit Conﬁdenbal Data it

emeil Is epcrypled ‘and being sent to and being received by email addressos of |

parsons authorized to receive such informabton.

. Encrypte& Web Site. If End User is employing the Web lo transmit Conkdential

Data, the secure sockel layers (SSL) must be used and the web &lte must be
secura. ‘SSL enerypts dala transmitted via 8 Web site. ,

File Hosting Services, sise known as File Sharing Sites. End User.may not use fite
hosting . seivices, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Slorage to transmil
(:onﬁdenual Data.

Ground Mail Service. End. User may only'transmit Confidential Data via certifs 9d ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

Laplops and PDA. I End Usei is ‘employlng porlable davices to transmn

Confidential Data seld dovices must be encrypled and password-prolacted.
Open Wireless Networks, End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an opon

QM5 trdormlion .
. Socwhy Requemint é‘ /
Pege ot ¢ . - Duto
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wireless network. End User must employ a vittual pnvala nemn: NPN) when .
remotely transmitting via an open wiraless network.

¢ 9. Remote User Communication. ! End User is employing remate cammunication to ‘
. aétess of transmit Ccmﬁdenual Data, a virua! private network (VPN) must ba .
. . instaligd on thé End.User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which Infermation will be
T transmitted or accessed.

. 10,85H Flle_:Transfer Protocal (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transter Protocol: if
- . Eng User is employing an SFTP to tranamit Conhdential Oata, End User will- v
struclure the Folder gnd access privileges to prevenl Inappropriate disclosure of
information,  SFTP {olders and sub-fo!decs used for transmitling Canfidential Data will
Wy be coded for za-hour auto-delelion cytlo (i.. Conﬁdenhal Data wiil be deieted avery 24
hours)

~ 11. Wirelass Devicés. if Eond User is transmining Confidentidl Data via wirelass davicas, ail
’ gata musl'be encrypted to proven iriappropriate disclosure of informalien.

¥

il RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS ;
The Céntrac!or il anly retain the dala and any dertvalive of the dala for tha duration of this
Conlraci. After such time, the .Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the dala and 3ny
derivative in whatever form it may exisl, unless, :dtherwise réquired by law of permitted
. under this Contratt. To this.6Ad; Ihé parties must: |

.

A, R_eienuon
3 -8 The Cunltaclors agrees it will not store, tiansfor or precess datd collected in
© connection with ‘the" senices renderad 'under this Contraci outside of the United
Slates. This phys:cal location requnement shall also apply in the implementanon o
cloud somputing, ctcua sorvice or cloud, Hlorego copabilitics, nnd mcludea backup
data and Disaster Recovery lacations.

. 2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper secusity monitoring capabililies .arg in
- place 1o defect potential security events thal can impact State of NH systéms
egndior Departiment conﬁdenl-al mtormalnon ror contraclor proviged sysiems.

3. "Tha Contractor agrees to provide secumy swareness ond .education (o1 l!s End
s Users ift suppoﬂ of pratecling Depaﬂmen& conhidential information.

4. Tho Contractor agrees to- retam all electronlc and harg copies of Confidential Data
in 2 secure localion artd danlified In sedlon V. A2 ¥

‘6. The Conifaclor pgrees . Conhdan!nal Data stored in @ Cloud -myst be in 2
'FedRAMPIHITECH compliant solufion and comply with. alt applicable statutes dnd
regulations regarding \he privacy and security. All servers and devicés musl have
curren!ky supporied and hardened. operaling systems, the |atést @nll-Viral, dnti-
hacker; anti-pam, anti-Spyware, and.anti-matware ulilities. The erwirunme_nt asa .

.

V5. Lestupdate 1070818 Edh} X Contracior InZisls M_
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“ ‘whole, must hava aggrassive intrusion-detection and firewall protection,
) . . 6; The Contractor agrees to ang ensures s complete cooperalion with the State's
- . . Chief Information Officer In (he detection of gny security vulnerabity of the hosting
Infrastructure, - . ) ’
.o . ‘8. Cisposition
) 1. if the Contrecior will maintain eny Confidential information on its systams (or hs

sub-conlracior systems), the Conlradtor will maintain a documented pracess for
securély disposing of such data upon requesl or contract termination: and wil
obtain written cedification for eny Stale of New Hampshire data desiroyed by the
. Contractar or any subconlractors as @ part of ongoing, emergency. and of disaster
DR tecovery operations. When no lenger in ysa, electronic media containing ‘State of
- ‘ New Hampshire-data shéll-be rendered unrecoverable via 8 secure wipe program
. o .. I gccordance with industry-accepted ‘standards for secure delelion And media
* sanitizelion, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for exampls,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rov 1, Guiddlines
. for Media Sanllization, National Institute of Standerds and Technology, U. S.
Deparimieit of Commerce. The Contraclor will document and cerfy in writing at
lime of tha dala destruction, and will provide writtan ‘certification 1o the Depariment
upon request. The written cerification will include all delails necessary to
demonstrale data has been properly destroyed and validated, Where applicable,
. regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements, will Ba joinily-
‘evaluated by the Stale and Conlractor'prior 1o destruclion. ]

2. Unless otherwise spacified. wihin Ihiny (30) ‘days of the. termination of this
7 . Contrdet, Contractor egrees 10 destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
- secure melhod such a3 shredding.

) " 3. Uniess -otherwise specified, within thity (30) deys of the tetmination of this
. « ° . Contract,‘Conliaclor agreis to compiately 'destroy ali eléctronic’ Confidential Data
by means of dala erasure. plso known'as secure data wiping.

. F;RO_CEDURES FOR'SECURITY

A, Conlractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data recelved under this Coniract, end any
dorivative déla o files, a5 follows:.

1. Thé Contactdr will -malniain praper secufity conlrols 16 prote€t Depariinent,
- -confidéntial information collacled, processed, managed. andlor stored in the delivery
" of contracted services, ] ’ 2

. : 2. ‘The' :Contractor will ‘maintain policies and procedures lo “protact Deparimant
' confidenlia! information throughout the information ifecycle, where applicable, {from
N creation, transformalion, use, slorage and secure desiruction) regardiess of tha
“ ’ media used 10 slore the dala{i.e., ape, disk, paper.elc.). ’

»
i * ' -

Vi.lenuptan 10K ek convacteiveans )
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The Contactor will maintain appropriate authesticalion ‘and access controls 1o
contractar systems that collect, transmit, or slore Department confidential information
where appicabla. . - i
The Contracter will ‘ensure proper sacurlty monilofing capabilities are in place o
dalect potenlia! security ‘events that can impact State of NH syslems gadfor
Depariment confidential information for contractor pravided systems.

The Conlractor will provide regular security gawarendss snd education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core lunctions of the engagemént
supporting the services lor Stale of New Hampshire, the Conlractor will maintain a
program ¢f an internal process or. procasses lhal defines specific security
expectalions, and monitoring compliance to security requirements [hat e! a minimum
match thoso far the Contraclor, induding breach notiﬁcation requiremants,

The Conlmclor will work with the Depar!menl to sxgn and comply with all applicabie

. State of New Hampshite and Deparimen) system’ access and authorizatlon policias

-

10.

v and procedures, syslams access forms, and computer use agreements as pant of

oblaining and mamlalmng access lo eny Departiment system(s), Agreements will be
compieled and signed by the Conlractor and any appl:cabte sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized, ’
I ihe’ Deparimen! determines lhe Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant 19 45
CFR 150.103, the Contractor witl execute a HIPAA Business Associale Agreement-
(BAA) with the Dapartment and Is responsible for malntaining compliance wilh the
agreement. '

The Contractor will work wilh the Oepantment at lls requos! to complele o Sysiem
Management: Survey. The purpase of the survey Is to enable the Depanimént and
Contractor to monitar far any changes in risks, threats, and vuinergbilitles tha! may
otcur over .tha-life of (he Contractor engagement. The survay will be completed
annually, or an ailernale time frame et the Depatments discretion with agreement by
the Contracior, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of tha engagemon! between the Depanment and the Caniractor changes.

Tna Contractor will not store, Xnowingly or unknowingly, eny State of New Hampshire
or Dapartment dala alishore or outside the boundaries of the United Slates unlass
pilor express writlen consent ks obtained from the Information Secuwrity Office

, Iaadersmp member within the Department,

11

. Data Secuity Breach Liability. In the event of any securlty bread') Conlractar $hall

make effonts to invesiigale the causes of the breach, promplly take measuies to

. -preven] future breach and minimize any demage or loss resulling from the bréach.

V3. Last updste 100918

The State shall recover from tha Conlracler ell costs of respanse and recovery from
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e, the breach, including but net limited ta: credit manitoring senvices, malling costs ang
cosis associated with websHe and telephone cafl center serviees necassary due o
the breach,

b4 .
.

12. Controcior must, comply with all applicable statutes end regulation's regarding the
privacy and secudty of Confidential Information, and must in ail othar respects
maintain {he privacy and secufity of ) and PHI at 2 lovel end 5copo'thal is aol fess
than the tevel and scope of requirements -applicable to federal agencias, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 {5U.5.C. § 552a), OHHS °

' Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5%), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R, Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually ident#iable health
Information and as applicable undes State law, - '

13. Contractar agroes 1o establish and maintain appropriale administralive, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to

. prevent unauthorized use or ‘actess fo it. The safeguards must provide o lavel and

- scope of sacurily thal is nol less than the Jeve) and scope of security requiroments

. - ésioblished by tho Stale of New Hampshire, Department of information Technology,

- * Refer 1o Vendor Resources/Procurement al hitps:#www.nh.govidoitvendorfindex him

for the Depatment of Informalion Technology palicies, guidelines, standards, end
protutement infarmation relaling 1o veadars. .

Ed - 14, Contractor agrees to maintain g documentéd breach notification: and incidant
. fespdnse process. The Conbracter will notity the State's Privacy Oficer and the
State's Secirity Officer of any secylily breach Immedialely, at the emait addresses
. provided In Section Vi. This includes & confidentia! Informalion breach, computer
Security incident,ior suspectod breach which atlects or includes any State of New

. Hampshilre systems thal connett o the State of New Ham pshire network.

v . 15.Contraclor myst restrict access to the ‘Confidential Data oblained 'under (his
Conlract: to only those aitthorized End Users who. nieed such DHHS. Dala to
perform their officlal duties in connsction with purposes identified in this Conlraci.

16. The Coatractor must ensure thiat all End Users:

8. comply with such safeguards s reférericed In Section IV A. ‘sbove,
implemeénied to protéct Confidential information thet s furnished by DHHS
. under this Contract lrom loss, theft of inadvertent diadosure,

b. saleguard this information at all times.

€. ensure fhat laptops and other eléétronic devices/madia cantaining PHI, PI, or
- FFl are encrypted and password-prolecied, : )

‘6. send smails ‘conlaining ‘Conlidentizl Infgrmation only If gnceypled ang belng
sent to and being received by email addresses of persoss autharized lo
4 receive such information, .

4 ]
V5 Uyl ipdale 100818 5 Exnb K T : Conlraior Inkisly E&_
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. 1im¥t disclosura ‘of ther Conlidential !nlonnatvan ta the extent pamnitted by Iaw

: CT Conﬁdenual Informotion received under this Contract and Indvioually”
identifiable. data derived frem DHHS Datas, must be otored in an area that is
‘ . physically and technologlcslly sécure fiom ‘access by unputhorized -pessons
- - during -duty Hours as-well as nonduty Hours {e.g., door locks, card knys.
blomatﬁc igentifiers, .elc.). - i

N 0. oniv authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, lnc!udmg ary

‘ desvaiivé fies containing personally identifiabla information, and in oll.cases,

. . such dald' must be encryptad ot all imes when in transil, at rest. of whan
stored on porlable media as requived in seclion IV above. .

- " h. in all other instancas Confidential- Data must be maintained, used -ang’
disclosed using appropriale gafeguards, as determined by a nsk‘based
55 essment of the Circumnstiancas involved.

L undersland that therr user ‘credentials (user name and password) must nol be

' : " shared with enyond, End Usérs will keep thelr credential information sacure.

- Thls applies lo credentils vsed [0 access the site diréclly o mdxrec!ly through
a third party epplicalion.

Contracior is responsible for oversight and compliance of thelr End User: DHHS
. reserves the right' to éonduct onsils lnspectmns to monlior complsame with this
: . Contract, mdudnng the privacy @nd secunty requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
- and other applicablo ldws and Fedaral regutations unfil such fimo tha Confi dentidi Data .
) dssposed otin accordanoe wiih this Contract.: ‘ _
V. "LOSSREPORTING, - o f
: . .The Cunlradur must. nolify the State's Privacy Officer and Sncurity Ofﬁear of any
Securlly Incidents ‘Bnd Breachds Immediately, al the emall addresses p:a\ﬂdad In
Seclion VI,

Thé Contractor must further haiidie and rapor Incidents and Breaches involving PHIIn .
. eccardance with the ‘sgency’s, documented Incident Handling and Breach Nolification
procedures 2nd In accordance with 42 'C.F.R. §§ 431,300 - '308. In 2ddition o, and
notwthstending, ‘Contractor's compliance. with af) appl:cable obtigations and procedures,
.. Contfactor's procedures must atso address how the Cunlractor will;

1. ldentity Incidents; )
Détérmine i pérsonally identifiable Information is involved En'incidén!s'
Repon suspected ar confrmed Incidesits s requirad in’ 1ms Exhibil or P-37;

.
4
e

ldenl-!y and cdnvend a core raSponse Jroup lo delerrhing tha sisk lovel of Incidents
‘and dalermme nsk-based fasponses to’ lacidents; and

V3. Last upaddin 1OORNE 3 . Exndlix Contractor el &D
b D4 information " ]
. Securly Requirementy . - 1ie da.
e . _P_l'ﬂ._’ d.- . . D‘le . 0
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5. Determine whather Breach notificalion s required. and. if-so, identify appropriate

. Breach notiication mathods, timing, source, and contents from among different
oplions, and baar costs assoclated with the Breach nolice 8s wall as any mitigatian

T . measures. R

e

=

Incidents andjcr Breacies thal implicate PI must bé addressad end reported, as
‘opplicable, In sccordance with NH RSA 359-C:20, . . '

*

V.  PERSONS YO CONTACT

s A. DHHS Privacy Officér: Y
OHHSPrivacyORices@dhhs.nh.gov i
. B, DHHS Setinity Officer: '
o s DHHSInformationS ocurilyOffice@dhhs.nh.gov .
N ’ ' .

e

V3, Lot wpdw s 0703418 (EARIK ' Cahursaneininty _gD_

* DHHS Wormuation.
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